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. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents,
These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is
1o express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatemnent. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements., An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. '

In our opinion, the financial staternents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cape Girardeau,
Missouri as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 23, 2011, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other mafters. The purpose of that report is to deseribe the scope of our
testing of intetnal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmenr Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3
through 18 and 78 through 83 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic finaneial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

QOur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s financial statements as a whole.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements, The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respecis in relation to the financial
statements as a whole.

BEUSSINK, HEY, ROE & STRODER,L.L.C.

Bucoink, Mo, toe ¥ Aliocl, £.0.C.

Cape Girardeau, Missouri
December 23, 2011
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The discussion and analysis of the City of Cape
Girardeau's financial performance provides an
overall review of the City’s financial activities
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, The
intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at
the City's financial performance as a whole.
Readers should also review the basic financial
statemnents and related notes to those statements
1o enhance their understanding of the City’s
financial performance.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of the City of Cape Girardeau
exgeeded its Labilities at the close of the most
recent fiscal year by 8241,171,143 (net
assets). Of this amount, $29,728,938
(unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet
the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

o As of the close of the current fiscal vear, the
City of Cape Girardeau’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of
525,664,527, Approximately 4.9 percent of
this total amount, $1,248,674 is available for
spending at the government’s discretion
(unassigned fund balance).

o At the end of the current fiscal vear, the
unassigned fund balance for the general fund
was 51,411,069 or 6.0 percent of total general
fund expenditures and transfers,

¢ At the end of the current fiscal year, general
fund balance reserved for emergencies was
$3,735,645 or 15.8 percent of toial general
fimd expenditures and transfers. This fund
balantce had been reduced by $386,630 in
previous years pursuant to an emergency
declared as a result of a severe ice storm. The
city charter requires that reductions of the
fund balance reserved for emergencies as a
result of a declared emergency should be
replenished af least 10% annually, At the end
of the year the total amount originally
disbursed had been reimbursed.

o Fhe City of Cape Girardeau’s fixed assets
ingreased $1,079,978 during the year. Net
{ixed asset additions of $12,296,363 were
made during the year. Depreciation for the

current fiscal year reduced fixed assets by
811,216,385

o The City of Cape Girardeau’s iotal long-term
debt decreased by 58,489,676 (11.9 percent)
during the current fiscal year, During the year
the City received final allocations totaling
$422,706 from a direct loan through the state
revolving loan program. A total allocation of
$1,000,000 had been authorized in the
previous year to complete construction of a
wealer transmission main from new well flelds
to the City’s main water plant, During the
vear the City used proceeds from the sale of
land to the Isle of Capri and debt gervice
reserves to prepay 51,960,000 of the 200]
Certificates of Participation. These
certificates had originally been issued to
construct a manufacturing facility at the Cape
Girardeau Regional Airport. Regularly
scheduled principal payments and
amortization of bond premiums / discounts
resulted in ouistanding long-term debt being
reduced by £§6,852.382,

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to
serve as an introduction to the City of Cape
Girardeau’s basic financial statements,

The City of Cape Girardeau’s basic financial
statements are comprised of three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 23 fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements,

The govermment-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City of Cape Girardeau’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information
on all the City’s aysets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net
assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assels may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.
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The statement of activities presents information
showing how the City’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes
in the net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change
oceurs, regardless of the timing of the related
cash flows, Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in the statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave),

Both of the government-wide financial
statements distinguish functions of the City of
Cape Girardeau that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities), The
governmental activities of the City of Cape
Girardeau include administrative services,
development services, parks and recreation,
public safety, and public works. The business-
type activities of the City include sewer, water,
and solid waste utilities and golf course and
softball complex operations. The government-
wide financial statements can be found on pages
19 to 22 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives.
The City of Cape Girardeau, like other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the
funds of the City can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are
used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial
statement, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of the governmental funds is
narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the

information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may
better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and
the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The City of Cape Girardeau maintains 34
individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances for the general, airport, parks
and recreation, transportation trust III, and parks
projects from parks sales tax funds, which are
considered, or have been designated, to be major
funds of the City. Data from the other
governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation.

The City of Cape Girardeau adopts annual
appropriated budgets for all its governmental
funds except the special revenue funds that are
foundations and the capital project funds which
have project length budgets. Budgetary
comparison statements have been provided for
all major governmental funds as part of the
financial statements to demonstrate compliance
with this budget. Budgetary comparison
statements for the remaining governmental funds
are present as supplemental information.

The basic governmental fund financial
statements can be found on pages 23 to 27 of this
report,

Proprietary funds. The City of Cape Girardeau
maintains two types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in
the government-wide financial statements. The
City used enterprise funds to account for its
sewer, water, and solid waste utilities and its golf
course and softball complex operations. Internal
service finds are an accounting device used to
accumnulate and allocate costs internally among
the City’s various functions. The City uses
internal service funds to account for operation of
its management information systems, fleet
management, self-insured employee benefits and
workmen’s compensation programs, and its
internal equipment leasing program.
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Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial
statemnents, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate
information for the sewer, water, and solid waste
utilities and golf course and softball complex
operations, All of these are considered, or have
been designated, to be major funds of the City.
The internal service funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary
fund financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements
can be found on pages 28 1o 32 of this report.
Budgetary comparison statements for all the
proprietary funds are present as supplemental
information,

Notes 1o the Finangial Statements. The notes
provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements,
The notes to the financial statements can be

found beginning on page 34 of this report,

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noled earlier, net assets may serve over time
as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. The City of Cape Girardeau, assets
excecded liabilities by 241,171,143, an increase
of $9,778,920 (4.2%). The City’s 201,661,386
net investment in capital assets (land, buildings,
machinery, and equipment less related
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets)
makes up 83.6% of the City’s net assets.

This net investment increased $6,395,035 (3.3%)
during the current fiscal vear. The City uses
these capital assets to provide services o
citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending.

Although the City’s investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other soutces, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets {4.1
percent) represent resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used.
The portion of the City’s net assets subject to
external restrictions was 731,553 (3.1%) more
than the previous year. The remaining balance of
net assets ($29,728,938) is unrestricted and may
be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. This reflects a $2,652,332
(9.8%) increase over the previous year.

At the end of the current fiscal vear, the City is
able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the govermment
as a whole, ag well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities. The
same situation was true of the prior year.

City of Cape Girardeau's Net Assets

Governmental Businass-fype
Activity Activities Totat
2011 2010 2011 2010 20141 2010

Current and other assets 34255413 36,770,324 16,421 436 13,906,288 50,880,849 50,876,712
Capital asseis 164,535 596 183 523 667 88,531 886 98 463,847 263,067 492 281 987 514
Tolal asseis 198,785,009 200,293 991 114,953,332 112,370,235 313.748341 312,684 226
Longlerm Hadities auistanding 38 838770 40,881,843 22,030,103 24,916,885 58,868,873 85,898,608
Cther liakibties 7,716,328 0,824 574 5,881,997 5448821 13,708,228 15373365
Total liabilities 44,555 3498 50,808,517 28,022 108 30,365,486 72,577,198 81272003
Net nusets,

Invested in capital assets,

Net of retoted debt 127,838,045 124,538,400 78,723,241 70,729,951 201,661,386 195,266,351
Resfrictad 5147781 4 683,514 4 633,038 4 385 752 9,780,818 §,049,266
Unrestricted 21,154 085 20,167 560 8,874,853 6,909,046 29,728 038 27,076 808
Total net agsels 154230911 149387 474 86,931,232 82,004 743 241,171,143 231,382 223
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Cape Girardean’s net assets by 84,552,712

(comparad to $2,S:?2,643 in the previous fiscal year) thereby accounting for 46.6 percent of the total growth in the
net assets of the City. Increases in net investments in capital assets during the fiscal year accounted for $3,401,645

or 74.7% of this year’s increase of its governmental activities net asssts.

Hevenues,;

Program revanue;
Charges for service
Operating grants and
contributions

Capital grants and
cantributions

General revenues:
Property taxes

Sales laxes

(Cther taxes

Other

Special item

Total revenues
Expanses:
Adminisirative

Capital Improvemenis
Developmeant Services
interest and other costs
Parks and Recreation
Public Safaly

Public Works

Sewer

Walsr

Solid Waste

Goff Course

Softhal! Complex
Total expenses

increase in net assets
before transfers

Transfers

Increase in net assels

Net assets-beginning of year

Inclusion of component units
not previously reported

Prior period adjustments

Netl assets-end of year

City of Cape Girardeau's Change in Net Assels

Governmental
activities
2011 2016

4,723,807 4,811,588
1,581,808 1,141,534
2252692 3,983,379
1,854,759 1,954,791
24,262,759 23,776,188
8,883 241 8,224,586
1,018,227 1,225,489

1,628,343 -
46,317,036 45,117,531
5505788 6,049,429
432 698 225344
3,032,808 2,395,183
41622589 1,861,055
4,848,823 4 002,531
12,311,881 12,583,410
8,8566715 6,731,851
34,709,482 33,848,783
11,607,554 11,268,748
{7.054,842) (8,396,705)
4552712 2,872,043
149,287 474 147 440 945
314,728 -

{(15.003) {925,514)

184,230,911 148,387,474

Businessdype
activities
2011 2010
14,013,089 12,886,105
68,875 15,451
447,185 B36,0530
377,380 £54 386
14,876,318 13,776,871
5510,881 5,858 412
6,327 558 5,979,806
3,381,137 3,200,022
647 753 508,639
679,194 616,020
16,9586 533 16,164,895
(2,120,214) {2.387.926)
7,064 842 8,306,708
4,634 628 8,008,777
82,004,749 75,030,548
{8,145} 985 423
86,831,232 82,004,748

Total

2011 2010

18,736,996 17.477.691
1,650,483 1,156,988
2870157 4,515,409
1,954,759 1,954,791
74,762 759 23,778,186
8,893,241 §,224 3686
1,396,617 1,784,874
1,828,343 -
61,183,388 58,894,502
§.506,7686 6,049,423
432,693 225,344
3,032,908 2.395,153
1,622,669 1,881,055
4,846,823 4,002,511
12,311,981 12,583,410
6,986,718 6,731,851
6,810,801 5,858,412
6,327,558 5,979,806
3,381,137 3,202,022
697,753 508,639
679,154 616,020
51,706,015 §0.813,682
9,487,340 B 880,820
2487,340 8,880,820
231,392,223 222471494
314,728 -
{23,148} 39,909
241171143 231382,223
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Activity in the following revenue and expense items should be noted for the current fiscal year:

Revenues from governmental activities

Charges for service decreased $87,679 (1.8%) over the previous year. This year's revenue includes revenues
totaling $149,150 from foundations controlled by the City that previously had not been included as part of the
City’s financial statements. This year’s revenue also includes a $150,000 payment from the Isle of Capri that
was advanced to the City to cover potential costs of the riverboat gaming licetising process. During the current
year the City did not host an air show. This reduced current year revenue by $466,705. Excluding the previous
year's air show revenue, current year's foundation revenue and the payment from the Isle of Capri, the
remaining service charge revenue would have increased $79,876 (1.8%) from the previous year.

The following are other significant revenue changes that occurred during the current year. During the current
year the City implemented an electronic bill paying program which produced $34,706 in revenue in nine
months, Revenues from the Osage Community Centre and Cape Splash Family Aquatic Park increased $47,701
{34.5%) and $230,530 {67.0%), respectively. The increased revenue from the Osage Community Centre
resulted from increased activity at the facility while the increase revenue from Cape Splash represented the first
full year of operation of the facility, Revenues from municipal court and city pools decreased $202,786 (21.6%)
and $51,562 {34,7%) from the previous year. The municipal court revenue decrease resulted from 2 24.2%
decrease in traffic vielations while the revenue decrease at the ¢ity pools resulted from construction at one pool
and the closure of the other pool.

Operating grants and contributions were $440,274 (38.6%) more than the previous year. During the current year
the City received $108,268 in payments from FEMA and SEMA for the reimbursement of costs associated with
flooding i the spring and intergovernmental revenue from the Cape County Special Road District totaling
$30,000 for the Bloomfield Road project. No revennes were received from these grants in the previous year,
This year the City received $76,064 from a Department of the Interior Preserve America Grant to market the
City’s Downtown Historic District. No revenues were received from this grant in the previous year, During the
current year the City received $3688,542 in payments from various neighborhood improvement grants, $403,262
from various police operating grants and 561,185 from a SAFER grant to cover the portion of the personnel
costs of three additional firefighters. During the previous year payments from these sources were $353,451,
$417,159 and $97,793, respectively.

Capital grants and contributions decreased $1,730,387 (43.4%) from the previous year. In the current year
$186,622 of donated assets and infrastructure were recorded. This was $736,267 (394,5%) less than the
previous year. Benefiting property owners were charged $33,118 for a portion of this year’s infrastructure
costs, This was $2,423 (7.3%) less than the previous year. This year granis totaling $98.834, §422,706,
$137,290, and $854,126 were received respectively for airport capital projects, water system hmprovements,
public safety equipment, and the Fountain Street project. In the previous year grants tolaling $1,395,260,
8577,294, $261,963, and $16,401 were recetved for these projecis respectively, The remaining grant and
contribution revenue received was $480,296 which was §293,735 (37.9%) less than the previous year.

Property tax revenue was $32 less than the previous year, Final adjusted assessed valie of real esfate increased
$4,198,497 (1.0%) over the previous year. New construction of $5,523,840 and annexed property of $147,290
were included in this increase. Final adjusted assessed value of personal property decreased 3,420,388 {3.6%)
from the previous year. State law allowed the City to increase its levy rate by .5% during the current year.
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Revenues from governmental activities (continued)

-

Sales tax revenue was 52.4% of the total revenue during the cwrrent year vs. 52.7% in the previous

year. This vear’s revenue was 3486,573 (2.0%) more than the previous year. From fiscal year ending June 30,
2008 through fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 sale tax revenue, adjusted for new taxes, had annual growth rates
of 6%, (1.6%), and 1.6%, respectively.

Othier taxes increased $668,675 (8.1%,) from the previous year. Franchise taxes, cigarette taxes, convention and
tourism taxes, business licenses, and motor fuel taxes grew $313,776 (13.4%), $13,016 (8.4%), §90,875 (5.4%,),
$30,348 (2.6%), and $24,131(1.8%0), respectively. Liquor licenses decreased $3,471 (5.1%).

Ameren paid 72.3% of the total franchise tax collected during the year based on its electricity and natural gas
revenues. During the current year Ameren paid $368,386 (13.3%) more than the previous vear, Payments
received on nafural pas sales enly declined $19,468 (2.4%) from the previous year even though natural gas rates
were approximately 3.5% lower during the current year. Payments received on electricity sales increased
$387,854 (19.4%6) as a result of rate that averaged 13.9% higher than the previous yvear and a sumimner that was
hotter than the previcus year.

During the current year the City received payments in lieu of franchise taxes from its water and sewer funds
totaling $479,616. This was $32,312 (7.2%) greater than the previous year. In the current vear the water and
sewer funds increased their residential and commercial rates by 3%.

Franchise tax paid during the current year by the City’s telecommunication and cable TV service providers
increased $97,065 (39.2%) and 316,013 {4.4%), respectively, from the previous year. During the year the City
received $49,600 in back taxes from T- Mobile.

The increase in the convention and tourism taxes was comprised of $52,888 (4.6%) and $37,897 (7.3%)
increases in restaurant and hotel / mote! taxes, respectively, from the previous year.

Other revenue declined $206,262 (16.8%) from the previous vear. Investment earnings, which accounted for
61.1% of other revenue, decreased $497,393 (44.4%). The decrease in investment eaming was partially offset
by a $250,791 gain recognized on property transferred to the Isle of Capri for a new gaming development.

This year’s financial statement reflected a special item totaling $1,628,343. During the year the City received
$2,000,000 from the 1sle of Capri pursuant to a development agreement. This agreement designated the Isle of
Capri and its project site as preferred developer and site for a potential gaming facility and fransferred various
properties from the City to the Isle of Capri. The amount received by the City that was above the market value
of the properties fransferred was treated as a special item,

Expenses from governmental activities

Administrative expenses totaled $5,505,786 this year which was $543,643 (9.0%) less than the previous year,
Excluding personnel costs, the most significant cost item included in this category is the City's support of the
“River Campus Project”, This is a joint City/University project. The City agreed to make payments from its
gonvention and tourism taxes to pay principal and interest on bonds issued by the University to fund $8.9
million of construction costs related to a campus, performance center, and museum on property that oversees
the Mississippi River, The campus began operating in the fall of 2007, The total cost of the project exceeded
$60 million. The city’s payments to Southeast Missouri State University increased 384,671 (7.5%) to
$1,216,007 this year.
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Expenses from governmenial activities (continued)

Current revenues collected from the hotel, motel, and restaurant taxes not used for the operation of the
Convention Visitors Bureau are committed to pay off the “River Campus” bonds. Unspent hotel, motel, and
restaurant taxes collected before November 2004 are used to fund various tourism and economic development
related projects. During the current vear the City spent $119,904 on such projects, a decrease of $64,804
(35.1%) from the previous year. Al the end of the current year there was still $346,107 available for expenditure
on fiture tourism and egonomic development related projects.

The current vear includes the following significant changes in administrative costs: (1) amounts spent on natural
disaster events declined $71,486 to $88,041 (2) costs were reduced $457,202 as the result of not hosting an air
show in the current year (3) amount spent on Preserve America Grant related expenditures decreased $38,117
to $51,968.

»  Capital improvements expenses totaled $432,699 this year which was $207,355 (92.0%) more than the previous
vear. These costs represent street and other capital projects that did not meet the City’s 55,000 capitalization
threshold (the amount at which the expenditure would be recorded as a capita) asset).

= Development services expenses totaled $3,032,909 this year which was $637,746 (26.6%) more than previous
vear, During the current fiscal vear the City spent $79,897 for legal expenses and other costs related to the
gaming licensing process and development of agreement with the Isle of Capri for development of a new
casino, This year also included 527,621 in grant funded expenditures to establish bike routes throughout the
City, There were no similar expenditures in the previous vear,

e  $871,695 was spent on various neighborhood improvement projects during the current year. This was $501,343
(135.4%) more than was spent in the previous year,

» Interest and cther costs totaled 31,622,569 this year which was $238,486 (12.8%) less than the previous year.
This decrease resulted from making scheduled principal and interest payments during the current and previous
VEar.

s Parks and recreation expenses totaled $4,846,823 this year which was $844,292 (21.1%) more than the previous
year. This year’s expenditures include $81,052 and $407,504 in operating expenses from Shawnee Park Center
and “Cape Splash™ farnily aquatic park, respectively. This was the first vear of operation for the Shawnes Park
Center which opened in the spring of 2011 and the first complete year of operation for Cape Splash which
opened Memorial Day of 2010, Both facilities were constructed using the parks / storm water sales tax, Total
operating expense for Cape Splash was $138,196 in the previous year.

« This year's financial statements included expenditures totaling $137,691 from City controlled foundations that
were not included in the financial statements in the previous vear. This year's depreciation costs were $837.596
which was $338,604 (67.90%) more than previous year. This mainly resulted from equipment purchases and
facility construction funded by the parks / storm water sales tax,

»  Public safety expenses totaled $12,311,981 this year which was $271,429 (2.2%) less than the previous year.
Personnel costs totaled $10,273,710 during the current year. This was $53,554 (.5%) more than the previous
year. Personnel costs include 3 fire fighter positions that were partially funded by a grant. Associated grant
revenue totaling $61,185 15 included in the City’s operating grant and contribution revenue for the current year.
Other grant related operating expenses declined $91,880 (21.5%) during the current year.
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Expenses from governmental activities {continued)

»  Public works expenses totaled $6,956,715 this year which was $224,864 (3.3%) more than the previous year,
Included in this year's expenses is depreciation expense totaling $4,736,008 which was $260,113 (5.8%) more
than the previous year and personnel costs totaling $1,094,012 which was $29,304 (2.8%) more than the
previous year.

The current year includes the following significant changes in public works expenditures: (1) amounts spent on
traffic control maintenance declined $39,790 (80.1%4) to $9,886 (2) internal lease charges for equipment
increased $16,157 (8.0%) to $218,183 (3) amount spent on street maintenance and snow removal supplies
decreased $£36,177 {18.9%) to $155,553.
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The illustration above makes it clear that all the governmental activities and business-type activities of the City
with the exception of water required a subsidy by taxpayers. General revenues in these activities, which include
transfers from special revenue sales taxes, were sufficient to provide adequate subsidies for both the
governmental and business-type activities.
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Revenses by Source -
Governmental Activities
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The above chart summarizes the sources of
revenue from government activities. The three
main sources of revente and their share oftotal
governmental revenues are sales tax (52.4%),
other taxes {19.2%) and charges for services
(10.2%).

The City’s general sales tax represents 36.7
percent of the tatal sales tax revenue and 44.7
percent of the total general fund revenues, The
remaining sales taxes are for parks, storm water,
transportaticn, sewer, water, and public safety
projects.

The general fund accounts for 64.9% and 29.1%
of the other tax and service charge revenue
respectively. This represents 29.1% and 6.9% of
the total genera! fund revenues respectively.

Business-tvpe activities. Business-type activities
increased the City of Cape Girardeau’s net assets
by $4,534,628 (compared to $6,008,777 in the
previous fiscal vear}. Excluding transfers from
government activities, business-type net assets
decreased 32,120,214 and 32,387,928,
respectively, during the last two years. These
decreases were offset by transfers from
governmental activities totaling $7,0584,842 and

$8,396,705, respectively, during the past two years.

Transfers of sales tax revenue for bond payments

totaling $1,702,899 and operating subsidy transfers

from the general and parks / storm water sales tax

funds totaling $836,147 make up 24.1% and 11.9%

of this year’s total transfers, respectively. Last year
these transfers totaled $1,750,307and $879,323,
respectively and represented 20.8% and 10.5% of
that year's transfers. Transfers of water systam
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improvements lo the water fund decreased $1,535,944
from the previous vear to $1,160,583 this year, Park
and storetwater system improvements totaling $741,272
and $74,972 werg transferred to the sewer, golf, and
softball complex funds this year. Last vear these
transfers were $2,552,677 and $573,158, respectively.

The net change in assets before transfers and general
revenues in the sewer, water, solid waste, golf, and
softball operations totaled $(2,035,535), $393,503,
(203,959), $(193,381), and ${460,232), respectively,
this year. This compares 1o $(2,424,206), $107,013,
208,590, $(401,639), and $(437,070), respectively, in
the previous year,

Revsnues ft;r buginess-type aciiviles
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Cape Girardzau uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s
governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City’s financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
usefu! measure of the City’s net resources available
for spending at the end of a fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2011, the City’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of
$25,664,527, a decrease of $1,787,829 (6.5%) from
the prior vear. Unassigned fund balances, which are
available for spending at the City’s discretion,
account for £1,248,674 (4.9%) of the total fund
balances.
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The remainder of the fund balances are classified
as nonspendable, restricted, or assigned to
indicate that they are not available for new
spending. The following are the arnounts and
classification of the remaining fund balances at
June 30,2011 (1) 31,077,475 is classified as
nonspendable because it is either {a) not in
spendabie form or (b) legally or contractually
requited (o be maintained intact {2} 321,134,654
is classified as resiricted because it can be spent
only for specific purposes because of restrictions
by external parties, constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation 3) $2,200,724 is classified as
assigned because its expenditure is constrained
by the City’s intent to use it for specific
purposes.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of
the City. Atthe end of fiscal year ending June
30, 2011, unassigned fund balance of the general
fund was $1,41 1,069 while total fund balance
was $6,450,686. As a measure of the general
fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare
both unassigned fund balance and total fund
balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved
fund balance represents only 6.0 percent of total
general fund expenditures including transfers.
However, included in the reserved fund balance
is $3,735,645, which had been reserved to meet
the City Charter's emergency reserve
requirement. This amount represents 135.8
percent of total general fund expenditures
including transfers and could be used if an
emergency was declared by the City Council,

The Governmentzl Funds Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance shows
that the total fund balance of the City of Cape
Girardeau’s general fund increased by $930,338
during the current fiscal year. However, the
General Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes of Fund Balance
prepared on a budget basis shows a current fiscal
year increase of $980,504. Differences between the
amounts reflected in the two statements can be
found in the Notes to Budgetary Comparison
Schedules found on pages 82 to 85.

The original adopted general fund budget for the
fiscal vear ending June 30, 2011 had a surplus of
revenues over expenditures of $36,791. The
actugl general fund results increased fund
balances by $980,504. Significant deviations
from this budget are detailed below:
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o0 Sales tax revenue was $179,600 (2.06%)
more than the previous year, which was
£141,105 (1.61%) more than projected for the
adopted budget. The adopted budget projected
revenues that were 1% above the projected
fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 revenues,
Actual revenue for fiscal year ending June 30,
2010 increased 1.55% from than the previous
year while the budget had assumed it would
increase only 1%.

6 Franchise tax revenue was $513,775
(13.4%&) more than the previous year. The main
factor leading to this increase was a $368,386
{13.3%) increase in revenues collected from
Ameren, the City’s provider of natural gas and
electricity. Payments received on natural gas
sales only declined $19,468 {2.4%) from the
previous year even though natural gas rates
were approximately 3.5% lower during the
current year, Payments received on electricity
sales increased $387,854 (19.4%) as a result of
rate that averaged 13.9% higher than the
previous year and summer that was hotter than
the previous year

During the current year the City received
payments in lieu of franchise taxes from its
water and sewer funds totaling $479,616. This
was $32,312 (7.2%) greater than the previous
vear, In the current vear the water and sewer
funds increased their residential and
commercial rates by 5%.

Franchise tax paid during the current year by
the City’s telecommunication and cable TV
servige providers increased $97,065 (39.2%)
and 316,013 (4.4%), respectively, from the
previous year. During the year the City received
$49,600 in back taxes from T- Mobile.

Franchise tax revenue was $523,500 (13.7%)
more than projected for the adopted budget.
Franchise taxes from telecommunications,
City"s water and sewer, electric utilities, cable
TV exceeded their budgets by $127,193
{58.5%), $20,422 (4.5%), 8390,073 (2.5%), and
$1,716 (.5%), respectively. Franchise tax from
natueal gas utilities was $15,%04 (2.0%) below
it projected budget.

o Real estate and personal property tax
revenue increased $3,654 (3%) over the
previous year and was $3,110 (.2%) less than
the projected budget.
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Final adjusted assessed value of real estate
ncreased 34,198,497 (1.0%) over the
previous year while final adjusted assessed
value of personal property decreased
3,420,388 (3.6%) from the previous year.
The adopted budget for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2011 had assumed 1.0%
and 0.0% assessed value growth,
respectively. State law allowed the City to
increase its levy rate by 5% during the
current year.

o  Business license revenue increased
$30,348 {2.6%0) over the previous year and
excesded the projected budget by $25,591
{2.2%). The adopted budget for fiscal vear
ending June 30, 2011 had projected
revenue that was equal to actuzal revenue
for fiscal yvear ending June 30, 2009,

o Other license and permit revenue was
$£15,672 (7.2%) Tower this year than the
previous year and was $16,702 (7.6%) less
than projected for the budget, The decline
resulted from a decline in construction
related permits from the previous yesar.

o Intergovernmental revenue exceeded
revenue projected for the budget by
$203,254 (34.4%). This year's
intergovernmental revenue included
$184,162 in revenues from various public
safety capital grants and 528,487 in disaster
relief payments from state and federal
agencies 1o make repairs (o streets and
other ifems damaged during the previous
vear's natural disasters.

o Service charges were 368,530 {4.5%)
less than the previous yvear bul were
$58,185 {4.8%) more than projected in the
budget. Intermal costs charged to various
parks capital projects totaling $56,908 had
1ot been anticipated in the coriginal budget.

o Fines and forfeits revenue was
$181,913 (21.5%) less than the previous
year and was $ 168,618 (20.2%) less than
projected in the budget. There was 3 24.2%
decrease in traffic vielation cases during
the years. The adopted budget for fiscal
year ending June 30, 2011 had assumed
revenue levels equal to year ending
February 2010 levels.
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o During the current fiscal year expenditures
were 562,326 (.3%) more than original budget,
Debt service and operating expenditures were
iess than their original budgets by $7.394
(4.4%) and $129,024 {.7%). Capital
expenditures were $198,744 (971.8%) more
than the original budget,

¢ Transfers to other funds for operating
subsidies were $16,449 ( 4%) more than
original budget and transfers for capiial
expenditures exceeded their original budgets by
$186,803 (12,051.8%%).

Proprietary funds. The City of Cape Girardeau’s
enterprise funds are all presented as major funds for
purposes of this report. As a result, all statoments
related to the enterprisc funds are presented at the
government-wide level. The City does have Internal
Bervice funds, which are reported in totaf on the
Proprietary Fund Statement and consolidated with
other governmental activities on the government-
wide statements,

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Total expenditures and transfers on the final amended
budget were $789,900 (3.4%) more than the original
adopted budget. The changes that were appropriated
by the City Council can be summarized as follows:

o §23,000 to cover costs associated with
implementing electronic council agendz books
and costs asseciated with 4 customer service
survey to establish baselines for tangible results
measurements,

o $135,000 for the cost of equipment to be used at
the City’s emergency operations center.

0 $36,450 to cover the evaluation of the potential
purchase of the federal courthouse and
additional vtility expense.

o $138,000 for costs related to the “Ride the
City" grant, the riverboat gaming Heense, and
other economic development costs,

o $3130,300 for costs related to grant funded
police vehicle accessories, bullet proof vests,
and CERT related expenses and other police
and fire operating expenses.
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o $11,350 for additional electricity costs
associated with the street department.

o $63,350 for additional part-time and
overtime salary costs, unbudgeted
unemployment assessments, additional
utility costs, additional vehicle fuel costs,
unbudgeted small equipment purchases,
and other parks and recreation dperating
expenses.

o 5207300 for the purchase of land adjacent
to the police station and to cover the cost
of various grant funded projects.

¢ $13,150 to cover the purchase of a truck
from the Water Fund and improvements
to the mausoleum.

o $95,000 general fund transfers to cover
shortfalls in the Airport, Sofiball Complex
and Public Safety Trust Funds.

o $30,000 general fund transfers to cover
the city’s portion of costs associated with
grants in Housing Development Grants
and Park Improvement Funds,

o $27,000 peneral fund transfer to the
Equipment Replacement Fund to transfer
proceeds of the city auction.

FExcess general fund revenues and unrestricted
fund balances were used to fund all
appropriations that did not have an identified
funding source.

During the year departments may transfer
budget appropriations between various
gxpense types within their department.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Cape Girardeau’s
investment in capital assets for ifs
governmental and business-type activities as
of June 30, 2011, amounts to $263,067 492
{net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes all land,
buildings and system improvements,
machinery and equipment, and infrastructure
owned by the City.
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Major capital asset events during the current fiscal
year included the following:

¢ Construction costs totaling $3,775,170 on

approved transportation sales tax projects were
inguwrred this year. This tax was originally
approved to complete a specific list of street
projects, which also included amounts for
street repair and overlay, sidewalk
construction and repair, and street light
nstallation and upgrades. $72,266 in costs was
also incurred during the vear on street projects
not included on the transportation sales tax list
of projects.

o Construction costs totaling $1,428,322 on

water system projects were incurred this year.
Major water system improvements included
the instaliation of platforms, foundations,
power supplies and controls to four new wells,
the addition of water main extensions, the
continuation of the two-inch water main
replacement program and the upgrade 1o the
Route W Booster Pump.

o Construction costs totaling $18,940 were

incurred for other improvements. These
projects included flood and storm water
contro] projects and police and fire station
improvements.



CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI

Land
Buildings ard
system
improvenents
improvemenis
other thas
bulldings
Equipment
infrastruciure

Construction in
Drogress

Total

City of Cape Girardeau's Capital Assets
{net of depracigtion)

Govemmental Business-iype
Activity Activities Tatal
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
5,402,766 5,375,506 161,989 161,990 5,564,755 5,537 496

23668879 18,483,406

11,026,808  11.666828
5,785,693 5,082,188
116,018,658 115,573,947

2532,893 5,831,902

2,701,428 2,089 527 26.370.407 20,582,933

85 480,842 85.516.462 95,516.648 98,183,080
4,51527% 5,049,330 10,300,963 11,131,518
- - 16,018,859 115,873,947

5663362 4.646.538 8,298 085 10,578,530

164,536,586 163,823,667

88.531,896 92483 847 283067 442 261,867 514

© Major improvements to the Airport’s
Airfield, Sonth Ramp and Taxiway
amounted to 398,834 in construction

costs. These were primarily funded by an

American Reinvestment and Recovery
Act grant and State Entitlement money.

¢ Through the Depariment of Energy
another ARRA grant was received to
implement energy efficiency and

conservation. Two projects were funded;

the installation of a new roof at the main
fire station and the purchase and
installation of 104 new LED streetlights,

o These projects cost $147,989 and $87,540
raspectively.

o Department of Transportation funds were used
to partially fund the $278,791 spent to expand
the City’s trail system.

o In April 2008 voters approved a 4 cent sales
tax to pay for storm water and park
improvement projects. 374,128 and
$3,760,783 were spent respectively during the
current year on these projects,

Additional information about the City’s capital asseis
can be found in note [J to the financial statements.
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City of Cape Girardeau's QOutstanding Debt
Yesr endsd 2011
Governmenial Business-type
Activity Agtivilies Tnial
2011 2010 251 2010 2011 2010
Notes payabis 692,646 737805 870,117 930,125 1,562,763 1,867,730
Special
abligation
bonds 4,838,002 5,661,524 1,150,626 1,288,048 5,948,628 6,950,570
Revenue bonds 16,218,078 16362923 22861375 2577018  38,178453 42,133,838
Cettificates of
participation - 2100,173 - - - 2100173
General
obdigabon
bornds - - - - - -
Leasehoid
revenue bonds 18233412 18802 521 - - 16,243 412 18,802,821
37983138 42464848 24 882 118 Z7990,086 82 065 258 71,454,032

Long-term debt. At the end of the fiscal year,
the City of Cape Girardean had total debt
outstanding of $62,965,255. Bonded debt
ountstanding totaling $39,179,453 is secured by
revenues of the sewer and water funds and
capital improvement sales taxes. The repayment
of the remaining debt is subject to annual
appropriations.

The City’s tota! debt decreased by $8,489,676
{-11.9%) during the year. During the previous
year the City received 2 $1,000,000 ARRA direct
loan commitment from the State of Missouri to
be used to complete the new raw water
transmission main. At the end of the current year
the City had used the entire $1,000,000
commitment,

16

During the year the City used proceeds from the sale
of land to the Isle of Capri and debt service reserves
to prepay $1,960,000 of the 2001 Certificates of
Participation. These certificates bad originally been
issued to construct a manufacturing facility at the
Cape Girardeau Regional Airport.

Regularly scheduled principal payments and
amortization of bond premivms / discounts resulted
in outstanding long-term debt being reduced by
$6,952,382.

More information about the City's outstanding debt
can be found in note B to the financial statements.
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Economic Factors and the Nexi Year’s Budget

Residential development reflects the national
economy. Values of residential permits issued
during the year were 37.5% below the previous
year’s values and was 81.4% below, fiscal year
ending June 30, 2007 values. Commercial
development remains steady. Values of
commercial permits issued during the year were
13.1% above the previous year’s values and was
only 8.7% below, fiscal year ending June 30,
2007 values.

Commercial and residential permits valued at
$30.2 million and $5.1 million were issued this
vear. Commercial and residential permits valued
at $26.7 million and $8.1 million were issued in
the previcus year. Only 19 single family
residence building permits totaling $2,760,860
were issued during the current year compared to
34 totaling $3,222,898 in the previous year,

Local employment continues to be stronger that
state and national employment. The Cape
Girardeau County unadjusted unemployment rate
was only 6.7% in October 201 1.This compares
favorably with the statewide and national
unadijusted unemployment rates which were of
8.5% and 9.0% respectively. The unemployment
rates were 7.3%, 9.4% and 9.6% for the county,
state, and nation, respectively, for the previous
October. City construction projects related 1o s
transportation sales tax and parks and storm
water sales provide significant support to local
construction employment.

During the year Blair Best Box purchased a
commereial facility previously occupied by
Thorngate Ltd., a high-end men’s clothing
manufacturer that had ceased operations at its
Cape Girardeau plant, Blair Best Box made a
$2.5 investment in the property and hired
approximately 60 people to make recyclable
packaging.

In October 2010 T Maxx opened a store in the
former Goody's store that had been vacant for
more 1.5 vears. This store produced an additional
30 jobs.

Construction has also begun on an $8 million
retail facility that will house Menards, & home
improvement store. The new store is expected to
employ approximately 150 people.
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In December 2010 the Isle of Capri announced plans
for a 3125 million casino development in the
downtown area. Construction on the project began
this spring and should be completed and operational
by December 2012, The development should employ
approximately 450 people and produce an estimated
33 million of addifional annunal tax revenue for the
City afier its opening.

During the year the City continued to enhance its
position as a regional medical center. Both hospitals
have recently opened major new facilities.
SoutheastHEALTH opened a new Cancer Center and
Saint Francis Medical Center opened a Heart
Hospital and Cancer Institute,

Taxable sales subiect to the City’s general sales tax
increased 2.06% during the current year. Since the
City is heavily dependent on sales tax revenue for
support of its general fund services, any growth of
local retail sales can have a positive impact on the
City’s ability to fund services in the future,

The state Hancock Amendment requires the City
obtain simple majority voter approval to increase any
permit or license fee that is not based on actual costs
t0 the user and strictly limits the City’s ability to
increase its real estate and personal property tax
levies to support its general services such as police
and fire protection. The City Charter requires voter
approval 1o increase sewer, water, and solid waste
fees by more than 5% in any year. All other user fees
can be adjusted 10 cover actual costs.

Improving retail economy, Sales tax is a significant
revenue source of the City and is a barometer of the
local economy. In the current year sales tax revenue
from the general sales tax increased 2,1% while
inflation grew ar 1.8%. In the previous year sales tax
revenue from the general sales 1ax increased 1.6%
while inflation grew at .8 %.

Although there has been some sales tax revenue
increase during the past 3 years, there has been very
little cumulative growth during those years. Sales tax
revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011 was
only 2.0% more than it was for the fiscal year ending
Tune 30, 2008, During that timeframe inflation
averaged increasing 1.5% per vear,

The City’s restaurant gross receipi tax and
hotelfmotel gross receipt tax increased 4.6%% and
7.3%, respectively, during the current year, In the
previous year they increased 2.5% and decreased
12.0%, respectively,
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Regional retail center. Through most of the
1960°s Cape Girardeau continued to be a
regional retai] center for much of Southeast
Missouri and Southern Illinois. During the latter
part of the 1990°s Cape Girardeau began to lose
its share of the retail market to other cities in the
region as these cities added additional retail
outlets in their communities.

SALES TAX COMPARISON

EYOB FY09 FY10 F¥11

Cape Girardeau 412%  411% 41.7%  A19%
Carbondaie 288% 27.7% 27.9% 27.8%
Jackson 8.9% §.8% 8.5% 8%
Perryville 7 1% 7.4% 7.4% 7.2%
Sikeston 13.3%  13.5% 12.8% 13.4%
100 0% 100.0%  100.0%  100.0%

The previous table, which includes the City of
Cape Girardeau and significant retail centers
within a 50 mile radius, shows the percentage of
estimated sales made by each City to the total
estimated sales of the five cities. During the
current year it appears that trend of the City
increasing its share of the local market is
continuing,

Local Economic Development.

During the current year the City provided
$50,000 of public improvements associated with
the new TJ Maxx store and entered into a
development agreement that will pay up 10 $2
million dollars for public improvements at the
new Menards store, These improvements will be
paid from additional sales tax generated from
this project.

In the previous 7 years the City has entered into
3 long-term development agreements to
reimburse companies for the public
improvements associated with 3 retail
development projects from the additional sales
tax generated from those projects. The
agreements have resulted in the addition of one
major new retailer, the relocation and expansion
of another major retailer, and in the conversion
of a former Sears’s facility into a call center for
National Asset Recover Services (NARS).

Payment made by the City pursuant to these
agreements totaled 51644 15 during the current
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year. Payments totaling $971,414 have been made
since the beginning of these agreements.

During the year the City spent $64,702 in support of
Cape Girardeau Area Magnet, as a result of their
membership in that organization. This organization
actively solicits business, industry and commerce for
the greater Cape Girardeau area which includes
neighboring cities Jackson and Scett City and all of
Cape Girardeau County.

Budget for fiscal vear ending June 30, 2012 and
financial condition The adopted general fund budget

for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, was
projected to produce a $2,22%2 surplus,

The adopted general fund budget in¢luded a 2% wage
increase effective July 1, 2011 and included projected
revenue based on conservative revenue assumptions.
The approved general fund budget projected adequate
revenue to cover its projected personne! and
operating costs and 364,990 in capital costs.

The current budget's health ¢osts appear to have
stabilized as a result of a change to a more consumer
based health coverape beginning January I, 2008.
Charges required to fund maximum estimated claims
did not increase January 1, 2011 and will only
increase 3.0% on January 1, 2012,

The City’s current financial position had improved
during the past coupe of years and is good in that it
has more than adequate fund balance to cover
existing claims and potential emergencies, However,
its financial condition or its ability to provide enough
reoccurring revenues to meet its reoccurring needs is
still Jess than desirable. Funding of equipment for the
general and airport funds, excluding police, fire, and
various park divisions is still inadequate.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general
overview of the City of Cape Girardean's finances
for all those with an interest inn the City’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the
Finance Director, City of Cape Girardeau, PO Box
617, Cape Girardeau, MO 63702-0617.
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ABBETS

Cash and cash equivalents
investments

Taxes receivable

Litifity charges receivable
Bpecial assessmenis receivable
interest receivable

Other receivalles

Notes receivable

Motor fuel receivable
Grants recelvable

intarnal balances
Inventory

Prepaid iterms

Restricied cash and cash eguivalents
Restricted investments
Land

Buildings

Cther improvements
Equipment

Infrastructure

Construction in process

Tolai assels

City of Cape Girardesu
SBtatement of Net Assots
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Primary Government

Govarnmental Business-typa
Activities Activities Total

$  3.367,624.74 $ 363,724.18 $ 373154892
23,240,724.16 7,.917,950.67 M,158,674.23
4,421,245.09 . 4,421,245 08
. 2,174,491 83 2,174,491.83
486,463.02 63.722.24 550,185,28
114,847 67 35,504.62 150,732.28
327.435.60 23,417.42 350,853.02
246,642,865 - 246,642,858
116,155.53 - 115,155.53
596,8003.40 89.478,40 £66,281.80

§34,598.73 (534,588.73} -
221,604.26 476,958,368 698,602,564
585 068,40 205,934.59 791,002,95
- 2.253,958.29 2,253,958.29
- 3.370,474.34 3,370.474.34
5,402,765.51 161,984.55 5564,755.06
73,668,979.26 2,701,428.03 26,370,407.29
11,026,806.39 85,489,841.64 96,516,6848.03
5,785.502 46 4,515,275.42 10,300,967.88
116,018,558 .80 - 116,018,658.69
2.632,603.28 5863,362.10 8,296,055.38

$ 198,795,009.05

$ 114,953,332.37

$ 313,748,341.42
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LIABLLITIES

Accounts payable

Salaries and benefits payable
Interest payable

Oiher ilabiitios

Estimated claims

Due to oiher governmenis
Unearmned revenues

Estimated iandfil post closure cosis
Current portion fong-term debt:
Motes payable

Revenue bonds payable
Leasehokl revenue bonds payable
Special obligation bonds payable
Long-term dabi net of current portion.
MNotes payable

Revenue bonds payable
Leasehold revenue bonds payable
Special obligation bonds payable
Compensated absences payable
Net OPEB Obligaton

Total liabiiities

NET ASBETS

Invested in capital assets, net of relaled debt
Restricted for debi service

Restricted for depreciation and replacement
Restricted for amergengy fund

Reskicted for Mausoleum

Restricted for River Campus Project
Restricted for Local Accass Channel
Resiricted for Operation and Malntenance
Uneestricted

Tolal net assets

City of Cape Girardeau
Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Primary Government

Governmental
Activitles

Business-type
Activities

Total

§ 1,967.047 47

$ 132820375

3 320525122

657,364.96 177,603.10 §34.568.06
55167862 448 201.35 897 779.97
248 642 09 582,843.53 831,285.62
298,000.00 - 2398,000.00
2,208,77 5388368 §6,190.45
57.967.60 - 57,967 .60

- 45,500.00 45,500.00

25122.00 30,004.00 58,126.00
1,235,800.00 3,203,000.00 4,438.800.00
1,895,000.00 - 1,885,000.00
£33,000.00 130,000.00 8965,000.00
667 524.22 840,1413.00 1,507,637.22
14,882,278.23 i8,708,374.27 34,740,682.50
14.338,411.04 . 14,338,411.84
4,004,001.51 1,020,646.43 5,024,627.94
816,676.02 131,342.37 548,018.38
1,862,477.00 264,504.00 2,226.981.00
44,555,008.33 28,022,100.48 72,577,198.81

127,938,045.12
21,529.13
4810,136.00
§0,265.62
107,923.84
4,754.91
13,170.76
2115408534

73,723,340 85
1,121,666.67
1,577.000.00
1,934,372.00

-

8,574,552.57

201,661,385.77
1,143,195.80
1,577,000.00
5,844,508 .00
§0,265.62
107,523.84
4,754.81
13,170.78
28,728,937 .91

$ 15423961072

$  85931,23188

$ 241,171,142.61
RS S v
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http:551,578.62
http:657,364.96
http:1,967,047.47

City of Cape Glrardean
Statement of Actlvities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net {Expense) Revenue and
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Total primary governman

Progrem Revenues Changes in Net Agsels
Primary Government
Capitat Grants
Charges for Operating Grants and Governmental Buginses-type
Functlong/Frograms Expenses Services and Contributions Contrititions Anthvities Activities Total
Primary government:
Qovernmmenial activisies:

Admiristralive $ 550878830 $ 1,582,862.40 $ 228385 68 3 §0,388.51¢ 8 {3844 10061} 3 - {3.644,180.81)
Capital iImprovemenis 432 89581 - - FES 0328 331,004,854 - 33400484
Devsiopment Services 3,032,809.13 B02,585.47 BEE 54204 - {1,544, 777.32} - {1,541,777.32}
Interast and other COSS 1.822,508.40 - - - {1,822 565 48; - {1,622 568.46}
Parks and Recrealion 4,848, 82247 1,430,198.88 40,5068.68 174,348.81 {3,201,870.50} - {3,201,870.80}
Public Satety 12,311,881.43 768,219.20 ABR I 23 143,260.50 (10,9'14,448.50} - 10,014 148 .50}
Public works 8.556,714.84 140,039.48 138,268.24 1,121,283.57 {5,557,123.35) " {5,557,123.35)

Total governmental activities 34,709 481.84 4,723,807.23 1,581,808, 37 2052002 14 [26,150,774.20) - {28,150,774.20)

Business-ty pe Activities:

Golf Course 697,753.49 485,149.23 - 18,222.90 - (193,381.38) {193,381.36)
Sewer 5,910,891.12 3.713,789.35 58,034,685 104,822.41 " (2,035,534.71) {2,0025,534.71)
Softball Comnplex 878,183.51 216,485 62 - 476,17 - (460,231.52) {460,231.52)
Solid Waste 3,381,135,88 3,175,858,13 1,319.5% - - {203,959.24) (203,959.24)
Water 8,327,558,1% 5,419,706.50 10,420.30 282,844.04 - 395,502.62 395,502.62

Total business-type activities 16.§06,532.18 14,015,058.03 58 874,48 417,185 49 - (2,497,504.21) (2,487,604, 21}

% 51706.015.13

$18,7365.995.28

3 1.856C.482 63

3 ZBT0.E7 63

(2B,150,774.20)

{2,497,604.21)

(8,546 378 .41}

Sea Accompanying Notes to Bagic Financial Staternents,
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FuncionaPrograms

City of Cape Girardosu
Statement of Agtivities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net {Expense) Revenue and

Primary government:

Govemnmental astivites:

Pregram Revenues Changes in Nel Assets
Erimary Government
Capitat Grants
Charges for Cperating Grants and Govarnmenta! Business-type
Expernsas Services and Contributions Contributions Actlvitles Activities Total
Gerieral revenues:
Property taxes 1,8584,759.00 - 1.854,759.00
Sales laxes 24,282,753.60 - 24,262,758 68
Franchige taxes 4,351,807 .33 - 4,351,897.33
Motor fuel taxss 1,555,845.42 - 4,355,945.43
Converdion and tourism laxes 1.796,534.82 - 1,756, 534,92
Merchant licenses 1.188,500.81 . 1,186,500.81
Liguor icenses 64,027 .57 - 54,077 .57
Crther laxes 167,345.35 - 187,345.35
Unrestricted grants and contributions 109,286.77 - 104,288,777
Unrestricted invesiment sarmings 62324118 324,153.52 944,304.71
Gair: on sale of assels 266,697 .08 55,005.93 341,709.91
Cther non-operating revenues . 1,230.61 1,230,851
Special itern 1,828,343.32 - 1.628,343.32
Transters {7 154 841 oH) 7,064 84198 -
Todaf genesal reversmes 30,703,488, 37 7.,432,232.04 A8 135 718,41
Change in net assets 4052,712.47 4,634 627 83 B, 487 340.00
Nat assets - beginning 149,702,202 .28 82,004,748.85 231,708,050.94
Prior pericd adjustment 11500374} {8 144 .58} {23,145.33}

Net assais - ending

Spe Accompanying Notes {o Basic Financial Statements,

$ 154.239,610.72

§ £653123168

3 244,171, 142,61
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City of Cape Girardeau
Balance Sheel
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2041

Other Total
Park and Trans Sales Tax Park Proj from Governmental Governmental
General Airport Recreation Trust Fund il Farke Sales Tax Fuis Funds
ASSETS
Current asssts:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 150,571.46 & 2,137.06 & 31,849.7C 3 257,843.68 $ 244 B85 .41 % 2475.207.63 $ 316229494

Investments 3092,870.66 47 38862 §52,000.47 5,670,613.85 965,441.03 8,280,233.72 18,748,845.35

Recgivables-
Real estats {axes, net 5451185 - - - - 17.168.02 7167987
Persunal property taxes, net 10,187.31 - - - - 1.902.51 12,068.82
Sales tax 887,281.55 - - - - 1,537,144.55 2.424 426,10
Franchise tases 1,768,484 52 - - - - - 1,758,484 52
Hotal & mote] tax - - - - - 59,569.95 58,589.95
Restaurant tax - - - - " 84,965.03 94,595.03
Spaclal assessments 101,528.73 - - - - 384 .934.29 486.463.02
Cthet B7 54115 157,074 .47 60,2480 893213 682,50 3,126.51 317.603.368
Interest 10,404.33 167.74 2,558.08 20,458,230 17.136.26 48,867.91 99,662 52
Motor fuel tax - . . - - B4,170.57 84,170.57
Vehicie license fees - - . - - 12,182.20 12,192.20
Molor vehicie sales lax - - - - - 19,792.78 18,792.78
Grants 317 .675.81 §9,125.28 - 57,790.62 - 131,446.69 5986,038.40
Otnar funds 285,089.02 - . - - . 285 058.02

Inventory 18575 259.980.71 7.913.45 - . 12,230,14 50,220.05

Prepaid ifems 125,999.25 16,722.00 2.871.41 - - 13,941.04 159,533,70
Total Current assets: 6,682,281.19 342.593.80 747.,535.81 6,015,938.58 1,227,948 20 13,176,943.32 25,443,251.98

Noncurrent assoets:

Advances 1o other funds 015,44%.97 - - - . - 518,441.07
Total Noncurrent assets: 916,441,897 - - - - - 916,441.97

Total assels $ 7.798733.18 § 342.593.88 § 797,539.81 $ 601593858 $ 1,22754520 3 1317684302 0§ 20,358,695.95




LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES
Current Habilities;
Accounts payable
Salarias and benafits payable
Cther labilties
Due to other govemmants
Payable to other funds
Unearned revenues
Deferrad revenues

Total Current flabilities;

Non current liabiiities:

Advances from other funds

Total Non current liabilities:
Total liabilities

Fund balances;

Nonspendabie
Restricted
Assigned
Unagsigned

Total fund balances

Total Fabifities and fund
balances

City of Capse Girardeau
Baiance Sheet
Governmental Funds

For the Year Endad Juns 30, 2011

Other Total
Park and Trans Sales Tax Park Proj from Governmental Govermnental
Ganaral Alrport Recreation Trust Fund 1 Parks Sales Tax Funds Funds
§ 495055109 $ 125549.06 § 215158.72 5 20327548 $ 304,522.47 § 365,901 49 $ 1,800,058.31
443 609 .80 22.107.73 93,190.498 . - 48100 588,718.79
176,551.23 47.559.55 20,081.27 - - 445047 248.642.22
- - - - - 2,206.654 2206684
- - - - - 285,059.02 285,058.02
17.000.60 1.694.00 49,273 60 - " - B7.967.60
215,234 65 - - - - H507,279.32 72251397
1,348,046.77 196,910.34 382,704.54 203,275.48 394,522 .47 1,168,706.95 3,695,166.55
1,348,046.77 196,910.34 382,704.54 203,275.48 394,622.47 1,169,706.95 3,695,166.55
1,044,541,22 16,722.00 2,871.44 - - 13,340.04 1,077 47487
3,828,565,53 - - 5,812,663.40 B33,422.73 10,663,003.14 21,137 854,50
166.510.21 128,961.54 411,963.86 - - 1.483,288.36 220072397
1,411,066,43 - - - - {162,38517) 1,248,674.25
6,450,680, 39 145,683,54 414,835.27 5,812,663.10 833.422.73 12,007 226.37 25,864,527 40
8 776873316 3 54259388 5 79753981 0S5 S01503858 0§ 12704520 5 137enaad: % 2938060305
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City of Cape Girardeau
Recanciltation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 20611

Fund batances of governmental funds 3 25,664,627.40

Amounts reported for govemmental activilies in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Long-tern tiabilitias, incluging bonds payable, are not due and payable in the cusrent {32416,988.31)
pérind and therefore are not repoded in the funds,

Capital assets used in governmenial activities are not financial resources and, 162 694,571.98

therefore, are not reporded in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation of

367 .500,949.27.

Internal service funds are used by managernent to charge the costs of management 5.950.588.01

information systems, fleet management, employes fringe benefits, workmen's
compensation, and eguiprent replacement to individual funds,

Chher long-term asgels are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, 72251387
therefore are deferred in the funds.

Other accrued expenses which are not payable frar current-period revenues {1,405,290.33;
are inciuded in governmental activities in the statement of net agsets.

Net assets of governmental activitles 5  154,238,910.72
T ——
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REVENUES
Tared
bicensea & pernits
lergovemmern
Charges for sepvicus
Inernal charges
Fines and forfeits
Miscolanedous
frvastnend revenue
Special posassments

Folal revonties

EXPEMNDITURES
Gurrerl:
Administrative
Gapitel Improvemenis
Daveloprvent Services
Parks and Recrealion
Public Sefely
Pubiic Works
Debt Sepvice:
Admiviskrative chergis
Intetest
Princpal
Capitsl outiay
Totel ewpendiures
Excess (Geficency} of
TRVIIGE Over
axpenditures

(OTHER FINANCING
SOURLCES (USES;
Tranafers out
Transfers in
Bond procoesds
Assal disposition
Total other finandng
sources and sses
Nel Change in furt
halances befom special em
Spocial [rem
Nzl Change in {und
balances afler specil [leot
Fund balmwees - egirning
Prior pediod adhastinent
Fund balances - anding

Ststemant of Revenyos, Expenditures, and Shanges In Fund RBalances

Gy of Cape Girardeau

Govammaentzl Funds
For the Year Ended dune 35, 20011

Qther Tatal
Park ani Trans Seles Tax Park Projecis from Goyarmmental Gavermmantal
Gunaral Alspat. Hacreation Trust Fund i Pkt Sates Tex Fury Funda
$ 15080.989.21 3 - H - $ 1810,513.33 - §  14,B53,104.54 § 32.544.887.08
1,388,588.45 - - - - 7.380.00 1,395,064 45
626.792.27 22058314 - BE4,125.58 - 3,0686.837.38 503841634
415,388 83 A2T.BDA.54 1,185,656.13 . - 56,530.24 1.816.792.22
1,498,461.52 - H03.32 - “ - 1,100.864.65
85741328 - B - - - 857 413.38
456,014 .85 8562 14,555 86 - - #1.43972 180,257 47
59,088.52 70434 87933 116,662.72 Frassal 284076.89 £37 so000
15,049.37 - - - 137 03542 15BBERTH
16,904 ,008.61 757.038.54 $,479,220.42 3.621,301.60 27,685.41 18,5306,200.99 44 028 084.57
1.744 658,13 115218222 - N - 1,937 52888 4,804.280.14
. w - . 1838519 - 1825518
2020,847 18 " - anpas’s - ATBIB1.24 A8 07818
1.768.440.35 2081282448 - - 11281013 kR RS 4
T1,381,171.42 - - - 02802 11,800,100.34
2.221,.350.07 - ~ - - - 2227 359.07
105178 “ - - 67,400.52 68,580.32
47,061 52 - " - “ 1,533,54368 1,800.%05.18
§1,000.00 - B - - 5,7B8,558.78 5.880.558.78
150 758 40 - 17.400.25 3,439,347 .68 3,760.78298 2,633,806.35 10,010.801.64
19,470,664 55 1,152 193 32 2,108,681.74 350028772 3,780,138.14 13,352 848,20 43,374,8%1.78
4234 312.05 {304.552.79) DR AT1.30) 124,063 68 {3,78247T2.73) 5,175.414.70 §54 23278
{4,207 BA1.A%) (261,782.00) (1,818.50 - 246,364t {12,064, 378,87} {18,213,000.83)
AB77 24877 T23,624.05 1,068,045 25 350,000.00 41536382 4,480,417 88 15,733,740,77
- . - - - ALTT06 30 4227708,
2635082 47.50 8,274 98 - - 250,791 0C 285,484 40
456 .0268.24 461,8680.75 1003 888,71 250 00000 187 01847 {6,940 481 48) 4,372 068 36}
830,330.28 #7025 656 183,085.39 471,p02.88 {3,585,453.30) {1,765,048.78) 3.717.836.57)
- . - - - 1,015,343.32 5,628.343.32
BILI3E.28 H7.335.96 163,905.38 47100288 (3585453 30y {196,034 £2.089,4592.25)
5,620,348.11 B9 H52.86 250,848 88 5,341 850,22 AATBATROG 12,145 4658534 27787064 44
W.oty {11,50528) - - - (1,558.50} {13083 783
$ 545058030 5 145883.54 $ 414 435 27 5 581286310 83342273 $ 1200723837 $ 2506452740
fizecoae et e L
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City of Capy Girardeau

Reconcillstion of the Statement of Revenues, Expendiures,
and Changas in Fund Balencey of Governmantat Funds o the Statement of Activitiss

Forihe Yaar Ended June 3, 2011

Nal chenge in tund balences ~lolal govemmental fundy §  (2.005,403.28)
Amtunis reported {or povemmente’ aciivites inthe siatemen] of acliviies
are diflerent bacause:

Reductions of debl eme reported in thie fund Rnancial 4,941, 166.00

1l 1% 55 an exp but gre ot includasd in the
govemmant wide siolement of activitien,

Govermenial tund repovt capital sufeys py sxpenditures. 1,045,053.37
Hewvever, in tha sidlament of activities, the coal of thoss

assels are aliocaled ovar their eatimaeied usefut iives arid

repeeted ay deprecialon expense. Thig is the amounl by

which depracistion expense excosded copital cullays In

the curren period.

witmal service furls pre used by menegement In chargs 674,133.25
the costs of management information syslems, fieet
managrment, employee fringe benefils, wiriunan's
sengeton, snd squitsnent rapl o individual
funda.

Other long-tas assels are nol avallable & pay for Guerent- (112,947 47)
period expenditures and. therelore are deferrad in e
furds.

Some expensas reported in the sisternent of activities do not #4.300.26
regquie the use of carant finencel rescuroes snd, therafors,
wre not reported By expenditures in guverrimarial tundy.

C:hange in net azsels of yovemmental eclivitiss $ 48527127
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ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents

Invesiments

Lititities charges, net
Special assessments

Other

Motes receivable
Inferest

Grants

Invenlory
Prepald lems

Total Currents assels:

Noncurent assels:
Rest Cash and Cash Eguivalenis

Rest invesiments
Land

Buildings
Equipment

Other improvernents
Consiruction in progress
Accumulated depreciation

Toial Noncurrent assets;
Total assels

City of Cape Girardeau
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 20, 2011

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Total Gov, Activities
Proprielery Imernal Service
Sewer Water Solid Waste Golf Covrse Softball Complex Fungs Funds
$ 141,428.47 $ 15595563 % 56,842 91 § 3,687.61 5,700.56 $ 363,724.18 §  2055208.80
3,068,087.79 3,397.856.35 1.245,985.00 80.719,37 124,401.47 7. 817,950.07 4 AB1TTREBY
858,593.20 883,287.37 432,641.26 - - 2,174 401,83 -
47,808.21 15,913.03 - - - 83,722.24 -
21,133.97 428.01 282 1,773.47 7865 234517.42 9.832.24
- - - - - - 246,842 86
8,167.85 22 434.91 450743 28713 457,30 35,884 62 15,254.15
56,996.53 10,850.41 1,310.51 - 311,88 8947840 765.00
- 454 493 78 - 651474 15.983.86 476.988.28 171,284.21
101,196.47 7742603 2651382 656.92 141,35 205,934 50 96,251 .96
4,304 31348 5018671.52 1.767,882.64 §3548.94 147 085 14 11,431,601 73 5,237 33003
2,138 83848 114,84502 i73.78 - - 2,25395829 -
137,7874% 3,227 87185 4,814 90 - - 337047434 -
49,750.00 - $12,230.55 " - 161,888.55 37.500.00
8,078,348.00 22354663 1.051,146.72 144,283.00 93126425 10,424 ,656.80 53,006.45
3,233,18007 1,962,248.77 3516,283.99 134 468,83 148,376.37 ©,084,538.13 4 5BB 507 .14
70.319,879.35 48,170,888 .46 33313282 187274442 1.557,842.35 122,354 GBT.50 155,653.19
1,693,214.01 3.851,424.189 7,391.00 11,332.80 - 5.,663,362.10 10,526.18
{32,642,778.34) {13,346,935.86) {2,422,746.64) {801 47845} {152,796.85) {49,166,737.14} (3,005,065.35)
53.007 586.07 44 304,060.16 270244827 1,657 320,80 2484 4RB 12 104,156 329,37 1,641,023.81
$ 57,312280.56 § 45,322 78168 $ 447032886 $1,750,960.74 $ 283157128 § 115.487,931.40 § 7,078,962 84
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LIABILITIES

Cirrend Habililies:
Accourds payable
Sataries and benefits payable
interesi payable
Cther liabilities
Estimated claims payable
Duse to other govemments
Deferred revenues
Payabie to other furks
Advarwes from other funds
Notes Payable
Revenue bonds payable
Spocial oblig bonds payable

Tolal Cument liabilities:

Noncurrent ligbilitias:
Net GPER Obligation
Advances from other funds
Notes Payabie
Revenue bonds payable
Special oblig boris payable
Est landfill post closure cost

Total Non current liabilities:
Total Eabilifies

NET ASSETS
Irvasted in capital assets, net of relaled
Restricted for deld service
Restricted for depr and reéglacement
Restricted for emergency fund
Unrestricted

Toltal net assels

Gity of Cape Girardeau
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Adjustrnents 1o reffect the consolidalion of interndl service fund activilles relatad o enterpriss fundy’ net assets of business.lype aclivities

5 863931231488

S ———

Total Gov, Activilies
Proprietary Internat Service
Sewer Waler Solid Waste Golf Course Soflbali Complex Funds Funds
464,113,685 64474213 $ 13018721 $ 2018559 5 68,974.87 $  1.328,203.75 $ 166,985.15
105,566,284 47,.208.62 T3,218.41 48,856.12 67,087.08 A0B.BAGAT 51,373.00
303,454 47 35,800.00 17,146,806 - - 446,201.35 237.50
24803773 £20,018.82 105,265.42 532150 - 582.843.53 -
“ . . - - - 298,000.00
18,729.97 45,253.71 - - « 63.883.68 -
6,750.00 - 23,254.00 - - 30,004.00 -
2,238,000.00 96%,000.00 - - - 3,203.000.00 -
- - 130,000.00 - - 130,000.00 40,000.00
3,474 852.42 1,827,823.28 476,071.82 78363.21 138.071.85 8,092,982.78 7586 ,509.66
124,174.00 22,186.00 81,120.00 27,959.00 8,028.00 264,504.00 118,419.00
- - 582,817.88 191,135.80 142,488.32 916,441,897 -
189,000.00 - 651,113.00 - - 840,113.00 -
18,040,376.66 1,717,085.61 - - “ 19,768,374.27 -
“ . 1,020,626.43 - - 1,020,626.43 46,914.73
- - 4550060 - - 45 500.Q0 -
18,353 548.66 1,740,181.61 2,.381,177.28 219,134.80 151,516.32 22,845 558 67 159,333.73
21,828,202.08 3,668,004 89 2,857 245 20 287,498.01 287.58827 28 938 542 45 715,833.39
30,337.528.43 38,347,025.74 886,979.56 1,657,320.80 248448612 73,723,340.65 1.761,185.41
- 1,121,866.67 - N - 1,121,666.67 -
127,000.00 1,450,000.00 . “ - 1,577.000.00 -
557 183.00 B92,481.00 484 .698.00 - “ 1,934,372.00 -
4482 376.05 3843,583.38 23140230 {203,845.07) {140,503.13) 8,193,008 460127384
§ 3548400748  § 4565475679 S 161307566  §145347173 5 2,343,08299 86,549.38665 3 636242925
361.843.24
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Qperating revenues:
Residential charges
Commercial charges
Translet station charges
Othar ises and charges
Conceasion revenues
lrdemal charges
Usage foos
Miscellaneous
Total uperating revenues

Operafing expenyes;
Personnel serdces
Materals & supplios
Condractugl services
General cperating expenses
Spacial programs
Internal service expensas
Depreciation
Total sperating expensas
Operating income {luss}

Nonoperating revenues {expanses)
Intergovemmental
Investment revenue
Gain frorn 5ale of asset
Other nor-operading revenue
interest and cther charges
lssuance cost amoniration
Loss from sale of asset
Transfers out
Total nonoperating ravenuas (expenses)

income (loss) before cuntribudions and transfers

Contributed capial - connedd fee
Condributed capital - developers
Coniributed capilal - donations
Coniributed capial - governmeni
Teansfers in
Transfers oul

Change In net assels

Total net asseals ~ beginning
Prior period adjustment
Total net assets ~ ending

Clty of Cape Glrardeau
Statement of Revenues, Expanses, and Chenges In Fund Nt Asseia

Proprietary Funds
For the Yesr Ended June 30, 2011
Gov. Activiies
intamai Service
Sewar Water Solic Wasle Lolf Course Sofiball Compiax Funds
3 2,140,334.18 § 388102098 2,138,490.38 .
1,442,882.73 2,558,351.67 208633 -
- - 688,156.05 - - “
§2,787.18 183.537.72 84,177,858 - B .
- - ” 38,3808 54,635,144 .
7,315.28 . « “ 371585 5,404,088 A0
- - N 447 242 48 152,4B4.05 “
81318 18,686.12 23,925 44 $ 346 15 B B51 01 1,207 50
5,644, 12254 6,418796.50 3175658 13 465 148 23 218 48562 5,405 274.30
1.605,017.08 153,603.84 1,040.804.55 380,235.23 448,086.34 784,261 08
481,564.2¢ 1,152,670.38 237 004,860 90,180.42 128,167.80 574,160,123
712,605,680 2,711,282.47 1,27%,538.15 28.355,38 12,776.90 3.154,001.51
203,956.92 340,196.82 31,776,486 9.966,08 12,777.43 34,469.27
15,670.82 252,493.81 78,560.34 8,836.10 32,014.90 .
167,383.94 101,852.60 240,213.268 44,065 48 24 488.67 3,882.00
2 146.176.63 1,447 BBE.T1 455,283.02 118,720 66 24 018.09 344,523,186
537199758 §,158,909.62 3,383,160.68 G5, 260.26 654 252,53 4,695 428,06
{1,727,875.02) 260,5686.66 {187,322.55) (£31,101.02) {465,768.71) 709,846 24
56,986.53 119,255.41 1,318.51 . 31105 765.00
161,696.07 125,487.64 az1are 1,083.47 78055 85.350.20
3.896.00 22,859.37 13,842 86 13,548.90 760.00 1,233.58
- 1,230.61 - . - 9,858.34
{876,532 65} (162,850.10) (51,509.608) (10,562.32% {7.750:.43) {3,892.31)
(16,635.7% (15,205,23) {8,189.87) “ - {548.01
. - (811,54} - - “
“ - - " {4,585 05} {10,808 283
{374 776,64} 90,757.70 {11,235 153 407005 (10,463,583 ai78a sz
{2,102,653.88) 351,674.28 {198,557 88} [PekuseRirgd {478,260.29} 79181878
69,876,681 - - . - -
104 560.63 184.00B.820 - - -

- - - 14,222 96 « -
#3.611.20 1.180,583.24 - 195,78 722,800.05 B
4,506 480,89 8,29002 - 103,442.08 468,946.43 2773717

{3, 506.00) - - . - £14,814.48

2887 18545 1,704,558 84 {18B.557.56) (82,200,280} 713,266.49 864,538.52

3261883311 43,866,453.79 181183714 1,535671.93 1,830,714.50 5557 .880.73
{1,891 08} (6,253,511 - - - -

§ 354840074 $ 450554,755.79 181307966 1453471.75 § 2339806 $  85,548,388.65 6.362 449.25

Adiusiments to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activides related o enterprise funds.

Ghange In net assats of business-type artivities.
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City of Cape Girardeau
Statemant of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Endaed Jume 30, 2014

Business-type Activilies - Enterprise Funus

Govemment
Tolal Activities
Softbalt Froprietary Internal Service
Sewer Water Solid Waste Goit Course Complex Funds Funds
CASK FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from cuslomers $ 323584370 $ 854217843 % 3,085,983.85 $ 570135 £ 203070 $ 1370049784 S 40239144
Receipts from interfund services 7.315.28 - A2.095.33 . 3, 71568 43,130,260 8,300 044 38
Ciiher recripts . 5,279.10 854.85 320,00 . §453,70 1,907.00
Payments {v suppliers {1.075.510 80 3,496,207 1} (1,567,387 .56} {199,955.47) (242,7340.77) {1.003,681.38) 3,908 565 53}
Payments for salarkes and benefits {1.573.130.67} {134,945 .45) (4,027 .836.69) (377,435,456} (431.301.62) {3.544,451.09) [T44,771.82)
Payments %or intedfund services used {170,546,68} {63.102.06; (249,213 .26} {48, 578.48) (24,488,573 {(547,110,18) (4,850,003
Payments made in fieu of franchise taxes (161 451.06) {318,165.21) - - - {479615.27) -
Ramittance of taxes cotiectad from customers {16, 282.80; {254,485.56) . . - {270,750.38) -
Net cash provided (used} by operating activiies 245,948.95 1,975,379.49 28370028 {92,049.47) (403, 7G4.91} 1592212164 T48,156.15
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fransters from other funds 2(:4,666.83 - - 104.562,09 456,918,423 B36,147.33 -
Transfers to other fungs - - . - . - (14 B1441}
Advanca repayment 1o other funds - . {37,102.15) {26.704.24) {16,825.47) (80,511.86) .
inlerest paid i other funds - - 111,476.85) (10 662.32) {1.75043) £29 483,643 {226,586}
Subsidy from federal grant - 430.11) - N {275.25) {705.38) -
Subsidy from state grant 973638 205158 1,414.98 60647 21.03 13.821.0% 210.51
Net cash {used) by noncapital financing 774,400.77 752145 {40.99%6.06) 7 902 0C 4298831 TF3G 27T AT {14,770 48)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capifal confribulions 84,862.59 143,579.27 - - 275,25 $98,705.14 .
Principal received on promissory note - - - - - . 14.014.44
Interest received on promissory nole - - - - - - 4 .457.06
Proceeds from sales of capilal assels 3252252 23,594,35 14,281.74 13,548,900 78000 B4, 78T S 1,232.58
Purchase of capital assels 165,330.00} {85.866.76) {89, 117.26) - 0.00 {340,726.02) (261,665.47)
Acquisition and construction of capital assels £1,283,335.00 [340,468.8%) 185800 [3,304.76) {3,117.22) {1,826,325.82} {15,201.8%3
Princigal paid on capital debt {4.785,528.00} {625,000.00) {481,508.00) “ “ (2,892.434.00) {40,500.00)
irterest paid on capital debt {713.958.42} {144,270.25} {26.511.80) . - {884,540.29} {4,250.00}
Trangfers in for capital aoquisifions 2,534,354 80 B.290.02 - 50,00 - 2563 53490 F2RE TR H
Transfors out for capital acquisitions - - - - {4 56565} (4 565.65) {10.804.28)
Transfers in for payment of capital related debt 1,702 B48.00 . - . - 1,702.889.00 -
Net cash {used) by capital and relaled financing
activities 345 219.48 (1.319.963.22} (ZBEH17.14) 11.004,14 (6.647 52) 11,218,974 36) (M3 573 34)
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Intorost received
Net chiange in pocled investments
Proceeds from saies and maturities of investmeants
Punchase of investments
Nat cash provided by invasting sclivities

Net Ingrease (decreasa) in cash and cash

equivalents
Baiancas - beginning of year

Balances - and of e your

e ——— ]
Reconcillation of operating income {{oas) to net cash provided (used) by cperating activitiey:

Operating incoma (loss}
Adiustrnends 10 reconcile opereting income o nel
cash provided (usedd) by opersting activities:
Depreciation axpense
Changes in assels and liabillties:
Accounts peyable - suppher
Accounits payable - other
Salaries & bansfits payable
Customer receivables
Oiher operating receivables
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Nei cash provided by operating activilies

City of Cepe Girardpau
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fundy

For the Year Ended June 38, 2011

Business-type Actlvities - Enterprise Funds

Govemnment
Totai Activities
Softhail Propriatary Intemal Service
Sewer Waler Soli Wasle Galf Coursa Cormplex Funds Funds.
$09,878.69 171,844.51 43.811.38 118372 95422 38575051 111,857,534
(1.448,218.8%) {883.504.48) 2,894 24 B,484.34 30,624,473 (2.448,250.62) {541,357.24)
- B45,000.00 - - - B805,002.00 345,961 54
- £715,000.50) - - - (715.000.00) {3850,2458.09)
1,376,242.17) (TIRIATH 44,705 07 10,650.06 t26,570.25) (2082, 500115 433,162,053
(48857157 (12.020.65) £28,149,30) {2,454.87) 2,305,493 (585,593.38) {43,949.70)
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis
Investments

Real estate taxes

Personal property taxes
Qther

Interest

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Salariay and benefits payable
Other fiabilities

Total Liabilities

City of Cape Girardeau
Siatement of Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Agancy
Funds

$

§78,6814.94
2,118,983.55
5288398
12,114.01
203513
9,277.76

S

$

2,872,808.37

37,636.37
24,458.27
2,810.814.73

$

2,872,909.37
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri (the City) operates under a charter, which went into effect April 12,
1982. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following services
as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, water, sanitation, health
and social services, culture-recreation, public improvement, planning and zoning, and general
administrative services.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP), as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant accounting policies of the City are described below.

1. Reporting Entity

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. Generally, component units are legally separate organizations for which the
elected officials of the City are financially accountable. The Cape Girardeau (Missouri) Public Facilities
Authority (CGPFA) is a blended component unit of the City. The financial statements of the CGPFA are
included in the accompanying financial statements of the City. The Cape Girardeau Municipal Development
Foundation (CGMDF), the Cape Girardeau Public Safety Foundation (CGPSF), and the Cape Girardeau
Parks Development Foundation (CGPDF) are also component units of the City. The financial statements of
these foundations are included as special revenue funds in the accompanying financial statements.

The CGPFA is a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under Chapter 355 of the Revised
Statutes of Missouri. The CGPF A board of directors consists of City officials and City Council members.
Due to the significant City influence and financial accountability, the activities of the CGPFA are blended
with the financial presentation of the City. The CGPFA executed a bond indenture for the purpose of
issuing and securing the Series 2009 Bonds. These bonds will be used for the construction of various storm
water control improvements, Cape Splash Family Aquatic Center, Shawnee Park Community Center, and
various other park related improvements. The CGPFA has entered into a Lease Purchase Agreement with
the City from which the lease payments will be used solely to retire the debt.

The (CGMDF), (CGPSF), and (CGPDF) are not-for-profit corporations organized and existing under
Chapter 355 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri. The (CGMDF) and (CGPSF) board of directors consist of
City officials and the (CGPDF) board of directors consists of Park and Recreation Board members and one
City Council member. Due to the significant City influence and financial accountability, the activities of all
three foundations are included in the financial presentation of the City. All three foundations were
established to receive charitable donations to be used for the benefit of the City.

Although not a component unit of the City, the City handles the funds of and provides accounting and other

services for the Cape Girardeau Public Library. Since the library’s funds are held by the City, this entity is
shown as an Agency Fund in the financial statements.
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011
NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

2. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.
The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-rype
activiries, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstraies the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges lo customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprictary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columas in the fund
financial statements.

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met. With the economie resources measurement focus, all assets and liabilities
associated with operations are reflected in the statement of net assets.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be avaiiabie
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay labilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Those revenues
susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments, licenses, interest revenue, and
charges for services. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the City, also are
recognized as revenue. Fines and permit revenues are not susceptible to accrual because, generally, they are
not measurablie until received in cash. With the current financial resources measurement focus, only current
assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet.
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The airport fund accounts for the resources used in the operation and maintenance of municipal airport
facilities.

The parks and recreation fund accounts for the resources used in the operation of park and recreational
activities.

The transportation sales tax trust fund Il accounts for the receipt and expenditure of a capital
improvement sales tax that was approved by voters for street construction and improvements.

The park improvement projects from parks sales tax fund accounts for the expenditure of a capital
improvement sales tax that was approved by voters for park construction and improvements.

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Acconnting, and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The sewer fund accounts for the operation of the City’s sewage treatment plant, sewage pumping
stations, and collection systems.

The water fund accounts for the operation of the City’s water treatment plants and distnbution systems,

The sofid waste fund accounts for the operation of the City’s residential solid waste and recycling
programs.

The golf find accounts for the operation of the municipal golf course.

The softball complex fund accounts for the operation of the City’s softball complex, and maintenance
of the City’s soccer, baseball, and softball fields.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:
Internal service funds account for management information systems, fleet management, employee
benefits, workers’ compensation, and equipment leasing provided to other departments or agencies of

the City, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Agency funds account for the operations of the Cape Girardeau Public Library.
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, gencrally
are followed in both the govermnment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of foliowing subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation, The City has elected not to follow subsequent
private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general mle are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the
City’s enterprise function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contrjbutions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

3. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City’s enterprise funds and of the City’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

4, Capital Assets

All capital assets with an original cost exceeding 35,000 are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Additions are recorded at cost or, if contributed
property, at their estimated fair value at time of contribution. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as
expenses; renewals and betterments are capitalized. The sale or disposal of capital assets is recorded by
removing cost and accumulated depreciation and charging the resulting gain or loss to income.
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City of Cape Girardean, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is charged as an expense against operations in proprietary
funds and a program cost of governmental activities in the statement of activities. Assets are reported net of
depreciation on proprietary fund and government-wide statement of net assets. Depreciation has been
provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Buildings 25-50 years
Improvements 10-40 years
Equipment 3-10 years

When applicable, inferest costs are capitalized on self-construcied capital assets.
5. Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting is utilized in all funds. Encumbrances outstanding at the end of the year in the
governmental funds are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities because the commitments will be carried forward and honored during the subsequent year.
Encumbrances cutstanding in the proprietary funds do not constitute expenses but will be honored in the
subsequent year. No reservations of net assets are made for encumbrances outstanding at the end of the
year on the proprietary fund and government-wide statement of net assets.

6. Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of supplies, valued at cost. The cost of inventories is recorded as expenditures
or expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

7. Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation pay for proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability of those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave of
governmental funds are reported in the Statement of Net Assets, Employees may accumulate up to 30 days
vacation, for which they are compensated upon termination or retirement. Employees are not compensated
for accumulated sick leave upon termination, but are compensated one hour for each eight hours of unused
sick leave upon retirement.

8. Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs

In governmental fund types, bond discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period. Bond
discounts and issuance costs for proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized over the term of the
bonds. Bond premiums and discounts are presented as either increases or reductions of the face amount of
bonds payable whereas issuance costs are recorded as deferred charges. The accounting treatment of bond
premiums, discounts, and issuance costs used for governmental activities in the government-wide
statements is the same as that used for proprietary funds.
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
9, Cash and Investments

The City maintains an internal investment pool for the majority of its non-restricted cash and investments
and a small portion of its restricted cash and investments. Investment revenue is allocated to each fund
based on its average equity balance in the pool.

Cash includes amounts in repurchase agreements and other short-term investments with a maturity date
within three months of the date of purchase.

Investments, with a maturity date of one year or more at the time of purchase, are recorded at fair value. All
other cash and investments are recorded at cost or amortized cost.

10, Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2011 are recorded as
prepaid items.

11. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for the repayment
of such bonds, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by
applicable bond covenants. The “revenue bond construction™ account is used to report those proceeds of
revenue bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. The “revenue bond current debt service”
account is used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in the revenue bond
current debt service account.

12. Long-Term Obligations

Only that portion of long-term obligations expected to be financed from expendable available financial
resources is reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. Long-term liabilities expected to be
financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in the appropriate proprietary fund. Long-term
liabilities expected to be financed from governmental activities are accounted for in the government-wide
statement of net asseis.

13, Interfund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses, Transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly
applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions
of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions, except guasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as
transfers. Only net transfers between governmental and business-type activities are reflected on the
government-wide statement of activities.

35



City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

14, Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided
or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “interfund receivables/payables” on
the governmental balance sheet and proprictary statement of net assets. Only net receivables between
governmental and business-type activities are reflected as internal balances on the government-wide
statement of net assets,

15, Advances to Other Funds

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables and payables are reported as advances in the
governumental balance sheet and proprietary statement of net assets. Fund balances are reserved on the
governmental balance sheet for interfund loan receivables to indicate that they do not constitute expendable
available financial resources and therefore are not available for appropriation. Only net long-term interfund
loans between governmental and business-type activities are reflected as internal balances on the
government-wide statement of net assets. Net assets are not reserved for interfund loan receivables on
proprietary and government-wide statements of net assets,

16. Post-Emplovment Health Care Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note G, it is the City’s policy to provide postretirement
health care benefits to employees who retire from the City with five or more years of service and who are
eligible for LAGERS retirement (Note G). Currently, sixty-six employees meet those eligibility
requirements. The City provides health care coverage for them until age 65. The costs of retirees” health
care benefits are recognized as expenditures as premiums are paid. For the year ending June 30, 2011,
those costs totaled $511,862.

COBRA Benefits - Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the City
provides health care benefits to eligible former employees and eligible dependents. Certain requirements
are outlined by the federal government for this coverage. The premium is paid in full by the insured on or
before the tenth (10th) day of the month for the actual month covered. This program is offered for a
duration of 18 months after the termination date for employees and their families and 36 months for
surviving spouses and children. There is no associated cost to the City under this program. There was one
surviving spouse participating in the health insurance program and one surviving spouse and two children
participating in the dental insurance program as of June 30, 2011,
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued
17. Infrastructure

The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to function. The assets
include the street system, water system, sewer system, parks and recreation lands and improvement system,
storm water systemn, and buildings combined with the site amenities such as parking and landscaped areas
used by the City in the conduct of its business. Infrastructure of the water and sewer systems were routinely
capitalized in the water and sewer funds of the City and are reflected as other improvements in the business-
type activities section on the statement of activities.

During the year ended June 30, 2011 all infrastructures completed during the fiscal year, including
projects started in a previous year, were recorded at their historical costs.

18. Subsequent Events

In preparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through December 23, 2011, the date the financial staternents were available
to be issued.

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and temporary cash investment pool that is available for use by all funds.
Each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the combined statement of assets, liabilities, and
fund balances arising from cash transactions as “Cash and Cash Equivalents” under each fund’s caption,
The deposits and investments held at June 30, 2011, and reported at fair value, are as follows:

Deposits:
Demand Deposits $ 468,530
Interest Bearing Deposit Accounts 6,195.592
Total Deposits $ 6,664.122
Investments:
Negotiable Instruments § 29,161,817
Federal Home Loan Bank 3,087,086
Federal National Mortgage Association 3,788,917
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 260,943
US Treasury Note 350,369
Total Investments $ 36,649,132
Total Deposits and Investments § 43313254
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,731,549
Investments 31,158,674
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,253,958
Restricted Investments 3,370,474
Fiduciary Cash and Cash Equivalents 678,615
Fiduciary Investments 2,119.984

Deposits and Investments, Statement of Net Assets  §$43,313.254

As of June 30, 2011, the City had the following investments:

Investment Maturities
Negotiable Instruments 07/07/2011 - 04/27/2016
Federal Home Loan Bank 12/30/2013 - 04/11/2016
Federal National Mortgage Assoc.  08/13/2014 — 04/27/2016
Federal Home Loan Mort. Corp. 04/23/2014
US Treasury Note 10/31/2012
Total
Custodial Credit Risk:

Deposits in financial institutions, reported as components of cash, cash equivalents, and investments,
had a bank balance of $42,558,845 at June 30, 2011, that was fully insured by depository insurance or
secured with collateral held by the City’s agents in its name. All investments, evidenced by individual

securities, are registered in the name of the City.

Investment Interest Rate Risk

The City’s investment policy states that “Market price volatility shall be controlled by matching the
City’s investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. The City will not directly invest in
securities maturing more than seven years,” The maturities of investments held at Tune 30, 2011 are

provided above.

Investment Credit Risk

Fair Value
$£29.161.816
3,087,087
3,788,917
260,943
350,369
$36,649.132

The City has an investment policy that limits its investment choices as follows:

a. Direct obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which
the full faith and credit of the U.8. Government is pledged, or obligations to the

payment of which the full faith and credit of the State is pledged;

b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with
acceptabie collateral with in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of

deposit or savings accounts in out-of-state financial institutions;
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued
¢. Repurchase agreements collateralized by securities listed in (a.) above, documented by a
written agreement, folly collateralized by delivery to an independent third party
custodian, and are marked-to-market;
d. Money market mutual funds whose portfolio consists of the foregoing instruments; and,
e. Other prudent investment instruments approved prior to purchase by a two-thirds
majority of the City Council. Bond proceeds may be invested as allowed in the bond

indenture.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk

The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. At June 30, 2011, the City had
no concentration of credit risk,

NOTE C - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes were levied on August 16,
2010, for collection during this fiscal year and were due on or before December 31. Most of the taxes are
collected for the City by Cape Girardean County in November and December and remitted to the City in
December and fanuary. The tax rates assessed at the time were as follows:

General Revenue $ .3018/100.00 assessed valuation

Public Health .0565/100.00 assessed valuation

Special Business District .6708/100.00 assessed valuation
#2 (Ad Valorem)

Property tax recetvable balances as of June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Special
(General Business Public Debt
Revenue Dastrict Health Service Total

Current property tax $52,478 $3,605 $ 984 % - 865,907
Delinquent property tax 22,231 3,359 4,160 27 29,777
Reserve for doubtful

Property taxes {10.030) - (1.878) (27 (11933

Net property tax receivable $64.679 $6.964 912,106 § - 83,74

43



City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE D - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of the capital assets for governmental activities included on the government-wide statement of
net assets for the year ended June 30, 2011 is as follows:

Balance Current Year Balance
Tuly 1, 2010 Additions Deductions  Depreciation*  lune 30, 201 1**

Land $ 5375506 § 21260 % - 8 - 8 5402766
Buildings 18,493,406 6,086,064 - 910,491 23,668,979
Improvements other

than buildings 11,666,628 110,545 - 750,367 11,026,806
Equipment 6,082,188 §23.484 2,738 1,117,242 5,785,692
Infrastructure 115,973,947 4,290,007 - 4,243,295 116,018,639
Construction in progress 5,931,992 6,604,010 9.903.309 - 2.632.693

Total capital assets §163,323,667 $17.94L370 $9906047 §. 7023395 E.164.335.395

* Includes depreciation expenses from the internal service funds’ assets which are included in the expenses of the
governmental activities and business activities on the government— wide Statemnent of Activities as internal charges.

**Includes the internal service funds” assets which are included as part of the governmental activities assets included on the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Following is a summary of the capital assets for business-type activities on the government-wide statement
of net assets for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Balance Current Year Balance
Juiv 1, 2010 Additions Deductions  Depreciation June 3¢,2011

Land 8 161990 % - 3 - 3 - & 161,990
Buildings 2,089,527 831,819 - 219,918 2,701,428
Improvements other

than buildings 86,516,462 2,083,840 - 3,110,460 85,489,842
Equipment 5,042,330 393,843 65,287 862,611 4,515,275
Construction in progress 4,646,538 3,556,870 2540046 s 5663362

Total capital assets $98.463,847 S 6866372 52605333 & 4192980 § 08531807




City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE D - CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows in the statement of activities:

Governmental Activities:

Administrative $ 421218
Development Services 4410
Parks and Recreation 837,596
Public Safety 679,640
Public Works _4.736,008
Total $ 6678872
Business-Type Activities:
Golf Course $ 118,720
Sewer 2,146,179
Softball Complex 24918
Solid Waste 455,283
Water 1,447,889
Total

NOTE E - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in the long-term debt from governmental activities included on the

government-wide statement of net assets for the year ended June 30, 2011;

Governmental {Other
Activities Dehit* Totat
Debt payable July 1, 2010 $ 26524624 § $43,464 846
Premium amortization 30,389 16,144
Retired {4,789,938) {1,130,600) {5,920,558)
Additions - 422 706
Debt payable Tune 30, 2011 $_21765060 S 16218078  $37.983.138

*Qther Debt ineludes Notes Payable, Speeial Obligation Bonds, Leaschold Revenue Bonds, and Certificates of Participation.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE E -~ LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - Continued

The following is a summary of changes in the long-term debt from governmental activities included on the
government-wide statement of net assets for the vear ended June 30, 2011:

Business-Type Other Revenue
Activities Debt* Bonds Total

Bonds payable at

July 1, 2010 $ 2219171 $25770,915  $27,990,086
Discount Premium

Amortization (3,420) {13,760) (17,180)
Accumulated Interest - 315,219 315,219
Bonds Retired {195,008) {3,111,000) (3,306,008
Bonds Issued - - -
Bonds payable at

June 30, 2011 $2,020743 $22.961,374  $24,982,117

*Other Debt includes Notes Payable and Special Obligation Bonds
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASICFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011

NOTE E - LONG TERM OBLIGATIONS - Continued

Bonds payable for governmental and business-type activities at June 30, 2011 are comprised of the
following individual issues:

$ 310.000 Special Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002:

Year Ending  Interest Principal Interest
June 30, Rate Due - Due Total
2012 410% § 155000 $ 9455 § 164,455
2013 4.10 155,000 3.177 158,177

3310000 $ 12632 § 322632

Principal payments are made annually on October 1, and interest payments are made semi-annually on
October 1 and April 1.

On QOctober 22, 2002 the City of Cape Girardean issued $3,125,000 of Special Obligation Refunding and
Improvement Bonds Series 2002 with interest rates varying from 3.00% to 4.50%. The bonds are special
obligations of the City payable solely from the income and revenues provided for the year plus any
unencumbered balances from prior years.

The bonds were issued by the City for the purpose of providing funds to (a) pay the costs of refunding the
Building and Equipment Leasehold Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1993, issued on
behalf of the City by the Cape Girardeau Public Facilities Authority and outstanding in the principal amount
of $1,085,000, (b) pay the costs of refunding the Certificates of Participation (Capital Improvements
Projects), Series 1994A, issued on behalf of the City by the Cape Girardeau Public Facilities Authority and
outstanding in the principal amount of $1,255,000 and prepaying the leasehold interest represented thereby,
(c) pay the costs of constructing certain street improvements within the City, and (d) pay the cosis of
issuing the Bonds, under the authority of and in full compliance with the City’s Charter and the Constitution
and laws of the State of Missouri, and pursuant to an ordinance duly passed (the “Ordinance™) and
proceedings duly and legally had by the governing body of the City.

The outstanding bond liability for the Special Obligation Refunding and Improvement Bonds Series 2002
is allacated as follows: $310,000 for Governmental activities.
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$2.670.000 Waterworks Svstem Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 2006A due as follows:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
June 30, Rate Due Due Total
2012 4.00% $ 965000 $ 106,800 $1,071,800
2013 4.00 1.705.00G 68,200 _1.773.200

$2,670,000  § 175,000 §$2.845.000

Principal payments are made annually on March 1, and interest payments are made semi-annually on March
1 and September 1.

On January 3, 2006 the City issued $7,160,000 of Waterworks System Refunding Revenue Bonds Series
2006 A with interest rates varying from 3.5% to 4.0%. The bonds are special limited obligations of the City
payable solely from the net income and revenues derived by the City from the operation of the Waterworks
System after payment of costs of operation and maintenance.

The bonds were issued to provide the City with remaining funds needed to retire $8,170,000 principal
amount of Waterworks System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1995,
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$ 610.000 Sewerage Systemn Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program) Series 1991 due as
follows:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
June 30 Rate Due Due Total
2012 6.875% § 190,000 $ 41,937  §231,937
2013 6.875 205,000 28,875 233,875
2014 6.875 215,000 14,781 229,781

$610.000  £.85593 _8695,393

These bonds are dated December |, 1991. The proceeds of the bond issue were used to extend and improve
the existing sewerage facilities serving the City,

Principal payments are made annually on June 1, and interest payments are made semi-annually on June 1
and December 1.

The interest due on the Series 1991 Sewer System Revenue Bonds is subsidized by interest earningson a
reserve fund held by the bond issue’s trustee. As the City is reimbursed for sewer project expenditures from
the construction funds held by the trustee, the State of Missouri Department of Natural Resources deposits
an amount equal to approximately 51.907% of the reimbursement into the reserve fund. The maximum
amount of funds that will be advanced to the reserve fund will be $1,250,000. Asbonds are retired 50% of
the amount of bonds retired will be repaid to the State of Missouri Department of Natural Resources out of
the reserve fund. The balance of the reserve fund at June 30, 2011 was $305,000. The reserve fund vields
6.71%.

During the fiscal year-end June 30, 2001, certain bonds originally issued by the State Environmental
Improvement and Energy Resources Authority as part of the State Revolving Fund Program were refunded.
Annual debt service savings resulting from this transaction are to be used to offset City debt service
payments due on Series 1991 Bonds. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, City interest expense was
reduced by $15,752 as a result of this transaction. Over the remaining life of these bonds, the City will
receive net present value benefits of approximately $34,136 from this transaction,
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$ 144,000 Sewerage Systern Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Propram) Series 1993 due as follows:

Year Ending  Interest Principal Interest
dune 30, Rate Due Due Total
2012 5.400%  §33,000 $ 6,885 $ 39,885
2013 5.400 35,000 5,049 40,049
2014 5.400 37,000 3,106 40,106
2015 5.400 39,000 1,053 40.053

These bonds are dated August 1, 1993. The proceeds of the bond issue were used to extend and improve
the existing sewerage facilities serving the City.

Principal payments are made annually on March 1, and interest payments are made semi-annually on March
1 and September 1.

The interest due on the Series 1993 Sewer System Revenue Bonds is subsidized by interest earningson a
reserve fund held by the bond issue’s trustee. As the City is reimbursed for sewer project expenditures from
the construction funds held by the trustee, the State of Missouri Department of Natural Rescurces deposits
an amount equal o approximately 70% of the reimbursement into the reserve fund. The maximum amount
of funds that will be advanced to the reserve fund will be $350,000. As bonds are retired, 70% of the
amount of bonds retired will be repaid to the State of Missour Department of Natural Resources out of the
reserve fund. The balance of the reserve fund at June 30, 2011 was $100,800. The reserve fund yields
5.15%.
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¥ 1.904386 Water Pollution Control Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program) Series 1995D
due as follows:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
June 30, Rate Due Due Total
2012 6.150% § 380,828 § 654,172 $ 1,035,000
2013 6.150 354,978 670,022 1,025,000
2014 6.200 326,281 683,719 1,010,000
2018 6.200 303,920 696,080 1,600,000
2016 6250 278,844 706,156 985,000
2017 6.250 259,535 715465 575.000

$1.904.386  § 4125614  $6,030,000

These bonds are dated June 1, 1995. The proceeds of the bond issue were used for the extension and
improvement of the existing sewerage system serving the City.

Principal and interest payments are made annually on January 1 beginning in 1998.

The interest due on the Series 1995D Water Pollution Control Revenue Bonds is subsidized by interest
earnings on a reserve fund held by the bond issue’s trustee. As the City is reimbursed for sewer project
expenditures from the construction funds, the State of Missouri Department of Natural Resources deposits
an amount equal to 70% of the disbursement into the reserve fund, The maximum amount of finds that
will be advanced to the reserve fund will be 70% of the principal amount less the original issue discount.
As bonds are retired 70% of the amount of bonds retired will be repaid to the State of Missouri Department
of Natural Resources out of the reserve fund. The balance of the reserve fund at June 30, 2011 was
$1,333,070. The reserve fund yields 5.83%.
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§ 6.945.000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program) Series 1996 due as follows:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
June 30, Rate Due Due Total
2012 5873% $ 763,000 § 408950 $ 1,173,950
2013 5.875 780,000 364,006 1,144,006
2014 5.875 800,000 318,181 1,118,181
2015 5.875 875,000 271,181 1,146,181
2016 5.900 895,000 219,775 1,114,775
2017 5.900 920,000 166,970 1,086,970
2018 5.900 945,000 112,690 1,057,690
2019 5.900 965,000 56,935 1.021.933

$ 6,945,000 1.918,688 $ 8863688

These bonds are dated June 1, 1996. The proceeds of the bond issue were used for the extension and
improvement of the existing sewerage system serving the City.

Principal payments are made annually on January 1. Interest is paid semi-annually on January 1 and July 1
beginning in 1997,

The interest due on the Series 1996 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds is subsidized by interest earnings on
areserve fund held by the bond issue’s trustee. As the City is reimbursed for sewer project expenditures
from the construction funds, the State of Missouri Department of Natural Resources deposits an amount
equal to 70% of the disbursement into the reserve fund. The maximum amount of funds that will be
advanced to the reserve will be $9,474,500. As bonds are retired, 70% of the amount of bonds retired will
be repaid to the Department of Natural Resources out of the reserve fund. The balance of the reserve fund
at June 30, 2011 was $4,861,500. The reserve fund vields 5.70%.
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, certain bonds originally issued by the State Environmental
Improvement and Energy Resources Authority as part of the State Revolving Fund Program were refunded.
Annual debt service savings resulting from this transaction are to be used to offset City debt service
payments due on Series 1996 Bonds. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, Cify interest expense was
reduced by $19,669 as a result of this transaction. Over the remaining life of these bonds, the City will
receive net present value benefits of approximately $121,986 from this transaction.

$ 7.455.000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program) Series 2000 due as
follows:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
June 30 Rate Due Due Total
2012 5500% § 215,000 § 400896 3% 6153896
2013 5.500 230,000 388,659 618,659
2014 5.000 250,000 376,084 626,084
2015 5.625 275,000 362,099 637,099
2016 5.625 475,000 341,006 816,006
2017 5.625 555,000 312,037 867,037
2018 5.300 390,000 280,793 870,793
2019 5.400 1,590,000 222,228 1,812,228
2020 5.450 1,655,000 134,199 1,789,199
2021 5.500 1.620.000 44.550 1.664.550

$7.455.000 $2,862.551 $10317,551

These bonds are dated November 1, 2000. The proceeds of the bond issue were used to extend and
improve the existing sewerage facilities serving the City.

Principal payments are made annually on July 1, and interest payments are made semi-annually on July 1
and January 1,
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

The interest due on the Series 2000, Sewer System Revenue Bonds is subsidized by interest earnings ona
reserve fund held by the bond issue’s trustee. As the City is reimbursed for sewer project expenditures from
the construction funds held by the trustee, the State of Missouri Department of Natural Resources deposits
an amount equal to approximately 70% of the reimbursement into the reserve fund. The maximum amount
of funds that will be advanced to the reserve fund will be 85,848,500, As bonds are retired 70% of the
amount of bonds retired will be repaid to the State of Missouri Department of Natural Resources out of the
reserve fund. The balance of the reserve fund at June 30, 2011 was $5,259,533.The reserve fund yields

5.16%.

$15,263.000 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Fund Program} Series 1998 due as

follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

Interest
Rate

5.250%
5.250
5.250
5.250
5.250
4,500
4.500

Principal Interest
Due Due Total
$ 1,215,000 $ 760,875 § 1,975,875
1,300,000 697,087 1,997,087
2,350,000 628,838 2,978,838
2,445,000 505,462 2,950,462
2,550,000 377,100 2,927,100
2,655,000 243,225 2,808,225
2,750,000 123,750 2.873.750
$15265.000  $3.336337 $18,601.337

These bonds are dated December 1, 1998. The proceeds of the bond issue are being used for the extension

and improvements to the waterworks system.

Principal payments are made annually on January 1. Interest is paid semi-annually on January 1 and July 1

beginning on July 1, 1999.
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The interest due on the Series 1998 Waterworks System Revenue Bonds is subsidized by interest earnings
on a reserve fund held by the bond issues trustee. As the City is reimbursed for waterworks system
expenditures from the construction funds, the Department of Natural Resources deposits an amount equal to
33.41% of the disbursement into the reserve fund. The maximum amount of funds that will be advanced to
the reserve will be $8,517,235. As bonds are paid off, 33.41% of the amount of bonds retired will be repaid
to the Department of Natural Resources out of the reserve fund. The balance of the reserve fund at June 30,
2011 was $4,765,484. The reserve fund yields 4.71%.

$16.260,000 Leasehold Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 due as follows:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
June 30, Rate Due Due Total
2012 3.600% $ 1,895,000 $ 593,118 $2,488,118
2013 3.700 1,955,000 531,532 2,486,532
2014 3.800 2,015,000 472,882 2,487,882
2015 3.900 2,080,000 407,394 2,487,394
2016 4,000 2,150,000 334,594 2,484,594
2017 4.000 2,240,000 248,594 2,488,594
2018 4.000 2,330,000 158,994 2,488,994
2019 4.100 1.595.000 65,794 1.660.794

$16,260,000 $2.812.902 1 2,902

The bonds are obligations of the Cape Girardeau (Missouri) Public Facilities Authority (CGPFA). The
CGPF A has entered into a Lease Purchase Agreement with the City. Principal and interest will be paid by
CGPFA from rental and other receipts from the City. Proceeds of the bonds will be used for the
construction of various storm water control improvements, Cape Splash Family Aquatic Center, Shawnee
Park Community Center, and various other park related improvements.

Principal payments are made annually on April 1, and interest payments are made semi-annually on April ]
and October 1.
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$4.435,000 Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2005:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
June 30 Rate Due Due Total
2012 3.500% $ 680,000 $ 186,511 § 866,511
2013 3.625 700,000 162,711 862,711
2014 4.000 690,000 137,336 827,336
2015 5.000 1,245,000 109,736 1,354,736
2016 4.000 80,000 47,486 127,486
2017 4.000 85,000 44286 129,286
2018 4.100 90,000 40,886 130,886
2019 4,125 90,000 37,196 127,196
2020 4.200 95,000 33,484 128,484
2021 4,250 100,000 29,494 129,494
2022 4.250 105,000 25,244 130,244
2023 4.375 110,000 20,781 130,781
2024 4.375 115,000 15,969 130,969
2025 4.375 250,000 10.940 260,940

$ 902060 S 060

Principal payments are made annually on June 1, and interest payments are made semi-annually on June 1
and December 1.

In May 2005, the City of Cape Girardeau issued $8,190,000 of Special Obligation Bonds Series 2005 with
interest rates varying from 3% to 5%. The bonds are special obligations of the City payable solely from
the revenues derived from annual appropriations by the City Council.

The bonds were issued by the City for the purpose of providing funds to (a) construct, furnish, and equip a
new fire station, renovate and improve existing fire and police stations, reimburse the City for the
purchase of a new public works facility, and acquire vehicles for the police and fire departments, (b}
refinance various outstanding obligations of the City, (¢} fund a debt service reserve fund for the Bonds,
and (d) pay the costs of issuing the Bonds, under the authority of and in full compliance with the City’s
Charter and the Constitution and laws of the State of Missouri, and pursuant to an ordinance duly passed
and proceedings duly and legally had by the governing body of the City.
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$1.450,000 Bank of America 2006 Promissory INote:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
June 30, Rate Due Due Total
2012 0972% $ 100,000 $ 13,851 $ 113,851
2013 0.972 100,000 12,879 112,879
2014 0.972 100,000 11,907 111,907
2015 0.972 100,000 10,935 110,935
2016 0.972 100,000 9,963 109,963
2017 0.972 100,000 R.991 108,991
2018 0.972 160,000 8019 108,019
2019 0.972 100,000 7,047 107,047
2020 0972 100,000 6,075 106,075
2021 0.972 100,000 5,103 105,103
2022 0.972 100,000 4,131 104,131
2023 0.972 100,000 3,159 103,159
2024 0.972 100,000 2,187 102,187
2025 0.972 100,000 1,215 101,215
2026 0.972 50,000 243 50,243

$ 1,450,000 105705 $1,555,705

On February 9, 2006, the City of Cape Girardeau entered into a promissory note with the Bank of America
for $2,000,000. The purpose of the note was to finance additional costs on constructing fire station #3,
purchase of a site for a future fire station, equipment for the sewer and solid waste funds, and site
improvements at the new public works headquarter. The outstanding liability for the note is allocated as
follows: $579,883 for governmental activities and $870,117 for business-type activities.

Principal payments of $50,000 are made semi-annually on January 1 and July 1. The principal payments
are amortized over 20 years, The City may prepay the note at any time with no additional charges. Interest
accrues at a variable rate equal to the sum of the 30-day LIBOR multiplied by 60.938%, plus 0.813%, The
rate at June 30, 2011 was 0,.972%,
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$979.400 Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 due as follows:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
June 30, Rate Due Due Total
2012 1.4900% $ 41,800 $ 14,438 § 56,238
2013 1.4900 42,800 13,812 56,612
2014 1.4900 43,800 13,170 56,970
2015 1.4900 44,700 12,515 57,215
2016 1.4900 45,700 11,845 57,545
2017 1.4900 46,800 11,159 57,959
2018 1.4900 47,900 10,458 58,358
2019 1.4900 48,900 9,741 58,641
2020 1.4500 50,100 9,008 59,108
2021 1.4900 51,100 8,258 59,358
2022 1.4900 52,300 7,492 59,792
2023 1.4500 53,500 6,708 60,208
2024 1.4900 54,700 5,906 60,606
2025 1.4500 55,900 5,087 60,987
2026 1.4900 57,200 4,249 61,449
2027 1.4900 58,500 3,392 61,892
2028 1.4900 59,900 2,515 62,415
2029 1.4900 61,200 1,618 62,818
2030 1.4500 62,600 — o 63,301

$_ 979,400 § 152072 $1.131472

These bonds are dated January 1, 2010, The proceeds of the bond issue will be used to construct a
transmission main from new well fields to Water Plant #1.

Principal and interest payments are made semi-annually on January 1 and July 1.
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$1.140.000 Special Obligation Bonds. Series 2010A due as follows:

Year Ending Interest Principal Interest
Jung 30, Rate Due Due Total

2012 3.000% $ 130,000 $ 34,294 $ 164294
2013 3.000 140,000 30,394 170,394
2014 3.000 150,000 26,194 176,194
2015 3.000 160,000 21,694 181,694
2016 2.625 175,000 16,894 191,894
2017 3.000 185,000 12,300 197,300
2018 3.375 200,000 6,750 206,750

$ 1140000 § 143520 $_ 1288520

On March 1, 2010, the City issued $1,275,000 of Special Obligation Bonds Series 2010A with interest
rates varying from 2.623% to 3.375%. Principal and interest will be paid by the City from the revenues
derived from annual appropriations by the City Council.

The proceeds of the bond issue were used to acquire new automated trash collection/recycling trucks for the
public works department and to pay the costs of issuing the bonds.

Principal payments are made annually on January 1. Interest payments are made semi-annually on January
1 and July 1.

59



NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

June 30, 2011

NOTE E - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - Continued

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2011 including total interest

payments of $16,653,767 are as follows:

Special Leasehold
Year Ending  Obligation Revenue Revenue Promissory
June 30, Bonds Bonds Bonds Note Total

2012 $ 1,195,260 6,200,581 $2,488,118 § 113,851 $ 9,997.810
2013 1,191,282 6,888,488 2,486,532 112,879 10,679,181
2014 1,003,530 6,059.960 2,487 882 111,807 9,663,279
2015 1,536,430 5,831,010  2,487.3%4 110,935 9,965,769
2016 319,380 5,900,426 2,484,594 109,963 8,814,363
2017 326,586 5,885,191 2,488,594 108,991 8,809,362
2018 337,636 4,860,591 2,488,994 108,019 7,795,240
2019 127,196 2,892,804 1,660,794 107,047 4,787,841
2020 128,484 1,848,307 . 106,075 2,082,866
2021 129,494 1,723,908 - 105,103 1,958,505
2022 130,244 59,792 - 104,131 294,167
2023 130,781 60,208 - 103,159 294,148
2024 130,969 60,606 - 102,187 293,762
2025 260,940 60,987 - 101,215 423,142
2026 - 61,449 - 50,243 111,692
2027 - 61,892 - - 61,892
2028 - 62,415 - - 62415
2029 - 62,818 - - 62,818
2030 - 63,301 - - 63301

$6948212  $48.644734 $19072902 $1,555705  § 76221553

The cash and investments available to service revenue bonds are $1,063,384 and $4,006,.271 for the
governmental and business-type activities, respectively.

The cash and investments available to service the special obligation bonds in governmental activities are
$741,434,
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Interest expense was charged to functions as foliows in the statement of activities:

Govermmental Activities:

Interest and Other Costs $1,622,569

Total $1,622,569

Business-Type Activities:

Golf Course $ 10,562
Sewer 578,533
Sofiball Complex 7,750
Solid Waste 51,510
Water 162.850

Total $ 811205

Missouri statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a city can issue to 5.00% of the total
assessed value of taxable property located within that city’s boundaries. The legal debt margin for the City
of Cape Girardeau is $27,107,797.

NOTE F - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/RETAINED EARNINGS

The Housing Development Grants Fund’s total liabilities exceeded their total assets by $162,395,
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NOTE G - PENSION PLAN

1. Plan Description

The City of Cape Girardeau participates in the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System
(LAGERS), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common
investment and administrative agent for local government entities in Missouri. LAGERS is a defined
benefit pension plan which provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries.

LAGERS was created and governed by statute Section RSMo. 70.600 - 70.755, As such, it is the system’s
respongibility to administer the law in accordance with the expressed intent of the General Assembly. The
plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401{a} and it is tax exempt.

The Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtammed by
writing to LAGERS, PO Box 1665, Jefferson City, MO 65102 or by calling 1-800-447-4334.

2. Funding Status

Fuli-time employees of the City of Cape Girardeau do not contribute to the pension plan. The June 30"
statutorily required contribution rates are 7.1% {General), 7.9% (Police) and 12.3%% (Fire} of annual covered
payroil. The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by the governing body of the
political subdivision. The contribution provisions of the political subdivision are established by state
statute.

3. Annual Pension Cost {APC) and Net Pension Obligation (NPO)

The subdivision’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation for the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution $1,533,704
Interest on net pension obligation 0
Adjustment to annual required contribution 0
Annual pension cost 1,533,704
Actual contributions 1,156.413
Increase {decrease) in NPO 377,291
NPO beginning of year . 0
NPO end of year $ 377291

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of the February 28, 2009 annual actuarial
valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions as of February 28, 2011
included: (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.25% per year, compounded
annually, (b) projected salary increases of 3.5% per year, compounded annually, attributable to inflation, (¢)
additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.0% to 6.0% per year, depending on age and division,
atiributable to seniority/merit, (d) pre-retirement mortality based on 75% of the RP-2000 Combined Healthy
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Table set back 0 years for men and 0 years for women, and (e) post-retirement mortality based on 105% of
the 1994 Group Anmuity Mortality table set back ¢ years for men and 0 years for women. The actuarial
value of assets was determined using technigues that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the
market value of investments over a five-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis. The amortization period at February
28, 2009 was 30 years for the General division, 30 years for the Police division and 30 years for the Fire
division.

Three-Year Trend Information

Year Annual Percentage Net
Ended Pension of APC Pension
June 30 Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation

2009 $1,006,174 100.0% $8 0
2010 1,033,703 100.0% 0
2011 1,533,704 75.4% 377,251

Note: The above assets and actuarial accrued liability do not include the assets and present value of
benefits associated with the Benefit Reserve Fund and the Casualty Reserve Fund. The actuarial
assumptions were changed in conjunction with the February 28, 2011 annual actuarial valuations. Fora
complete description of the actuarial assumptions used in the annual valuations, please contact the
LAGERS office in Jefferson City.
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NOTE H - POSTRETIREMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS

1. Description

The City follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 43, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. In addition to the relevant disclosures
within this note related to GASB Statement No. 45, the financial statements reflect a long-term liability and
related expenses of $2,226,98] and $1,253,595, respectively, in the governmental and business-type
activities combined.

The City, through its substantive commitment to provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB),
maintains a single-employer defined benefit plan to provide certain postretirement healthcare benefits to all
former full-time employees until the retirec is eligible for Medicare (age 65). Such benefits are not
available to members’ spouses or dependents; rather, only to former employees as previously described.
Specific details of the Plan include the provision of certain medical and dental insurance coverage. These
benefits are provided through insurance compames. The City is under no statutory or contractual obligation
to provide these postretirement healthcare benefits. Because the Plan consists solely of the City’s firm
commitment to provide OPEB through the payment of premiums to insurance companies on behalf of its
eligible retirees, no stand-alone financial report is either available or generated,

2. Funding Policy

Premiums under the Plan for post-employment healthcare benefits are funded in accordance with rates
established by the City from appropriate governmental and business-type funds. For the year ended June
30,2011, the City paid the full premium cost for retired employees who were hired prior to January {, 2007,
For employees hired on/after January 1, 2007, the City paid a percentage of the full premium cost for
retired employees with single coverage according to years of service at retirement. For employees with 10
to 14 years of service at retirement the City’s subsidy was 50%. The subsidy for employees with 15 to 19
years of service was 60%; 20 to 24 years was 70%, and employees with more than 24 years of service at
retirement received 100% subsidy. The retiree is responsible for the full cost of dependent coverage. The
plan is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.

3. Amnual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the City, an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of 30 years. The following
table illustrates the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the Plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation:
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2010 2011

Annual required contribution $ 1,355,157 $1,253,595
Interest on net OPER obligation 41,823 75,609
Adjustment to annual required contribution (57.057) (103.150)

Annual OPEB cost $ 1,339,923 $1,226,054
Contributions made (589.117) (679271

Increase in net OPEB obligation $ 750,806 $ 546,783
Net OPEB obligation, July 1 929.392 1,680,198
Net OPEB obligation, June 30 3 1,680,198 $2.226,981

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for 2011 were as follows:

Percentage of Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB Obligation -
Ended QPEB Cost Cost Contributed End of Year
6/30/11 $1,226,054 55.4% $2,226,981
6/30/10 1,339,923 44.0% 1,680,198
6/30/09 1,487,797 37.5% 929,392

4, Funding Status and Funding Progress

Asof July 1, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued
liability for benefits equaled $11,304,595, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued lability (UAAL) of
$11,304,395. The covered payroll {(annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) equaled
$12,795,822, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll equaled 88.3%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about
future employment, mortality, and the healtheare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the Plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future,

The schedule of funding progress is to present multivear trend information about whether the actuarial value
of the Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
However, because the City maintains no Plan assets, information relative to Plan asset required disclosures
is not applicable.
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5. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan as
understood by the City and Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the City and Plan members to that
point. There are no legal or contractual funding limitations that would potentially affect the projection of
benefits for financial accounting purposes. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques
that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities, consistent with
the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the actuarial valuation dated July 1, 2010, the projected unit credit cost actuarial method was used.
Because the City funds its OPEB on a pay-as-you-go basis, the plan has no assets (investments) used
specifically for paying the post-retirement medical benefits; therefore, the actuarial assumptions included a
4,5% discount rate, which approximates the expected rate of return on non-pension investments held by the
~ City. Actuarial assumptions also included annual healthcare trend rates of 8.0%, initiatly, reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.5% for healtheare costs after ten years. The UAAL is being amortized
as a level dollar amount over thirty years based on an open group.

NOTE 1 - INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest and handling charges, totaling $1,659,421, excluding $10,064 of interfund interest, was incurred by
governmental funds during the year ended June 30, 2011, Interest and handling charges, totaling $785,488

excluding $29,710 of interfund interest, was incurred by proprietary funds during the year ended June 30,
2011. No interest cost was capitalized as part of the cost of assets constructed during the period.

NOTE J - INTERFUND ACTIVITY

A. The following is a summary of interfund balances as of June 30, 2011:

Advance to/from other funds:
Advances from Advances to
Genersl Fund 5 916,442 5 -
Solid Waste Fund - 582818
Golf Course Fund - 191,136
Softball Complex Fund - 142,488
§ 5216442 3 916442

The interfund balances are a result of advances to purchase capital assets and to pay for operating expenses.
Repayments are made as cash flows permit. If cash flows are not sufficient, repayments are deferred to
subsequent years.

66



City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2011
NOTE J - INTERFUND ACTIVITY - Continued

The City makes transfers between various funds for routine and normal operating expenses and for capital
asset requisitions.

B. The following is a summary of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Fund Transter From Transfer To
General Fund £ 4207641 3 4677317
Alrport Fund 261,782 723,624
Park and Recreniion Fund 1,817 1,086,998
Yizion 2000 3,102 -
Housing Development Fund - 18,787
Maotor Fuel Tax Fund 1,320,600 -
Capital Improvement Sales Tax -
Water System Improvements 1,400,000 4,351
Sewer System Improvements 2816599 -
Fire Sales Tax Fund 2,135,157 -
Public Safery Trust Fund 1,166,579 2,135,157
Transportation Sales Tax Trust H] - 350,000
Park/Storm Water Sales Tax 1,215,245 -
Park/Storm Water Sales Tax-Capital 133,992 136,535
Casing Revenue Fund 1.879,134
Debt Service Fund - 1,953,282
General Capital Improvements Fund - 60,000
Park Improvements Fund - 114,817
Community Development Block
(irant Project Fund 218 3258
Water System Improvement
Projects Fund 4,351 -
Storm Water Projects from
Btorm Water Tax - 55,164
Park Improvement Projects from
Park Sales Tax 248,364 415,384
Sewer Fund 3,500 4,504,461
Water Fund - 8,290
Golf Course Fund - 105,412
Sofiball Complex Fund 4,566 466,918
Fleet Management Fund 14,814 -
Eguipment Repiacement Fund —___ 10,698 . 2773%
§ 16,847,559 3 15847559
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The City maintains five enterprise funds which provide sewer, water, solid waste, golf, and softball
complex services. Segment information for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Softball
Sewer Water Solid Weste  Golf Course Complex Total
Fund Fund Fund Fand Fund Enterprise
Operating revenues ¥ 3,644,123 $6,419.7%6  $3,175,858 § 485149 $ 218,486 $13.943412
Depreciation 2,146,179 1,447,889 455,283 118,721 24918 4,192,990
Operating Income (Loss) (1,727.875) 260,887 {187,323} (211,105 (465,767 (2,331,17%
Operating transfers in 4,505,461 8,250 - 108,472 466,918 5,086,081
Net Income {Loss) 2,667,155 1,704,557 {198,558) (82,200) 713,269 4,804,223
Current Capital Contributions 267,849 1,344,592 - 19419 F22.60G0 2,354,450
Property, Plant and Equipment
Additions 1,825,121 1,668,019 99,717 9,272 766,258 4,168,187
Deletions 66,644 6,988 4,507 - 40,541 118,68C
Net Working Capital 329,661 3,090,848 1,291,811 15,286 i1,813 3,238,619
Total Assets 57,312,299 49,322,762 4,470,329 1,750,970 2,631,571 115,487,931
Bonds and Other Long-term
Liabilities Payable from
Operating Revenues 20,598,300 2,705,182 2,534,431 219,135 151,516 26,208,564
Total Net Assets £35,484,097  $43,654,757 $1L613,0B0 $1,453472 $2,343,083 $86,549,389

NOTE L — GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES REPORTING

In order to improve the usefulness and understandability of governmental fund balance information, the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 54 in which it classified fund balance into
the following categories: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. Definition of
each category and a reconciliation of how the City of Cape Girardeau reported its Fund Balance follow.

Nonspendable Fund Balance — Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable form”
criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid
amounts. It also includes long-term receivables that are not currently available for expenditure. These
financial statements reflect non-spendable fund balances of $2,100 that are legally restricted to provide for
the perpetual care and maintenance of a mausoleum in the City’s cemetery, Only interest earnings on this
amount can be used for mausoleum maintenance. Prepaid expenses of $158,932 and long-term advance
receivables of $916,442 are also reflected as non-spendable fund balances.
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Restricted Fund Balance — Includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of
restrictions by external parties, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. These financial statements
include the following restricted fund balances. Fund balances totaling $4,910,136 arc restricted by the City
Charter to use during officially declared emergencies. Special revenue fund balances totaling $11,614,690
are restricted by their enabling legislation. $4,411,985 in capital project fund balances ate restricted as the
result of special revenue transfers and unspent bond proceeds. The remaining $200,844 in restricted fund
balances result from legal agreements with various outside parties.

Committed Fund Balance — These funds can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority (the City Council). Those
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government removes or changes the specified use
by taking the same type of formal action it employed to previously commit those amounts, Typically, a
resolution by the city council would be needed to commit a portion of a fund balance for a specific purpose.
The City currently has no committed balances.

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific
purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. For all governmental funds other than the general fund,
any remaining positive amounts not classified as nonspendable, restricted or committed. For the general
fund, amounts can be assigned the intent to be used for a specific purpose by the city council or a ¢ity
official authorized by the c¢ity council; the amount reported as assigned should not result in a deficit in
unassigned fund balance.

Unassigned Fund Balance — For the general fund, amounts not classified as nonspendable, restricted,
committed or assigned are included here. For all other governmental funds, it is the amount expended in
excess of resources that are nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned. The general fund is the only
fund that should have a positive amount in this classification.

Order of Usage — Unless specifically identified, expenditures will reduce related restricted balances first,
and then related committed balances, next related assigned balances, and finally unassigned balances.

Expenditures for a specifically identified purpose will reduce the specific classification of fund balance that
is identified.
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Major
Special Revenoe Funds Major
Park
Parksand  Trapsportation Projects
General Alrport  Recrestion Sales Tax from Parks Other
Fund Epnd Fund Trast Fund U1 Sales Tax Funds Total
Fund balances
Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenses § 12599 S 15T22 % 287 % -~ % « 3 13340 0§ 1589%
Longterm advance 916,442 - - - - B 216,442
Mauscleum 2,100 . - . - . 2,100
Restricted for:
Mausoioum 88,166 N - - - . 88,166
Emergencies 3735645 - - - . 1,174,451 4,910,136
Loeal access channel 4,755 - - - - . 4755
Convention and tourism - - “ - - 356,284 356284
River campus bonds - - - » - 107,524 107,624
Community development - - - " - 43,740 43,749
Public safety - - - - - 652 981 652,981
$troct projects - . - 5,812,663 - 2,064,633 7,877,298
Flood control projects - - - - - 44,303 44 301
Water system projects - - - - - 3,466,667 3,466,667
Sewer system projects - - - - - 964,900 964,500
Parks and recrestion - - - - - 214,595 214,598
Park and storm water peojects - - - - 833,423 1,048214 1,881,637
(ther capital prajects - - - - - 524260 524,260
Assigned to:
Alrpert - 128962 - - - “ 128,862
Barks and recreation - - 368,793 . - - 398,703
Operations and maintenance - - 13,171 - - - 13,17
Encambrances 186,510 - - - - - 166,514
Other capital projects - - . - " 35,715 35,775
Debt service - - . - - 21,528 21,52¢
Other projeits - " " - - 6,353 £,253
Public safety - - - - - 858,825 838,825
Parks and recreation - - - - - 301,596 M358
Other capital projects - - - - " 220,237 220,237
Community development - - - - - 63 H5
Sureet projects - - . - - 48,908 43,908
Unassigned: 1.4]1.069 - - z - {162,395 1.248674
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At June 30, 2011, the City has restricted assets in its Proprietary Funds as follows:

Drepreciation Revenue Bond
and Bond Sinking and
Replacement Conskruction Reserve Fund Total
Sewer Fund § 127,000 K3 - $2,14%9,626 3 276,626
Water Fund 1,450,(00 4,516 1,888,302 3,342 818
Solid Waste Fund . 4,145 344 4989
£1,577,000 B._8661 $4,038,772 $3.624.433

NOTE N - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill when closed and
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. The
City closed its landfill in the fiscal year ending June 30, 1994, and an expense provision and related liability
were recognized at that time based on the future closure and postclosure care costs that were estimated to be
incurred near or after the date the landfill no longer accepted waste. The entire amount of the estimated
total costs for landfill closure and postclosure care costs was recognized in prior years since the recognition
is based on landfill capacity used to date and the landfill was filled to capacity in prior years. The estimated
fotal future liability for landfill postclosure care costs is $45,500 as of June 30, 2011, whichis based on the
amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required te close, monitor, and maintain
the landfill were acquired as of June 30, 2011. However, the actual cost of closure and postclosure care may
be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and regulations.

The City has used the option of a Contract of Obligation as the financial assurance instrument for the
landfill. The City issued bonds in October 1994 from which the proceeds were used to pay the closure costs.
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The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefi of, damage to, and destruction of asseis;
errors and omissions; natural disasters; and employee health benefits. These risks, with the exception of
those discussed in the following paragraphs, are covered by commercial insurance. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past ten fiscal years.

The City is a member of the Missouri Public Entity Risk Management Fund, a not-for-profit public entity
insurance pool established by the state legislature. Through this pool, the City receives coverage for general
liability, law enforcement liability, errors and omissions, and employment practice Liability. Risks forthese
coverages are spread across members of the fund. Currently the fund is comprised of 860 Missouri counties,
municipalities, and special districts. Premiums for these coverages are actuarially determined based on
actual claims of the pool and individual claims of the City. Each year, portions of premiums not required
because of below expected claims are returned to the members. The City has received refunds of premiums
in each of the last twelve years and has used them to offset the cost of the succeeding year’s premiums.

Vehicle loss and accident liability is carried by Savers Property and Casualty Insurance. Itis rated “A-" by
AM. Best.

Adrport liability is carried by Catlin Insurance Company. It is rated “A” by A.M. Best
Property insurance is carried by Chubb Group of Insurance Companies. It is rated “A++” by A.M. Best.

Equipment coverage is carried by Travelers Property Casualty Company of America. It is rated “A+” by
AM. Best.

The City has established self-insurance plans for employees’ health insurance and workers’ compensation.
Both of these are accounted for using internal service funds. Under each plan, the City is substantially self-
insured and uses an administrator to handle claims management.

The City provided health coverage to its employees through a minimum premium plan administered by
Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield of Missouri, which had an “A” rating by A M. Best. Under this plan, the
City paid the administrator a monthly premium for claims administraiion, cost management, and specific
and aggregate stop loss coverage. The City reimbursed the administrator for claims paid up to the specific
stop loss amount of $150,000 and $150,000 annually per employee and up to the aggregate stop loss
amount (115% of estimated claims) of approximately $2,750,000 and $2,800,000 annually beginning
January 1, 2010 and 2011, respectively, for all employees. These limits apply only to claims made during
the respective calendar vears. Rates were charged by the internal service fund to the other City funds to
cover the monthly premium to the administrator and claims up to 100.0% and 93.5% of the aggregate stop
loss amount for fiscal years ending June 30, 2010 and 2011 respectively.
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Corporate Claims Management, Inc. administers the City’s workers’ compensation plan. Under this plan,
the City pays the administrator a per ¢laim fee to administer its claims. All claims are paid directly by the
City. The City has purchased insurance coverage from Safety National Casualty Corp. that limits the City’s
maximum individual claims lability to $550,000 for USL & H and $400,000 for other regular employees
and per occurrence claims liability to $1,000,000. Additionally, $5,000,000 in coverage is provided for
annual claims in excess of $1,699,596. Rates are charged by the internal service fund to the other City
funds based on rates and experience factors established by the National Council on Compensation
Insurance and City of Cape Girardeau actual claims trends. Safety National is rated “A” by A. M. Best.

Claims liability is estimated using data supplied by the administrator. The claims activity during the last

five years i1s summarized as follows:

CLAIMS LIABILITIES RECONCILIATION

Balance Jane 30, 2006
Provision for Incurred Claims
Payment of Claims

Balance Yane 30, 2007
Provision for Incurred Claims
Payment of Claims

Balance June 30, 2008
Provision for Incurred Claims
Payment of Claims

Balance June 30, 2009
Provision for Incurred Claims
Payment of Claims

Balance June 30, 2010
Provision for Incurred Claims
Payment of Claims

Balance June 30, 2011

Health Workers'
Insurance Compensation Total
$ 509500 § 705,000  $ 1,214,500
2,520,411 517,676 3,038,087
(2,384.161) (552,676) (2.936.837)
$ 645750 % 670,000  $ 1,315,750
1,812,199 6,009 1,818,208
(2.346 ,449) (406,009) (2.752.458)
$ 111,500 § 270,000 § 381,500
1,860,053 523,905 2,383,958
(1,773.053) (363.905) {2.136,958)
g 198,500 $ 430,000 § 628,500
1,843,651 583,662 2427313
(181115 (493,662) (2,404.813)
$ 131,000 § 520,000 $ 651,000
2,238,055 106,108 2,344,163
(2.17L.055) (526.108) (2.697.163)
§ 198000 % 100,000 § 298,000
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NOTE P - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK/BAD DEBT ALLOWANCE

The City has uncollateralized utility accounts receivable generated within a limited geographical region
;}n{narlly consisting of its City limits. The City also has taxes, special assessments, and user fees receivable
which are concentrated among its citizens. Some of these items attach as liens against real and personal

property. The maximum accounting loss is the amount shown as utility charges receivable on the statement
of net assets.

At June 30, 2011, utility receivables totaled $2,268,627. On the financial statements, the utility receivables
are shown net of the allowance for doubtful accounts of $94,135. This results in net utility receivable of
$2,174,492. During the year ended June 30, 2011, the allowance was increased by $35,520 or
approximately .28% of the current year’s utility charges and accounts totaling $70,678 were written off,

NOTE Q - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

1. Litigation

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. Inthe opinion of City management, the potential
loss on all claims and lawsuits will not be significant to the City’s financial statements.

2. Grant Andit
The City receives Federal and State Grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by
various Federal and State agencies. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement by any of the

Federal and State agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms and conditions of the appropriate
agency. In the opinion of City management, such disallowances, if any, will not be significant.

3. Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2011, the City had construction commitments outstanding of $5,570,846. The construction
commitments represent incomplete portions of contracts entered into to construct the following: various
street projects, trail construction, platforms, power supply, and fiber optic cabling for 4 new raw water
supply wells, the rehabilitation of a commercial building, and housing rehabilitation. These contracts are
expected to be completed within the next fiscal year.

4. Encumbrances

As of June 30, 2011, the City had encumbrances outstanding of $8,165,801.
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NOTE R - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

On the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance, there are
prior period adjustments that total ($13,063.79). General Fund had a ($.01) adjustment due to actual
receipts from the FEMA ice storm disaster that occurred during January 2009 being less than originally
thought. Airport Fund had a prior period adjustment of ($11,505.28) for painting done by DSW on the
hangar they rented during September 2009, the value of which was supposed to be applied toward their rent
due. Finally, the Housing Development Grants fund had a prior period adjustment of ($1,558.50) for a
receivable that had been set up for administrative fees due from the Neighborhood Stabilization Grant
which were decreased because funds were not obligated by the due date.

The Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes int fund Net Assets had prior period
adjustments in both Sewer and Water funds which had to do with Construction in Progress costs for
projects expected to be capitalized upon their completion. Sewer fund had ($1,631.40) reversed due to
completed project cost being under the $5,000.00 capitalization threshold. Also, ($259.68) was set up for
engineering time thought to be a sewer project that turned out to be a street project. Water fund had an
adjustment in the amount of ($6,253.51) for costs associated with a water main extension that will be
privately maintained by St. Francis Hospital. The previous year’s financial statements had assumed that the
exiension would be maintained by the City and the costs were included with the City’s fixed assets,

The Statement of Activities includes a prior period adjustment in the amount of ($1,939.95) on the
governmental side for the decrease in Construction in Progress for items determined not to be a general
fixed asset. The previous Governmental Fund and Proprietary Fund adjustments were also included as
prior period adjustments on the Statements of Activities.

NOTE S - CONTINGENCY

1. InJune 2004, the City of Cape Girardeau and Cape Girardeau County entered into a development
agreement with a local business. Under the agreement, the local business agreed to pay for certain
public improvements incurred in conjunction with the construction of a new retail facility and the
City and County agreed to reimburse the local business for the cost of these improvements up o a
maximum of $4,000,000 over an estimated 15 years. The local business has completed these
improvements with a total cost of $2,668,646. The City is required by the development agreement
to reimburse the local business for $2,134,917 of these costs through scheduled quarterly payments
over the next fifteen years from available revenues. Available revenues are defined in the
development agreement as 75% of the City’s guarterly net revenues from specific sales taxes
generated by the business operations of the new retail facility which exceed $64,000. The rates of
the specified sales taxes currently equal 2%, Sales taxes with rates currently equal to 1% will expire
during the term of this agreement. The City will be required to substitute revenues for sales taxes
with equivalent rates, if available, when the specific sales taxes expire.
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NOTE S - CONTINGENCY - Continued

Required quarterly payments increase annually per the repayment schedule included in the
development agreement. To the extent that the available revenues for any quarter are less than the
required quarterly payment due, the unpaid amount will be added to the next scheduled quarterly
amount due without penalties. Any amounts unpaid at the end of 15 years will be payable quarterly
from available revenues for the remainder of the agreement. Any amounts unpaid at the end of the
agreement will not be required to be paid. The term of the developer agreement is 20 years from the
execution of the agreement.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, no payment was due under the development agreement.

2. InJune 2004, the City of Cape Girardeau and Cape Girardeau County entered into a development
agreement with a local real estate developer. Under the agreement, the local developer agreed to pay
for certain public improvements incurred in conjunction with the development of a 60 acre retail
development and the City and County agreed to reimburse the local business for the cost of these
improvernents from available net sales tax revenue generated from any businesses operations
located in the development.

The local developer has completed these improvements with a total cost of $2,998,434. The City
and County are required by the development agreement to reimburse the developer for these costs
plus 4% interest with quarterly payments from available revenue. Available revenue is defined by
the agreement as all the net sales tax revenue generated by two .25% City capital improvement sales
taxes and the .50% City transportation sales tax and 50% of the net sales tax revenue generated by a
.50% County sales tax. All City sales taxes have expiration date that could occur before the total
costs of the improvements are reimbursed to the developer. The County sales tax has no expiration
date. No provision is made to replace revenues from the City sales taxes that expire if they are not
extended. The development agreement remains in effect until the total cost of the public
improvements is reimbursed to the developer.

The City and the County are obligated only to make guarterly payments as may lawfully be made
from funds budgeted and appropriated for that purpose by the City and County. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011, the City incurred payments of $151,594 under the development
agreement, This amount is included in the Development Services expenses on the statement of
activities.

3. InJuly 2007, the City entered into a development agreement with Greater Missouri Builders, Inc.
(GMB) to reimburse them for costs associated with the Town Plaza Redevelopment Project. In
conjunction with this agreement the City established the Town Plaza Community Improvement
District (CID) and determined the project area to be blighted pursuant to Chapter 353 of the
Missouri Revised Statutes.
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This project involves the conversion of the former Sears facility into a call center for National Asset
Recover Services (NARS) and other various improvements, such as facade improvements, parking
facilities, roof reconstruction, and HVAC enhancements. Total reimbursements to GMB for
redevelopment costs were limited to $3.6 million plus 7.5% interest. These reimbursements will be
made from incremental County and City sales tax revenues, an additional ClID sales tax, and real
estate tax abatements. Reimbursements from incremental County and City sales tax revenue will be
limited to $1.2 of the $3.6 million total.

Incremental County and City sales tax revenue is defined as the difference in future tax revenues
from the City’s 1% general sales tax and .5% capital improvement sales tax and half the County’s
.5% general sales tax and the revenues from these taxes from the project area in calendar year 2006.
It’s anticipated that the CID will implement a 19 sales tax. Improvements to the redevelopment
project will receive 100% real estate tax abatement for the first 10 years and 50% real estate tax
abatement for the next 15 years. The current Sears facility will receive 50% real estate tax
abatement for 25 years. Based on 2006 assessed values the abatement of City taxes on the
unimproved Sears facility would be $627.53.

Beginning in year six of the agreement, 50% of the gross rentals from the NARS site will be used to
supplement the incremental sales tax revenues. Reimbursements from incremental sales tax
revenues expire with repayment of the amount to be paid by incremental sales tax or 20 years
whichever comes first,

This project was completed during the year at a cost of $3,203,308. Reimbursement from
incremental County and City sales tax revenue will be Iimited to $1,164,839.

The City and the County are obligated to make quarterly payments ag may lawfully be made
from funds budgeted and appropriated for that purpose by the City and County. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the City incurred payments of $39,729 under the development
agreement. This amount is included in the Development Services expenses on the Statement of
Activities.

NOTE T —~ SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 15, 2010 the City approved Abatement Order on Consent #1003 issued by the Missouri
Department of Natural Resources, This was an administrative action taken by the Missouri Department
of Natural Resources as result of their belief that the City was in violation of the Misscuri Clean Water
Law. As a result of the Order, the City has agreed to pay a $15,000 civil fine, commit at least $111,000
to a supplemental environmental project, and construct a new wastewater treatment plant that is in
compliance with current Missouri Clean Water Law.
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Budgeted Amounts
Qrininal Final Actual Amounts
REVENUES
Texes $ 14,412888.00 $ A2 B88.00 § 15,080,089 .21
Licenses & pemmils £,379,700.00 1,378,700.00 1,528 58845
irergovernmenial 580, 465.00 590,465.00 508 828,37
Charges for services 258,841.00 25884108 275,508.93
Indemal charges 4,150,055.00 1,450,085.00 1,488,365.86
fines ard forfeits 82500000 82500008 857,413 38
Misceflaneous {88,587 00 288 8697.00 466,014,898
investment ravghue 103,497.00 103,497 .00 106,166.80
Total revenues 15,608 B53.00 19,008, 85300 2C,056,565.75
EXPENDITURES e
Current:
Adminisirative 2,308,845.00 1,708,00500 1,661,245.58
Cantingency 40,000.00 40,606.00 8564013
Development Services 1,528,638.00 2,222 .838.00 2.120,734.90
Parks and Recreation 1,748,864.00 1.812,764.00 1,777, 70278
Public Safaty 1147771200 11.616,012.00 11,362,158.88
Public Works 2,231,659.00 2.346,500.00 2,241,115.28
Total curment 19,331,318.00 19,746,018,00 19,287,601.66
Debt service:
Administrative charges 470.00 470.00 1,081.79
interest 75,377.00 5,377.00 67,381.52
Principal 9%,000.00 91,000.00 §1,000,00
Totat debt service 156,847 .00 166 847 0O 15B,453.31
Capitat guliay:
Administrative 20,450.00 845600 -
Parks ang Recreation - 780000 7.808.00
Public Safety - 214,300,060 204,47564
Public Works - 7 500 00 7,312.58
Tota! capdai oullay 2045000 368.850.00 215,104.22
Tedat expenditrey 1951861508 R0,151. 71500 19,666,249.18
Excesy {deficiency} of revenues
over {ursder) expenditums {509,762.00} {4,142 862 ¢} 354,316.56
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transters in 4 468,200.00 4.853,2¢0.00 4,6877.318.77
Special agsessmenis 8,060.00 £,000.00 15.848.37
Advance repayments 73,652.00 7388200 80,511.88
Asguel disposition ~ - 28,350.92
Travsfers ol {4,004,389.00) i&, 161, 188,00} {4,207 841.45)
Total other financing sources and uses and Special items 546,553,00 774,753.00 596,187 47
Net change in fund balances 3879100 {358,109.00; 980,504 03
Fund baiances — beginning 4,482,385 17 4,462,385,17 4 482,385.17
Prior period adjustment {0.01 (9.01) {D.01}

Fund balances — ending

Clty of Cape Glrardeau
General
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chengee in Fund Balénces - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

$ 449917616 S 4.094.278.16 T8 544288918

Variance with
Firal Budget -
Pogltlve

{Negative)

§ 66809421
8,506 45
266,183.37
16,757.93
39,310,96
{167.566.62
177,417 .45
2.869.80
304171275

48,845.42
(55.640,13)
£2,903.10
35,061.21
233,852.02
105,393.72
458.416.34

(621.78)
8.015.48

7,393,609

2,450.00

(5.00)
.524.58
3p7.42
19,855,738
488 465 Bt

1.507.178.56

(475,573.23)
10,549,397
8,859,806
26,350,027
{48 452 45)
(178,56%.53
1,348,613.03

$  1,.248813.03
b ey
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City of Cape Girardoau
Airport
Statemant of Revenuas, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Endad June 30, 2014

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Firl Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actuat Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
infergovernmaerital $ 276.980.00 % 278,880.00 % 225043 31 $ (51,836.69}
Charges for services 223.100.00 323,900.00 327 804.94 4704 94
Miscelianesus 205,835.00 205,836.00 206,567.12 2,731.12
invesimant revenue 720.00 720.00 1,326.13 B606.13
Asset disposition - e WM _#_w__wm
Totaf revenues 806,636.00 806,636.00 782,789.00 43.847.00}
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Administrative 1,181 488.00 1,251.638.00 1,180,934 .52 80,802.48
Total currend 1,191,488.00 1.251,838.00 1.160,934.57 90,903.48
Dt service:
interest 599.00 569.00 - 589.00
Principal £1,800.00 14.604.00 - 11,800.60
Toial debt service 12,389.00 12,398.00 - 12,399.00
Capital outlay:
Administrative 1,550 00 11,550.00 - 11,550.00
Total capital cutlay 1.550.00 11.550.00 - 41,550.00
Total expenditures 1,205.437.00 1,275,767.00 1,160,934.52 11485248
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (znder} expenditures {388,801.00) {469,151.00) {398,145.52} 7100548
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Trangfers in £60,583.00 715,583.00 723,624 35 804125
Transters out (261,762.00) (261,782.00) {261,782.00) -
Totai other financing sovices and uses and special terns 395,801.00 453,801.00 461.842.25 804125
Net change in fund balances - (15,350.00 6369873 79.046.73
Fund balances - beginning 86,374.31 88,374.3% 86,374.31 -
Prigr perisd adjustment (11,505.28) {11,505.28) {11,505.28) i

Furil balances - ending 3 74,868.03 $ 59,519.03 5 138,565.76 $ 79,046.73
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City of Cape Girardeau
Park and Recreation

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 902,472.00 3 902,472.00
Internal charges - -
Miscellaneous 13,800.00 13,800.00
Investment revenue 3,240.00 3,240.00
Total revenues 919,512.00 919,512.00
EXPENDITURES
Cumrent:
Parks and Recreation 2,145,194,00 2,327,894.00
Total current 2,145,194.00 2,327,894.00
Capital outlay:
Parks and Recreation - -
Total capital cutlay - -
Total expenditures 2,145,194 .00 2,327,894.00
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures {1,225,682.00) {1,408,382.00}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers in 1,225,682.00 1,225,682.00
Asset disposition - .
Transfers out — —_
Totatl other financing sources and uses and special items 1,225,682.00 1,225,682.00
Net change in fund balances - (182,700.00)
Fund balances — beginning 243,805.09 243,805.09
Fund balances — ending $ 243,805.09 $ 61,105.09

See Independent Auditors’ Report.

Actual Amounts

$ 1,154B872.72
1,025.66

14,765 .68
11,327.14

1,181,991.20

2,089,912.81

2,089,912.81

17.409.25
17.409.25

2,107,322.06

(925,330.86)

1,086,998.25
8,274.98
{1,816.52)

1,093,456.71

168,125.85
243,805.09

S 41193004

Variance with
Final Budget -
Positive
(Negative)

$ 25240072
1,025.66

965.68

8,.087.14

262,479.20

237,981.19
237,981.19

(17,409.25)
—_ (1740925)
220,571.94

483,051.14

(138,683.75)
8,274.98
(1,816.52)

(132,225.29)

350,825.85

)

)

)

$ 350.825.85

Il


http:350,825.85
http:350,825.85
http:132,225.29
http:1,816.52
http:8,274.98
http:138,683.75
http:483,051.14
http:220,571.94
http:17,409.25
http:17,409.25
http:237,981.19
http:237,981.19
http:262,479.20
http:8,087.14
http:1,025.66
http:252,400.72
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City of Cape Girardeau
Transportation Sales Tax Trust Fund

Statement of Rgvenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Posltive
Uriginal Final Actual Amounts (Negative}
REVENLUES
Taxes $§ 2.985,000.00 & 2,985,00000 3 2614,513.33 5 (37448667
Investment revenue 48,000,00 48,000.00 151,219.84 103.219.84
Total revenues 3,033,000.00 3,033,000.00 2716173317 {271,266.83)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Development Setvices 63,000.00 72,000.00 60,949.76 71,050.24
Total cument £3,000.00 72,000.0C 50,948,786 1105024
Capital ouliay;
Capital improvement Projects 1,475,369.00 3,525,369 30 1,666,573,03 1,834,785.97
Totai capital outlay 1,175,369.00 3,525,369.00 1,680,573.03 1,834,795.97
Tota! expenditures 1,238,369.00 3,597,369.00 1,751,522,79 1,845,846.21
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 179483100 (564,369.00) 01021038 e ETASTI I8
OTHER FINANCING SOURGES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers in 350,000.00 350,000.00 350,000.60 -
Tola! other financing sources and uses and special items 350,000.00 350,000.00 350,000.00 -
Met change In fund balances 2,144 .631.00 {214,389.00) 1.360,210.28 1,574 579.38
Fund balances - beginning 1,6684,671.61 1,664,611 81 1,664,611.81 -

Fund batances - ending

$ 3,608,242.61 $ 1,450,24261 $ 3,024,821.99 $ 157457838
e e — T ———— T e es e




City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
June 30, 2011

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The City adopts annual operating budgets for all funds except Storm Water Projects from Storm
Water Sales Tax Fund, Park Improvement Projects from Park / Storm Water Sales Tax Fund and
Water System Improvement Project Fund which have project length budgets and the Cape Girardeau
Municipal Development Foundation, the Cape Girardeau Public Safety Foundation, and the Cape
Girardeau Parks Development Foundation whose main purposes are to solicit and collect donations.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

1. The City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year ending the following June 30th at the first meeting of June each vear. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3. Priorto July 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between programs within
any department; however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any
department must be approved by the City Council. Departments may not legally exceed
their appropriations without approval from the City Council. Appropriations expire at the
end of the year; however, outstanding encumbrances at the end of the year are honored by
the City.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the
year for all funds.

6. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a budgetary basis.

7. If, during the fiscal year, the City Manager certifies there are additional revenues to
appropriate, unencumbered appropriation balances within a department, or there is an
emergency situation, the City Council may amend the initial budget by ordinance. The
initial budget was adopted by the City Council on June 21,20 10 and amended on
February 22, 2011, March 21, 2011, and July 5, 2011. The initial budget and final
amended budget are both reflected in the financial statements.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the fund expenditures for Vision 2000, Downtown Business
District, Motor Fuel, Capital Improvement Sales Tax-Water System Improvements, Capital
Improvement Sales Tax-Sewer System Improvements, Transportation Sales Tax Trust Fund II,
Transportation Sales Tax Trust Fund IV, General Capital Improvements, and Park Improvements
exceeded their approved budgets by $3,102, $1,594, $290, $6,627, $7,654, $23,516, $127,920,
$137,817 and $2,985, respectively.
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BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING - Continued

City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

June 30, 2011

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

The Statement of Revenues, Fxpenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
reports revenues and expenditures on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
GAAP. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and
Actual (Budget Basis) for all governmental fund types is prepared on a budgetary basis which
includes encumbrances as expenditures.

The following reconciliation adjusts GAAP basis to budget basis:

GAAP Basis
increase du¢ to
Year-end engumbrances
Administrative services
Development services
Parks and recreation
Fublic Safety
Public Works
Capital outlay
Contingency
Funds not budgeted annuaby
Advance from other finds
Adjust investments to masket
Encumbrance revenue

Decreanse due to)
Year-end encumbrances
Admnisirative services
Development services
Parks and recreation
Public safety
Public works
Capital cutlay
Contingency
Encurnbrance revenue
Adjust invest 1o market

Budget Basis

Excess {Deficiensy) of Revenues and Giher

Financiag Sources Over (Undes} Expenditures and

Other Einancing Uses
Park Prejects
Parks and Transportation From Park Non-major
{jeneral Alrport Recreation Trust I} Sales Tax Funds

$ 930338 § 67338 $ 163985 471,604 § (3,585453) 3 (138,703)
1,555 6,266 - - - 24,632
5809 - - - - 160,483
14,834 - 4903 - - 12,712
24,021 - - - - 208
13931 - . - - -

- “ - 4471862 - 632,124

- - - - 3,585,453 287,951

80,512 - - . - -
16,178 622 2,534 34,557 - 51,416

. BB42S 4,480 — - - - _ 3w 1o
75968 11,368 7337 4,506,419 3,585,453 1L360.736
3,838 15,007 - - - -
24916 - - - - 18416
1,263 - 3,246 - - 4,888
98,857 - - - - 25,454

27 688 - - - - -

- - - 2,723,087 - 519,191

4,548 - -

8,589 - - 894,126 - 520742

e 175,059 15,007 1256 g2y _ - 1108 68%

The individual proprietary fund schedules of comparing budget to actual is reporied on a budgetary
basis that uses the modified accrual basis of accounting with the exception of encumbrances.
Encumbrances are reported as expenses in the year of encumbrance.
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
June 30, 2011

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING - Continued

Net Income {1oss)

Solid Goif Softbalt
Sewer Waler Wagle Course Complex
GAAP Basis § 2,667,155 51,704,557 § (198,558) § (822000 § 713,268
Increase due to
Prior year encumbrances
Operating expenses 83,026 8,573 10,698 3,341 8,498
Capital Outlays 2,042,450 16,470 - - -
Depreciation 2,146,179 1,447,889 455283 118,721 24918
Specizl assessments 12,775 4066 - . .
HBond proceeds - - - - .
Intercst cost amortized 313,157 - - - -
Cost of bond refunding amortizstion - 42,610 . - -
Issuance cost amortization 18,836 15,205 6,150 - -
Interest paid meore than accrual - 17,148
Amonized bond premiur/discount - - - - -
Adjust investments to markel 10,545 42,780 3,408 285 232
Amounts deferred to be used for future debt
service on capilal appreciation bonds
Construction fund carnings 148,356 « - - -
Interest subsidy received 365,025 - - - -
Net OPEB obligation 30,819 6,884 10,411 10,345 3,462
Asset dispositions 68,128 1358 4.507 - .
5,239,536 1,583,212 513.642 132,692 32110
Decrease due to:
Year-end encumbrances
Operating expenses 1,031,534 174,935 16,332 248 7,646
Capital outlays 226,492 15,236 - - -
Landfill closure and maintenance costs - - 1611 - -
Cost of bond refunding amortization - - - -
issuance cost amortization - - -
Interest paid more than acerual 33,295 12,333 - - -
Bond principal paid 2,199,500 925,000 218,690 26,704 16,6235
Amortized Bond premium/discount - 11,657 3,420 - -
Capital outlays 1,630,323 323,427 599,717 1,187 3,117

Adjust investments to market - - - - .
Asset Dispositions - - -
Defcrred revenues 404,804 28,369 38,406 - -
Adjustment to lability for future landfill

postclosure maintenance costs - - 1,889 - -
Contributed capital L lesan ! 92 - 19419 722,600
6324120 2.830.589 380,365 47,559 749.98%

Hudget Basis 5135823571 3 457180 % (65481 3. 2933 % 390
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

June 30, 2011

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING - Continued

Net Income {Loss)

Data Fleet Employee Risk Eguipment
Processing  Managerment Fringe Mmagement  Replacement
GAAP Basis § 64,125 $ (59566 § 382,707 % 374041 B 43231
Increase due to:
Prior year encumbrances
Operating expenses - 7,058 . - -
Capita] Qutlays 51,361 6,935 - - 6,494
Depreciation 58,336 17,949 . - 268,239
Deferred revenues - 14,814 - .
Issuance cost amortization - - - . 546
Difference between proceeds from
sale of fixed assets and gain or loss - - . - )
Net OPER Obligation 7,581 35,574 - - .
Adjust investments to market 655 25 11,619 16,197 6.188
117933 __ B2353 11619 16,197 281,467
Decrease due to:
Year-end encumbrances
Operating expenses 330 4,157 - - .
Capital outlays 58,651 - . - .
Interest paid more than accrued - - . . 17
Adjust investments to market . - - - .
Amortized Bond premium/discount - . - - 367
Principal paid - - - - 40,000
Capital outlays __Tea25 11867 - . 215.846
138,100 22024 - - 256,330
Budget Basis $_43082 §. 765 §.394326 $390238 5 68368
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CITY OF CAPE GIRARDEAU, MISSOURI

Schedule of Funding Progress

June 30, 2011

(b) (b-a) [(b-2)/c)]
{(a) Entry Age Unfunded ©) UAlL asa
Actuarial Acuarial Actuarial Accrued {a/b) Annual Percentage of
Valuation Value Accrued Liability Funded Covered Covered
Date Of Assets Liability (UAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
2/28/2009 8 26,852,264 $ 30,816,797 $ 3,964,533 87% $ 13,852,177 29%
2/28/2010 28,033,747 31,677,279 3,643,532 88% 14,192,849 26%
2/28/2011 28,180,987 32,648,850 4,467,863 86% 13,842,403 32%

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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City of Cape Girardeau
Vision 2000
Statemant of FRlevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Baiancas - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Yariance with
Budgeted Amounis Final Budget -
Pasltive
Griginal Final Actual Amounis {Negative}
REVENUES
investment revenue 5 - ] - $ 86.82 $ 8582
Total revenues “ . 88,82 §5.82
EXPENDITURES
Total expondiiures - .. . .
Excess {deficiancy} of revenuss
over (under} expenditures - - 86.82 86.82
OTHER FINANCING SDOURCES {USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Tranglers out - - (3.101.84) {3,101.94
Total other financing scurces and uses and special tems - - {3,101.94) {3,101.94)
Net change in fund balances - - {3.015.12) (3.018.12)
Fiund balantes — beginning 3,025.82 3,025 82 3.025482 -
Fund balances - ending 3 3,025.82 ] 302592 $ 10.80 3 (301512

See Independent Auditors' Report.
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REVENUES

Taxes
Intergovamrontal
Miscallaneous
Invesimeant revenve

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Currant:
Adrinistrative
Total current
Tota! sxpendiiures

Excess [deficiency; of ravenues
over {under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fumd bafarces ~ beginning
Fund balances — ending

City of Capy Girardeau
Convention and Tourigm,

For the Year Ended June 38, 2011

1.741,926.00

1,780,740.00

Budgeted Amounts
Qriginal Finat
$ 172082000 § 1,720,926.00
21,006.00 21,400,00

1,741,820.00

1.975,0680,00
1,975 (90.00
1.975 080,00

1,¥80,740.60

1,790,740.00

(48,820.00) (233,170.00)
48,820.00) {233,170.00)
655,746.52 665,746.52

5 ©16926.52 3 43257852

$ee Ingependent Auditors’ Repart.

Ststement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Actual Amounts

§ 1766.534.92
25,639.02
500,00
12,929.01

1,8(:5,502.95

1,912,886 63
1,912 856.65
1812 886,65

{107,393.70)

{107,393.70)

665, 746.52
3 558,352.82

Variance with
Final Budget -

Posltive

(Negative)

13 43.814.97
25,538.02
500.08

(8,070.98)

§3,582.95

62,183,135
B82,183.25
62,183 35

125.776.30

128,776.30

3 325,776.30
PR e
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REVENUES

Taxes
inveshment revenue

Total revenes

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Davelopment Services

Total curment
Debt Service:
Interest
Prncipal
Tolal debt service
Total expenditures
Excess (deficency} of revenues
gver {under} expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances -- baginning
Fund balances — ending

City of Cape Girardeau
Downtown Business District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditurss, and Changes In Fund Balanges - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual Amounts

Budgatad Amounts

Qrigtnai
$ 203.8258.00 -3 20,825.00
1.500.00 1,500.00
2232500 22,325.00
12,325.00 12,325.00
12,325.00 12,325.00
5073.00 507300
4 927 00 4827.00
10,000.00 10.000.00
22,3258.00 22,325.00
33.828.55 33.828.55
$ 33,828.55 3 33,628.55

See Independent Auditors' Report.

$

$

32,651.70
1,102.00

33,153.73

1391848
13,519,48

5,033.22
4.966.76
16,000.00

23,919.49

9,234.24

B34 .24

33.820.55
43,062.79

Varianve with
Final Budget -
Positive
(Megative)

5 11,228.7¢

{397.97)
1082873

{1,504.49)
{1,594.48)

39.78
(39.78)

{1,594.48)
9.234.24

§.234.24

§ 9,234.24
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REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses & permils.
Intergavernmental
Investrment revenue

Tolal revenues

EXPENDITURES
Carrent:
Public Safety
Total current

Teral sxpendisres
Excess {deficiency] of revenuas
aver (under} expenditures

Met change in fund balances

Fund balances — beginning
Fund balances - ending

City of Cape Girardoau

Health
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changaes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual Amounts

Budgeted Amounts

Original Finai
$ 310,440.00 % 310.440.00
4,000,00 4,000,008
7,675.00 7.575.00
12,000.00 12,000.00
33401500 334,015.00
334,015.00 334,015.00
334.615.00 334,015.00
32401800 334,015.00
448.688.24 445 668,24
$ 448 588,24 $ 446,688,24

$

33712221

312,949,168

5

309,707 80
7.596.00
7,848 859

12,668.42

312,549.16

2,848 .16

24,773.05

24, 773.05

446,688.24
471,461.29

Variance with
Final Bucdygel -
Positive
(Nggative}
3 {(732.20;
3,396.00
373.99
569,42
37071
21,065.84
21,085.84
2106584
24,773.05
2877305

$ 24,773.08

A T ————
it
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City of Cape Glrardony
Mator Fust Tax

Statomnent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Endad June 30, 2044

Budgeted Amounts
Qrlginal Final
REVENUES
intergovemmentai §  4,324.000.00 $  1,324,000.00
Investment revenue 3,740.00 3,740.00
Total revenues 1,327,740.00 1,347,740.00
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Fublic Safety - -
Total current R .
Tolal experkitures - -
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
aver {under) expanditures 1,327,740.00 1,327 140.00
OTHER FINANGING SOURCES {USES) AND SPECIAL ITENS
Special assessments 4.468.00 4,468.00
Transfers out {1.320.000.00) 1,320,000.00
Tolal olher financing sources and uses and spedial ilems {1,315,532.00) (1,315,532.00)
Net change in fund balances 12,208.00 12,208.00
Fund batances - beginning 161,548,320 161,548.30
Fund balanges - gnding $ 173,756.30 $ 173,756.30

See independent Auditors' Report.

Actual Amounts

$ 135623558
8.913.96

1,385,148.55

285.83

288.63
283.53

1.364,858.92

457065
{1,320,000.003

(1.315,428.35)
4943057

161.548.30
S 240,978.87

Variance with
FInai Budget -
Poslitiva
{Negative)
$ 32,235.58
5,173.66
37,408.55
(2858.63}
{289 63)
{268.63}
37,118.92
102.65
102.65
3722257
$ 3722257



http:37,222.57
http:210,976.87
http:173,756.30
http:173,796.30
http:161,546.30
http:161,548.30
http:37,222.57
http:49,430.57
http:12,208.00
http:12,206.00
http:315.532.00
http:11,315,532.00
http:1,320,000.00
http:4,570.55
http:4,468.00
http:4.468.00
http:37,119.92
http:1.354.659.92
http:1,327,740.00
http:37.409.55
http:1,365.149.55
http:1,327.740.00
http:1.327,740.00
http:5,173.96
http:8,913.96
http:3,740.00
http:3,740.00
http:32,235.59
http:1,356,235.59
http:1,324,000.00
http:1,324,000.00

NS
(2%

City of Cape Girardeau

Capital improvement Sales Tax-Flogd Conteal

Statament of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances - Budgat and Actual
For the Year Ended Juns 30, 20111

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final
REVENUES
investment revenue $ - $
Totai revenves - -
EXPENDITURES
Capitsi outiay:
Capital Improvement Projects - 1700000
Tetal capial outiay - 17 40000
Total expenditures - 17.000.00
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
over {under} axpendilurey - (17,000.00)
CTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Trangfers out - (45.000.00)
Total other financing sources and uses and special items - 45,000.00)
Net change in fund balances - {62,060.00)
Fund batances — beginning 59,577.12 59.577.12
Furd balances -- ending $ 59.577.12 $ §2,422.§B)

See Independent Auditors' Report.

Actual Amounts

Varfance with
Finzl Budget -
Positive
{Megatlve)

$ 1.6687.77

1,587.77

17,654 60
17,654.80
17,654.60

{16,066.83)

{16,066.83)

59,577.12

§ 4351028
e e e

3 1.587.7¢
1,587.77

(654.60)
— (05480
{654.60)

83317

45,000.00
45,000.00
45,8337

5 45,933.17
S T


http:59,577.12
http:59,571.12
http:59,577.12
http:59,577.12
http:16,066.63
http:45,000.00
http:17,654.60
http:17,000.00
http:17,654.60

€6

City of Cape Girardeau

Capital Improvement Salas Tax-Water Systsm improvements

Statement of Revenuwes, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For tha Year Ended June 30, 2041

Budgoted Amounts

Original Final

REVENUES

Taxes
investment revenue

Todal revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cumrent:
Development Services:
Total eurrent

Rebt service:
Administrative charges
Interast
Principal

Total debt service
Toial expenditures

Exeess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under} expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers in
Transfer out

Totat other financing sources and uses and special iterns
Net change in fund balarces

Fund balances — begianing
Fund balances — ending

$ 2,190.700.00 $ 2.150.700.00

100,000.00 100,000,00
2,290,700.00 2.280,700.00
38,000.00 40.700.00
38,000.00 40,700.00
58,718.00 £2,459.00
561,120.00 583,370.00
1,110,000.00 1,130,600,00
1,730,839.00 1,776.430.00
1,768,835.00 1.817,136.00
521,861.00 473 ,561.00

. (1,400,000.00)

. {1,400,000.00)

521,861.00 {§26,438.00)
2,262,035.23 2.262,035,23

$ 2,773,896.23 $ 1,325.586.23

. e —— .

Actuat Amounts

$ 222558051
78.918.05

2,304, 498.56

4835401
48,364.01

61,534.57
£83,277 85

1,130,600.00
1,775,412 42

1,523, 768.43

480,732.13

#,350.97

(1,400,000.00)
(1,395.649.03)

(914,918.90)

$ 1,337,118.23

Varianco with

Final Budget -

Pogitive
{Nagative}

% 34,880.51
(21.081.95)

13,798,586

{7.654.01)

(7.654.01)

234,43
82.15

1,028.58
Be27.4%

7,171.13

4,350.97
4,350.97
11,822.10

$ 11,522.10
T


http:4,350.97
http:1,395.649.03
http:1,400,000.00
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REVENUES

Inyestment revenue

Totai revenues

EXFENDITURES
Debt service:
Administrative charges
Interest
Principal
Total debt service
Capital pufiay:
Capital improvement Projects
Total capitai outlay

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
gver {under; expenditures

City of Cape Girardeau
Transportation Sales Tax Trust Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actua!
For the Year Ended June 34, 2011

QTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USEB] AND SPECIAL ITEMS

Special assessments

Total other finarting sources and uses and special ilems

Net ¢change in fund balances

Fund balances — haginning
Furd batances — ending

Rudgeted Amounts
Original Einal
$ 12.400.00 % 12,400.00
12,400.00 12,400.00
470.00 470.00
12,423.00 12,428.00
123,000.00 123,000.00
135,893.00 135,593.00
. 3,500.00
- 3,500.00
135,693.00 138 383,00
{123,453.00) {126.983.09)
55,100.00 58,100.00
55,100.00 55,100.00
{68,393.00} {71,893.00}
233.488.15

233,488.15

5

165.096.15

$ 16159515

Actual Amounts

Yariance with
Final Budget -
Puosltive

{Nagative}

3 aorads

12,074,45

418,00
12,423.00
123,000,006

135,841.00

3447 68
1,447.68
139,288.68

(127,214.23)

58,916.14
58,816.14

(68,298.09)

233,4BB.15

% 165,180.06

$ 325.55)
{325.55)

§2.00

52.00

52.32
52.32
104.32

221.23)

381614
3,816.14

3,594

3 3,594
P i


http:12,074.45
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City of Cape Glrardeais
Caphtal Improvemant Sales Tax-Sewer Systam Improvaments
Statementi of Revenues, Expendituraa, st Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actusl
For the Year Ended June 38, 2011

Bugdgeted Amcunts

Original Final Actual Amounts
REVENUES
Taxes §  Z2.180,700.00 3 2,190,700.00 $ 2.225604.58
invegiment reveriue 12,000,600 12 000,00 15,215,486
Tolal revenyes 2,202,700.00 2.2062,700.00 224082004
EXPENDITURES
Casrrent
Development Seevices 38,000.00 40,700.00 43,354.00
Tolal current 38,000.00 445,700.00 48,354.00
Total expendires 38,000.00 40, 700.00 45,354.00
Exvess (deficlency) of revenues
over {urger} expenditures 2,164 70000 2,162,000.00 2,192,466.04
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ARD SPECIAL ITEMS
Trarsters an {1,702,800,00) {2,818,599,00) {2,816,589.00)
Total other finanging seurces and uses and special items {1 ,?02.399.002 {2,846,590.00) {2,618.689.00)
Net changs i fund balances 481 BO1 00 (654 5489.00} 1824, 132.66)
Fund balances — baginning 1,150,365 .58 1,150 395,58 1,150,305 58

Fund balances — entling $ 1,612,188.58 3 49579650 $ 81826202

VYarfance with
Final Budget -
Paositive
{Magative}

3 34,904.58
3,21545

38,120.04

{7.654.00)
{7.854.00)
(7.654.00)

30.466.04

3045604

$ 30,465.04
CE—————


http:46,354.00
http:40,700.00
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City of Cape Girardeay
Transportation Sales Taxk Trust Fund Il
Staterment of Revenues, Exponditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Varante with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Qn'giiml Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
HEVENUES
investment revenye 3 §,760.00 $ £,700,00 $ 9,922.29 3 3,22228
Total revenues 6,700,600 8,700.00 ©.922.28 3,222.249
EXPENCITURES
Capital cutlay;
Capital Improvement Projects - - {23,516,48) 2351648
Total cegital outlay - - {23,516.4%) 23,516.48
Tolal expenditures - - (43516.48) 2351649
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under} expendibres 6.700.00 6,700.00 33,438.78 26873878
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (JSES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Spesial agsessments 44.100.00 41,106.00 29,541,91 (1%,588.09)
Total other financing sources and uses and special Hems 41,100,00 4% 100.00 29.541.91 {11,558.09)
Net change in fund balances 47, 300.00 47 B00.00 62,980.69 15,180.69

Fund balances — beginning 47,671.52 47,571,652 47,671.52 -
Fund batances - enging 3 85,371.52 $ 95 371,52 § 1195520 & 156,180.68
m————— e — e T m— T T


http:15,180.69
http:15,180.69
http:11,558.09
http:26,738.78
http:23,516.49
http:23,516.49
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Gity of Cape Girardeau
Fire Sales Tax
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Eor the Year Ended Juns 30, 2011

Budgated Amounts
Orlglnat Final Actual Amounts
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,123,310.00 § 212331000 $ 2,152.560.98
Totad reverues 2,143,2140.00 2,123,310.0G 2,152,560.98
EXPENDITURES
Tolal expenditures - - -
Excess (deficisncy} of revenuas
over {under} gxpenditures 2. 4283.810.00 2,123,310.00 2,152,560.98
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers out (2.120.774.00) (2,170,774.00; (2£,135,156.89)
Total sther financing sources and uses and special Bems {2,120,774.00) (2.170.774.00) {2,135,156.58}
Net change in fund balances 2,536.00 {47.464.00) 1740408
Fund balances ~ heginning 106,508 .40 199,508.40 180,508.40
Fund balances — ending § 20204440 § 18204440 $  218.012.48%
e ———— " e

See indepandent Auditors” Report,

Variance with
Final Budget -
Paxsitive

_{Negattve)

$ 2325098
28,250.98

28,250.98

3581711
35,8171

64,864.08

$ 4,868.09
e e



86

Clty of Cape Girardeau
Pubtic Safety Trust

Btatemont of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actusl Amounts

Budgetad Amounts
Qriginal Final
REVENUES
Investmant revenue & 21,900.00 % 21,900.00
Total revenues 21,800.00 21,800.00
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety - -
Total current - .
Debt service:
Administrative chiarges 500.00 500.00
Interest 151,156.00 151,156.00
Principal £63,992.00 563,992.00
Total dett service 715,648.00 745,648.00
Capital outiay:
Copital improvemant Projecis - -
Public Safaty 23% 441,00 238 441.00
Tolat capital outlay 239,441.00 238 44100
Tolal expendilures 855,084.00 955,084 00
Excess (ceficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (933.189.00) {933,185.00)
QTHER FINANCING SOURRCES (USES]) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers n 2,120.774.00 2,145 774.00
Transfers out {1,159,387 00} {1,184, 38700}
Fotal other financing sources and uses and special items 961,387.00 961,387 .00
Net change in furd balances 28,198.00 28,198.00
Fund balances - beginning 806,999,560 806,298 50
Fund balances ~ ending $  H35197.60 $  B35197.60

See Independent Auditors' Report,

31,942.87

3,541.86
3,541.85

187846
145,847,115
583,882.00
F11,747.64

1,398.97
232.030.38
23342876
048,688,232

{316,745,35]

2,135,156 89

(1,165,575.44)

968,575,45
54,830.09

805,999 60
5 __esp9z69

Variance with
Final Budget -
Pasitive
{Negative)

& 10,042 .87
10,042.87

{3,641.86}
{3 541.86)

{1,378.48)
530685

|

3.930.38

(1,388.37)
7410681
6,012.24

6.400.77

16,443.64

1081714}
17,808 55
7,191.43

23,635.08

$ 2363509
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Clty of Cape Girgrdeau
Debt Servige
Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

Budgeted Amouris Final Budget -
Positive
Original Flnal Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVEMNUES
Investment revenug $ 4,420.00 § 4,420.00 3 5,184.74 $ 764 74
Total revenues 4.420.00 4,420.00 5,184.74 76474
EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Administrative charges 284200 284200 2,821.50 20.50
Interest 125,582.00 125,892.00 125,9492.00 -
Principal 172,000.90 2,132,000.00 2,132,000.00 -
Total dein servica 300,834,00 2,280,834 .00 2,269,813.50 20.50
Tote! expenditures 300,834.00 2,260,834.00 2,260,813.50 20.50
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expendilures 1296,414.00) {2,.256,414,00 {2,255,628.78) 78524
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers in 281,782.00 1,955,282.00 1,958 282.00 -
Special assessments 33,000.00 33,000.00 33,517,064 517.94
Totat other financing sources and uses and special items 284,782 00 1,988,282.00 1,986,799.94 517.84
Net change in fund balances {1.632.00) {268,132.00} {286,628.82) 1,303.18
Fund kalances — beginning 288,063.86 289,063.86 285,062.66 -
Fund balances — ending $ 28743188 $ 20,931.86 $ 22,235.04 $ 1,3063.18

See independent Auditors® Repost.

e A e e
Pt g
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http:287,431.88
http:289,063.86
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http:4,420.00
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REVENUES

intergovernmental
investment revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Capital outlay:

Capital Improvement Projects

Total capitat outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
aver {under) expenditures

City of Cape Girardeau
General Capital improvements

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Foy the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Criginal Final
$ - $ -
5,000.00 5,000.00
£.000.00 6,000.00

H

Il

OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS

Transfers in

Total other financing sources and uses and special tems

Net change in fund balances

Fund balanoes - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Actual Amounts

6,000.00 £,000.00
§,000.00 §,000.00
196,026.95 196,926.95

§ 20282685

§ 202928485

See independent Auditors' Repon.

% §2.978.53
411113

97,0866

137.817.44
137.817.44

137.817.44

(40,727.78)

§0,000.00
§0,000.00

19,272.22

196,026.95

$ 21618817

Wariante with
Final Budget -
Positive
{Negative)

$ 9297853
(1,888.87)

91,085.66

(137,817.44)
o M37B17 A
(137 817.44)

(46,727.78}

60,000.00
£0,000.00

13,272.22

$ 13272.22



City of Cape Girargdeau
Street knprovements
Statorent of Revenues, Experditures, and Changes in Fund Batances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual Amounts

Varlance with
Final Budget -
Pogitive
{Negative)

REVENUES

investrmant revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under: expenditures

8 OTHER FINANCING SOURGES {(USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
™~ Special Assessments

Total other financing sourcas and uses and special items

N¢t change in fung balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances — ending

Budgeted Amounts

Qriginal Final
5 £,800,00 $ €,800.00
6,800.00 6,800.00
6,800.00 8,800.00
13,700,00 13,700.00
13,7G60.60 13,700.00
20,500.00 20,500.00
37,553.41 37,553.4%
3 58,053.41 $ 58,0583.41

See independent Autitors' Report.

3

$

5,689.59
§.689.59

5,688.50

10,489.78
10,489.78
17,178.37

37,553.41
54,732.78

S ioay
(’12{3.412

{110.41)

(3.210.22;
(3,210.22)
(3.320.63)

§ {3,320.83}



City of Cape Girardeau
Park improvements
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances -~ Budget and Actual
For the Year Endad June 30, 2014

Butyated Amounts
Original Final
REVENUES
Intergoveramantal $ - $ -
Investrmient revenue - -
Total revenues - A,
EXPERDITURES
Detst service
interest - -
Totai debt servioe - .
= Capital outiay
tJ Capital Improvement Projacts . 65,000.00
Total copital outlay - 65,000.00
Total expenditures - 65,000.00
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss
over {under) expenditures “ {85,000.00;
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) AND SPECIAL ITENS
Transfers in - 5,000.00
Total other financing sourcas and uses and special items - 5.000.00
Net change in fund balances - {£0,000.00
Fund balances - beginning {75,454.71} {75,454.74)

Fund balances — ending

$  (715454.71)

§ (12545471}

Actual Amounts

$ 20.503.05
161.83

20.664.85

3,111.686
311166

64 873,15
64,873,15
67,5p4.81

{47,319.83)

114,816.85
114,816.85

67,486.92

(75,454.71)

$ {7,957.79)

Varlance with
Final Budget -
Positive
{Negative}

$ 20,503.435
161.83

20.,6564.88

{3,111.66)
(3,111.66)

126.85
126,85
(2.984.81)

i

17,680.07

108,815,685
108,818,685

127.496.92

§ 127,456.92

i


http:127,496.92
http:109,816.85
http:109,816.85
http:2,984.81
http:3,111.66
http:20,503.05
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City of Cape Girardeau
Community Development Block Grant Projects

Statoment of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Far the Year Endad June 39, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ . S w
rwastment revenue - -
Total revenues - -
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Development Services - 405,000,080
Tetal curent - 405,000.00
Debt service:
interast e -
Total debt service - -
Total expendiures - 405,000.00
Excess (defickency) of revenues
over {under} expendifures - {405,000.00)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES} AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers in - -
Transfers out - “
Total other inancing sources and uses and special items - -
Neil change in fund balances - (405,000.00)
Furyd balances - beginning 36,740.64 36,740.84
und balances = ending $ 36,740,684 5 (368,258.36)

See Independent Auditors' Report.

Actual Amounts

§  393,999.94
949.51

400,848,785

A0 340.44
400,340.44

295.04
295.00

40063544

314,34

325.00

(218.11)

106.68
421.20

36, 740.64

3 37,161.84
s e ]

Varlance with
Final Budget -
Pogitive
{Negativa)

$  385,980.94
949.81

400,948.75

4 659.56
4,659.56

(285.00)
(285 00}

4,384.56

405,314.31

325.00
(218.11)

106.80
405 421.20

$ 40542120
ST ———
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REVENUES

Taxes
Irtergovemmentol
Investment revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Dovelopment Services
Total currant

Oabt service:
Interest

Total debt service

Capital gutiay:
Capita! improvement projects

Total capital outiay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of ravenyes
aver (under) expenditures

Fund balances — beginning
Fund balances - ending

City of Cape Girardeau
Transportation Sales Tax Trust Fung IV

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actyal
For the Year Ended June 38, 2011

Budgsted Amounts

QOriginal

Final

150,000.00
150,000,060

15Q,005.00

{150,000.001

$  (150,000.00)

Actual Amounts

5 1,894721.60
30,000.00

5,886.70

1,730,708.30

704713
7.647.13

5.1¢
518

270,867.47
27086742
2791974

1,452,768.56

g 145278858
r————r

Variance with
Final Budget -
Pasitive
{Negative}

$ 1,594,721.60
30,000.00
5,885.70

1,730,708.30

7,047.13)
(7.047.13)

(5.13)
{5.19)

{140,867.42)
(120,867.42)
(127,919.74)

1,602,788.56

$ 160278858
o i Ty



¢0l

REVENUES

Taxes

Investrent revenue

Totlal revenues

EXPENDITURES

Capital cutlay:

Parks ardd Recreation

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS

‘Transfers cut

Total niher fnanging sources and uses and special items

Total capital cutiay
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency} of revenues
ower {under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances — beginning
Fund balanoes — ending

City of Cape Girardeau

Park Storm Water Sales Tax

Fer the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts

Qriginat Final
§$ 1,0682.180.00 § 1.062,180.00
3,000.00 3.000.00
f,csﬁ,maoo 1,065,180.00
$00,000.00 100,000.00
100,000.00 100,600.00
100,000.00 100,000.00
465,180.00 965,180.00
{1.015.245.00 {1,115,245.00)
1,045,245.00) {1,115,.245.00}
50,065,003 {150,065.00)
28582143 295,821.43
§  245,756.43 5 145,756 .43

See Independent Auditors’ Repori.

Statament of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balancas - Budget and Actual

Actual Amounts

§ 1,111.6800.62
20,4£3.97

1,132.083.69

1,132,083.68

{1,215,245 00}

{1.215,245.00)
{83,161.31)

e
3 212660.12

Varlance with
Finat Budget -
Positive
(Negative)

5 49,420.62
17,483.07

66.903.68

100,000.00
100,060.00
__100.000.00

16690189

£100,000.00)

£100.600.00)

§6,903.69

$ 66,203.59

e ——
e e =
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City of Cape Girardoau
Park Storm Water Sales Tax-Capitxi
Statermont of Revenues, Expenditures, arngd Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2641

Variance with

Budgetad Armounts Final Budget -
Posgitive
Original Final Actuel Amounts {(Nogativa)
REVENUES
Taxes 5 3,186,500.00 § 3,186.500.00 $ 233480183 ¥ 14830183
Investment revenue 4,500.00 4,500.00 3397962 2347962
Tolal revenues 3,191,000.00 3,191,000.00 3,368,781.45 i77.7861.45
EXPENDITURES
Debl service:
Admirdstrative charges 5,000.00 5§,000.00 3657.50 1,342.50
Interest 852,756.00 652,758 .00 652,756.24 {0.26}
Pringipal 1.835.0600.00 1,835,000.00 1,835,600.00 -
Total debt service 2,492 756.00 2,492 758 00 2A81 41718 1.342.24
Capital outiay:
Puarks and Recreation 132,651.00 132,651.00 173,275,814 837519
Tetat capital cutlay 132,651.00 132,651.00 123,275.81 9,.375.18
Total expernciitures 2.625.407.00 2,625,407.00 26514 880.57 10,717.43
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures §65,593.00 565,593.00 754 091.88 168,498,868
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers in - - 136.534.74 138,534.74
Capital cutiay - - (5,460.18) {5,460.18}
Trangters out {662,954 .00) {662 954,00} {148,531.82) 51442218
Total other financing sources and uses and special Bems {662,954.00) {662 95400 {17 457 26} 645496.74
Net change in fund balanges (97,361.00) {87,361.00) 736,634.62 53399562
Fund batances - begioning 658 57242 688.572.42 ERB.572.42 -
Fund balances — ending § 59121142 3 591,211.42 § 1,425207.04 $  B3399562
T m———— ————————T———— e —— RS

Hee independent Auditors' Report.
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Clty of Cape Glrardean

Housing Developmont Grants
Stetwment of Rovenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgated Amounts
Original Finaj
REVENUES
infergovernmental $ 848,155.00 $ ©648,158.00
nvestrent revenue - -
Total revenues 646,159.00 645 158.00
EXPENDITURES
Curranit:
Development Services £48,158.00 753,158.00
Total current 648,159.00 753 158.00
Debt service:
Interest - -
Total debt service - .
Total pxpendilures 848 156.00 753,150.00
Exvess (deficiency) of revenues
over {urier) expenditures . (105,9@0.00!
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AMD SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers in - 25 000.60
Totai other financing sources and uses and spetial items - 26,000.00
Net change in fund balances - (80.000.00)
Fund halances - beginning {825.72) (825.72)
Prior period adjustment {1,558.50) {1,558.50)

Fund balances —~ ending

$ (238420

$ {82,384.22
eSS e

Sea independent Auditors’ Reporl.

Actesl Amaunts

§  S4108234
105.10

_541.187.44

730,295 40
73{,295.40

4.802.33
4,802.33
735,007.73

{193.810.29)

18,787.22
18,787.22
{175,123.07)

(826.72)
{1,558.50)

$  (177,507.29)
— o —— e

Varlance with

Flnat Budget -

Positlve
(Nugative)

$ (107,076.66)
105.10

{106,871.56)

22 863 .60
22,863.60

{4,802.3%
{4,802.33}

18,061.27
(88,910.29)

16.212.78)

(6.212.78)
(95,123.07)

3_esimon
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Budgeled Amounts
Orliginal Final
REVENUES
invesirmeant revenueg $ - § -
Tota! revenues - -
EXPENDITURES
Total expenditures - L
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (urder) expendilures - -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {\IBES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Asgel disposition . .
Spatial ftern - -
Transfers in - -
Transfers gut - (2,000.000.00)
Tolal other financing sources ard uses and special lems - {2.000,000.00}
Nei change in fund balances - {2,000,000.00)

Fund batances ~ beginning
Fund palances — ending

Chty of Cape Girardoau

Casino Revenus
Statement of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changss in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 34, 2011

$ (2,000.000.00)

See independent Auditors’ Repor,

Actualt Amounts

¥ 8,674.26
8,674.26

867438

250,79100
1,628,343,32

1,878,134 32

BG74.268

§ 1.874.26

Varlance with
Fiol Budgst »
Positive
{Nogative)

S sgrazs
8,874.26

867426

250,791.00
1,628,343.32

120,865.68
2,008,674.26

§ 2008687428
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City of Cape Girardeau
FALI Grant Projects
Statement of Revenues, Expenditurses, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actuat
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Originai Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernenta -3 - $ - $ 4442220 $ 44,422.20
Invesiment revenue - . 13,444.82 13,448.82
Total revenues - - §7,872.02 57 .872.02
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay:
Capita! Improvernent Projects - 75,000.00 56,314,12 18,685.88
Tota capital outlay - 75,000,00 £8,314.12 18.6585.88
Total expenditures - 75,000.00 56,314,12 18,665.88
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
aver {under} expenditures - 5?5,50&.00) 1,557.90 76,557.90
Net change in furki balances - {75,000.00) 1,557.80 765,557.80
Fund balances — beginning 516,158.94 516,158.94 518,158,984 -
Fund balances — ending § 516,158.54 § 44115804 § 51771584 3 76,557.90

See Independent Augitors’ Report.
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Lty of Cape Glrardeau
Sewar
Siatement of Revenues, Expendiures, and Changes in Fund Balanges - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Varlence with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budgat -
Positive
Qriglnal Final Aclusl Amounts {Hagative)
REVERUES
Intergovemmenial 5 - 3 . % 58,496,583 3 56,986.53
Residential charges 1,816,250.00 1,916,250.00 1,908,560.51 {7,889.49)
Corunercial charges 1,323,750.00 1,323, 780,60 1,268,832.48 {53,917.54)
Dither fees and charges 54,600,00 54,500.00 52,797.18 {1,802.82)
Intermal charges - . 731528 7. 31528
Miscellaneous 500.0¢ 500.00 813.1% 3310
Investmen revanie 2858 528 00 285,528.00 320,838.61 35311081
Tolat ravenues 3.580,528.00 3,560,626.00 3,817,163.76 A 52578
EXPENDITURES
Cusrent:
Contraciual services 438,418.00 187487515 1,718,811.5¢ {4%,836.36}
General sparating expenses 212531.00 214,008.24 2U3376.04 10,629.20
intemat servick expanse 196,878.00 190,676 00 185,397 .65 Z4,878.35
Materia and sUpplies 468 871.00 518,220,614 465,365.26 52.835.35
Personnel services 1,583 385.00 1.583,365.00 1.574,068.16 8.278.54
Special projects expense 25,000.00 25400000 15,850.70 £,149.30
Tolal current 2,5916,062.00 4,203.242.00 4£,143,507.32 59,734.68
et service:
Adrinistrative charges 98,443.00 8844300 98,721.28 (278.29;
Interest ATROI7 00 478,017.00 {185,6753%) 843,082.35
Prncipat 1,563,074 .00 1,56%,074.00 2,199,500,00 (635, 428.00}
Total debt service 2,138,534.00 2,139,534 .00 2,14%,145.94 §,388.08
Capital outlay:
Capital Improvement Projects - 140,060.00 132,754.94 7.245.06
Equipment 312,150,00 215000 264 571,85 47.578.15
Qther Gapilal Expenditures 235 000.00 95 004,00 17,638.00 77.962.00
Total capital outiay 547 150,00 547.150.00 414,364.78 132,785.21
Tolal expenditures 5,605,646.00 6,580,926.00 5.681.016.05 198 807 .45
Excess ideficlency; of revenuas
over {nder) expenditures {2,625,018.00) §3,30§,295,§§3§ {3073 864.20) 2354337
£THER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Tranglers in 1,955 795,08 4 458 494900 4,505 450.68 35,961.69
Connection fees 85.600.00 85,000.00 69,678.81 (15,325.19}
Specipl assassments §,000.00 5,000.00 12,774.87 7.774.87
Assat disposition 8532900 85,320.00 7202252 {13,306 48
Transfers oul " - {3.500.00) £3.500.00)
Total other financing sources and uses and special items 2,131,128,00 4 644 828 00 4,556,434 88 11,606.89
Net change i fursd bafances 108,110.00 1,335,530.00 1,582 570.8C 247 04050
Fund batances ~ beginning 580,631 32 S580,031,32 580.831.32 -
Furkl batances - exding $  8p7041.32 5 1,916,461.32 $ 2183,501.92 § 24704080

Sea independent Auditors' Repert,
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REVENUES

Intergovernmantal
Regiderdial charges
Commercial charges
Ciner foas and charges
Migcellanesgus
investrmant revenue

Total revenias

EXPENDITURES
Current
Contractual services
Geneml operating axpensss
internat service expunse
Matarial amd supplies
Parsornet sorvices
Special projects axpense
Fodal current
iebt service;
Adminigtrative charges
irderast
Prineipal
Totat debl sarvice
Capits! getiay:
Capital Improvement Projects
Eguipment
Totat capitaf putiay
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of ravenuss
over {undat) axpenditurey

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ANG SPECIAL ITEMS

Transfers in
Irvestmant revenue
Special assessments
Agset digposition

Trdal niher Bnancing sources and uses and special Rems

Nat change in fund balances

Fund batances -~ beginaing
Fund balances — ending

City of Cape Girardesy
Water

Statemont of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Bafances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amourts
Oyiginal Fina
] - k3 -
3,613,500.00 3,613,500.00
2,521,000.00 2,521,000.00
184,350.00 184,350.00
16,880.00 16,580.00
144,000.00 144,000 00
£,479,730.00 £.479,730.00
2,674,297.00 2,805,076.28
362,208.00 363, 129.00
$6,859.00 96,858.00
1,287,092.00 1,275,572.74
133,572.00 209 MZ.00
415,000.00 115,600.00
4,643 119,00 4,857,049 00
300.0C a60.00
143,600.00 143,800.00
925,600.00 825,000.00
1,069,100.00 1,089 100.00
318,348.00 318,348.00
107,225,060 59,695.00
A425,573.00 378,243.00
B,143,782,50 8,304,362.00
335,938.00 175, 338.00
500.00 800.00
1,800.00 1,800.00
912600 9.1&5.00
1132500 11,326.60
347,263.00 185,863.00
5,838,662.22

5,836,602 22
3 §183 92592

$ 6.023,335.22

Sae independent Auditors’ Report.

Adtual Armounte

$ 119,285 41
3,680,972.83
255003083

163.537.72
1811673
167,600.93

8.679,514.28

2.B68,707.52
340,156 82
101,852.88
1,166,574.3%
146,119.94
254,045,068

4,872,498.41

470,25
143,800.00
825,000.00

1,089,270.25

267,738.34
49,454.76
317,483.40
6,258061.78

420,552.5¢

8,2%6.02

676,85

4,086 .51

3,584 35

36,827.53

45718012

5,838,862.22

$ 629384234
e

Variance with
Finai Budget -

Positive
{Mogative}

3 119,25541
ATATZ293
29,030,63

{20,812.28)
1.236.73
23,600.93

183,784.35

(64,831.28)
22,8%0.38
{4,993.86)

114,596.35
55,202.06
{139,045.06)

{15,448.41}

(170.25)

{170.25]

50,509.66
10,440,24

G1,049.90
45,430.24

245,214.59

8,290.02
76.85
2,466 .51
14,468.35
25,304,583
27051712

3 51712

pa ot
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REVENUES

inlergovemmental
Residential charges
Commercial charges
Transfer station charges
Other fees and charges
Miscellansous
Investment revenue

Taotai revenuey

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Confractual services
General operating expenses
internal service expenge
Matenai and supplies
Persornnel services
Special projects expense

Tolal current
Debt service:
Administrative charges
Interast
Principal
Tolal debt service
Capitai outlay:
Equipment
Total capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (UBES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS

Asset disposition

Tetal other financing sources and uses and special lems

Net change in fund halances
Fund batarices — beginning
Fund balances - ending

Clity of Cape Girardeau
Bolid Waste

Statement of Revenues, Expendliures, and Changos In Fund Balances - Budgel and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgsted Amounts

$ 1,031.87532
B e

Crriginal Final

§ 15,882.00 $ 15,882.00
2.115,000.00 2,115,000.00
31,500.00 31.500.00
964 700.00 854,700.00
85,200.G0 85.200.00
18,000.00 18,000.00
£2.500.00 22.500.00
3,282782.00 3,252,782.00
1,312 937.00 1,367, 578,88
34178.00 34,676,00
189,414.00 199,414.00
170,640.00 260,862.72
1,065.031.00 1055 031.00
98,500.00 $4,085.40
2,870,688 .00 3.001648.00
7732700 77.327.00
192.451.00 187,451.00
268,778.00 266,778.00
147 95000 9200000
147 950.00 §2.000.00
3,288 ,426.00 3,363426.00
{35 644 00 (110,644.00)
8,300.00 8.300.00
£,300.00 8.300.00
(27.344.00) {102,344,00)
1,059,215.32 1,059,219.32

§ 95887532
T

See independent Auditors’ Report.

Actual Amounts

Varlange with
Flnal Budget -
Pasitive
{Nagatlve}

¥ 1,316.51
2,133,733.92
32,509.59
863.105.19
84,177.85
2352544
41,519.07

3,1B0,280.87

1,292,863.78
32,268.57
240,213.28
231,307.26
1,037,590.54
79.333.43

2,813.866.84

261,25
37.821.26
218.680.1%

256 472.66

83,170.30
93,170.30

3.263,309.8)

(83,019.13

17.538.12

17,538.42
{65.481.07)

1.056,219.32

§ 99373831
B ]

$  (14,562.4%)
18,733.52
1,009.58
{101,584.81}
{1,022.09)
5.825.44
19,019.07

(1249133

74.718.10
2,A07.43
(40.799.26)
1946548
17.440.46
14.751.87

87.681.16
(261.25)

49,805.74
(26,239.15;

13,305,234
1,470.30}

(1,170.30}
100,116.20

27.624 87

9,238.12

9,238.12
36,862,998

$ 3§,862.99
AT
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City of Cape Glrardeau
Golf Course
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011
Vartance with

Budgetad Amgunts Final Budget -
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual Amounts {Nogative)
REVENUES
User fecs $ 45820000 $ 45820000 $ 44724245 % {10,957 .55}
Concassion revenues 28,700.90 28,700.00 36,360.63 7.680.53
Miscellaneous - - 1,546.15 1,546.15
Investment revenue — 150000 .. 450000 — 136804 {131.96}
Total revenues 488 400.00 488,400.00 486 517.27 {1,882.73)
EXPENDITURES
Currant:
Contractoal services 20,125.00 24,587.00 24,004 82 E62.18
General gperating expenses 8,840.00 7.808.00 8,5968.08 {1,160.08;
internal service expense 45,359.00 53,859.00 46,965 49 6,853 51
Materal and supplies 76,977.00 106,167.00 95.428.44 10,738.56
Personnel services 365,506.00 377,408,500 379,880.23 (2,484.2%)
Special projects expense 9,700.00 8,700.00 B,836.10 B63.90
Total cusrent §33,907.00 879,507.00 564,093,186 15,413.84
Debt service,
Interest 19,563.00 10,563.00 10,562.32 0.68
Principat 26,704.00 26,704.00 26,704.24 0.24)
Total debt service 37,267.00 37,267.00 37,266.56 0.44
Capital outlay;
Capital improvement projects - - 1,188,76 (1,185.76)
Total capitai outlay - - 1,185.76 {(1,185.76)
Total expendiiures 571,174.00 616,774.00 602,545 .48 14,228,582
Excess (deficiency) of revenues I —
over {under) expenditures (82,774.00) {128,374.00) (116,028.21) 1234579
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers in 8277400 8277400 105.412.09 22,638.09
Asset disposition - - 13,548,580 13,548,930
Toatal other financing sources and uses and special items 82,774.00 82.774.00 118,560.9% 36,186.00
et change in fund balances - {45,600.00) 2,832.78 48,532 78
Fund balances — beginning 11,5682.01 14,562.01 11,562.09 -
Fund balances ~ ending $ 11,562.01 % {34,037 .9%) % 14,494,739 3 48,532.78

See Independent Auditors' Report,
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Budgeted Amounts
Original Final
REVENUES
Intergovernrenial $ - ¥ -
User fees 125,230.00 125,230.00
Contession revenues 52,855.00 5285500
internal charges - -
Miscaliangous T.500.00 7.500.00
investment revenue $00.00 £00.00
Totad revenues 186,285.00 185,285.00
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Contractusl services 28,257.0C 24,257.00
Geners! oparating expenses 2,865.00 2,865.00
intemal service expense 29,380.00 20.380.00
Materiat and supples $8,524.00 121,824.00
Personnet services 472,035.00 472,035.00
Spetial projects expenge 17.808.00 17.908.060
Total cyrrart 639,860,00 668,369.00
Dabt service;
insterast 715000 7.750.00
Principa 16,626.00 16,626.00
Total debt service 24,376.00 24,376.00
Capitai outlay:
Caplial improvement projacts - -
Total capital outiay - -
Total expenditures —... 55434500 - 592,74500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under} expendifures {478,060.00) (506 460,00}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers in 475.060.00 443 080,00
Asget disposition - -
Transfers oul — e
Tolal pther fnancing sources and uses and speclal tems 478.0680.00 493,080.00
Met change in fund balances - £13,400.00)
Fund balances — beginning 2.718.34 2716.34

Fund balances —~ ending

City of Cape Glrardeau
Softball Complex

Statement of Ravenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual Amounts

$ 2,716,34

3 {10,682.66)

See Independert Auditors’ Report,

% 31185
152,984.05
54,935.11
3.715.65
£,851.01

92.22

218,790.00

10.527.77
1277743
24 488.67
12687566
444,526,534
3572390

555.018.77
T.750.43
16,625.47
24,375.80

3,117.22
311722

682 512,89

(462,782 80}

486.918.43
760.00

{4,565.65}
X EP

369.89

2,716.34
5 3,106.23

Varance with
Final Budgat -
Poasltive
{Nogative)

$ 185
2775405
1.980.11
371588

(648.99)

392.23

33,505.00

13.720.23
(9,912.43)
4,891.33
(4,951.66)
27 ADB B
{17,815.90)

13,349.73
{043
0.53

9.10

(3,117.22)
{3.117.22)

10,232.11

43,737.11

8, 141.57)
750.00
4,565.65)
26,047 22)

13,789.89

$ 13,788 .00

ti
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REVENUES

internal charges
fnvestment revenue

Fotal revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Contractual gervices
General oparaling expenses
Material and suprdies
Persannel services

Total current

Capital outiay:
Equipment
Tolal copilal oullay
Tolal expenditures

Exsess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances — beginning
Furki balariges - endirng

City of Cape Girardeau
Management Information Systems
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Agtual
For the Year Ervded Jung 10, 2018

Budgeted Amcunts
Original Final

3 400,000.00 § 40000000
210000 2,100,00
402,100,00 402,100.00
123,881.00 130,381.00
3,375.00 3,375.00
11,250.00 21,695.00
142,714.00 142,714.00
281,220.00 298,165.00
121,000.00 104,055.00
121,000.00 104,055.00

402 220,00 402, 220,00
{120.00) {120.00)
{120.00) {120,009
493,573.45 113,573.45

3 113,453.45 3 113,453 45

Actual Amounts

&

400,530.43

270,563.32

356,978.3¢

113,573.45

$

388,125.00
2,805.43

112,670.14
60637
21,842.32
135,364,459

85,414.98
86,414.98

43,852.13

43,952.13

157,525.68

Variance with
Finat Budget -

Positive
{&egativa}
$ {1,875.00)
543
{1,168.57)
17.710.86
2,758.83
(227.32)
7,345 51

27,601,683

17.6840.02
17.640.02
45,241.70

44,072.13

44,072,143

$  aaom213



http:44.072.13
http:157.52S.S6
http:113,453.45
http:113,453.45
http:113,573.45
http:113,573.45
http:113,573.45
http:44,072.13
http:43,952.13
http:43.952.13
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http:356.978.30
http:402.220.00
http:402.220.00
http:17,640.02
http:86,414.98
http:104,055.00
http:121,000.00
http:17,640.02
http:86,414.98
http:104,055.00
http:121,000.00
http:27,601.68
http:270,563.32
http:298,165.00
http:281,220.00
http:7,349.S1
http:135,364.49
http:142,714.00
http:142,714.00
http:21,922.32
http:21,695.00
http:11,250.00
http:2,766.63
http:3,375.00
http:3,315.00
http:17,710.66
http:112,670.14
http:130,381.00
http:123,881.00
http:1,169.S7
http:400,930.43
http:402,100.00
http:402,100.00
http:2,80S.43
http:2,100.00
http:2,100.00
http:1.615.00
http:396,125.00
http:400,000.00
http:400,000.00
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City ¢! Capa Girardoay
Fleot Management
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Endsd June 30, 20114

Budgeted Amounts
Qriglaal Final
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - 3 .
Internal charges 1,168 50000 $,166,500.00
Misceliancous - .
Investment revenue 4,500.00 4,500.00

Tolal revenues

EXPERDITURES

Current:
Contraclual services
General operaling expenses
Internal service expense
Material and suppiies
Personnel services

Total current

Debt service:
Interest
Totat dett service

Capital outlay;
Eguipment
{rher capital expenditures
Totas! capital outley
Total expendilures
Excass (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES}) AND SPECIAL ITEMS

Asset dieposition
Transters out
Total olher financing sources and uses and spedial tems

Net change in fund belances

Fund balances «~ beginning
Furd balances - ending

1,171,000.00

217,354.00

4,850.00
3,982.00

291,632.00

8606,518.00
1,124,746 .00

S

38,000.00

39.000.00

1,163,746.00

———————

7,254.00

Al

{18,268.00)

(19,268.00)

b

{12,014.00)

45, 11507

33,101,017

1,171.000.00

20880400
4,860.00
3.992.00

246,728.00

60C.618.00

1,174,203.00

|

36,753.00
3,200.00

39,853.00
1,214,246.00

__(324600)

(19,208,003
(18,268.00;

{52,514.00)
45,115,07

$ !1 7,398.93)

See independent Audilors’ Report.

Actual Amounts

§ 766.00
1.166,474.64
20.00

4,804.29

1.191,563.93

220,698.22
4.770.06
3,982.00

345,983.16

605,732.60

1,184,173.94

226.56
226.58

7.7563.00
3.174.00

18,832.00
1,192,332.50

{468.57)

18,047,899

(14.814.41)

1,233.58
765.04

45,115.07
$ A45,880.08
B

Variance with
Final Budget -
Positlve
{Negativa}

§ 765,00
19,974 64

20.00

104.29

20,863.93

(11,892.22)
79.94

745.84
4,155.50

16,880 84}

(226.563
{226.56)

24,000.00
21,00

28,021 .00
21.813.50

4277743

16,047.99
4,453.59
20.501.68

6327901

$ 83.279.01
T e
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REVENUES

Internal charges
Miscellangous
Investment revenue

Tolai revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current;
Contractual services

Total currant

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency] of revenues
over (under} expenditures

Net change in fund balantes

Fund balances — beginning
Fund balances ~ ending

Clty of Cape Girardeau
Fringe Benefits

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balarces - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Actual Amounts

Budgeted Amounts

Original Fistal
$ 3,351.000.00 $ 3.351,000.00
18,500.00 19,500 .00
3,370,500.00 3,370,500.00
3,270,500.00 3,370,500.00
3,370,500.00 3.370,500.00
3,370,500.00 3,370,5600.00
1,375,827 37 1,375827.37
§ 1,375827.37 $ 137582737

See Independent Auditors' Report.

$ 3,010839.28
1,187.50
50,868.87

3,082,894.05

2.568.568.23
2.668,568.23

2.668,568.23

394,325.82

394,325.82

1,375,827.37
$ 177015318

Yarlance with
Flnal Bydget «
Posifive
{Negative)

$  (340,180.72}
1,187.90
31,366.87

{307 .605.98)

701.83.77
701,834.77

101,931.77
394,325.82

38432582

5 39432682



http:394,325.82
http:1,375,827.37
http:1,375,827.37
http:1,375,827.37
http:394,325.82
http:701,931.77
http:3,370,500.00
http:701,931.77
http:2,668,568.23
http:3,370,500.00
http:701,931.77
http:2,688,568.23
http:3,310,500.00
http:3,370,500.00
http:307,605.95
http:3,370,500.00
http:3,370,500.00
http:31,366.87
http:50,866.87
http:19,500.00
http:19,500.00
http:1,187.90
http:1,187.90
http:340,160.72
http:3,010,839.28
http:3,351,000.00
http:3,351,000.00

REVENUES

Interral charges
invesiment reverue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Gurrent:
Contractual services
GGeneral pperating expenses
Muaterial and supplies
Total curent

Tolal expenditures

St

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Met change in fund balances

Fund balances -- beginning
Fund balances — ending

City of Cape Slrardeau
Risk Management
Stntemant of Revonuos, Expendiures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended Juna 30, 2011

Budgowd Amounts

Origlnal Final

$ 52289400 § 522588400
35,550.00 35,5560.00
568,444.00 558 444.00
523.944 40 523,944 .00
3200000 32,000.00
2,500.00 2,500.00
558,444 00 558.444.00
558,444 .00 558,444 .00
989,112.05 989, 112.05

$  989,112.05 § 88511208

Variance with
Final Budget -
Pogltive
Astual Amounts {Negative)

§ 8£32.830.03 3 §,2#36.03
42 281,78 8,731.78
575,111.81 16,667 .81
155.751.04 368,132.08
29,122.84 2,677.18
- 2,500.00
184,873.88 37387012
144, 973,88 373,570.12
380,237.93 350,237.93
30,237 .93 a83.237.93

986,112.05 .
$ 1,379,345.08 $ 380,237,903
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City of Cape Girardoau
Equipment Replacement

Statemant of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Budgeted Amounts
Qriginal Final
REVENUES
Internal charges 3 277.003.00 $  277,003.00
investment revenue 30,000.00 30,000.00
Total revenues 307,003.00 307.003.00
EXPENDITURES
Debt sarvice:
Interest . 425000
Prncipal - 40,000.00
Tolal debt service - 44,250.00
Capital outlay:
Equipment 185,516.00 214,.817.72
Total capital outlay 485,516.00 214,817.72
Total expenditures 185,516.00 259,067.72
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
aver (under) expanditures 121,487.00 47,835.28
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) AND SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfers In - 27,000.00
Asset disposition 22,400.00 22,400.00
Transfers out - £10,668.28)
Total other finanging sourges and uses and special flers 22.400.00 38,701.72
Net change in fund balances 143,887.00 86,637.00
Fund batances — beginning £63,983.88 953,981.88

Fund balances - ending

$ 1,107,870.83
frrr— e —

Actual Amounts

§  275.797.45
29,133.51

304, 93096

4,250.00

40,060.00

44,250.00

200,351.97

209 351,97

253,601.97

51.328.99

277377

{10,698.28)
17,038 .88

8,367 .88

963,983 68

Variarice with
Final Budget -
Positive
{Negative)
$ {1,205.55)
{866,448}
{2,072 .04)
5,465.75
£.465.75
5,465,75
3,393,714
3717
(22,400.00
(21,662 83}
(18,269.12;

$  (18.269.12)


http:1,050,620.68
http:5,465.75
http:5,465.75
http:307,003.00
http:275,797.45
http:277,003.00
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BEUSSINK, HEY, ROE & STRODER, L.L.C.

Certified Public Accountants
16 South Silver Springs Road

1018 Sycamore . 105 South Hope
“airo, linois 62914 Cape Girardeau, Missouri 63703 Yackson, Missouri 63755
Telephone(618) 734-3300 Telephone (573) 334-7971 Telephone(573) 2433991
Racsimile (618) 734-3303 Facsimile (573) 334-8875 Facsimile (573) 243-3186

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

Compliance

We have audited the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s compliance, with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ resulis section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Compliance with the requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred.  An aundit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Cape
Girardeau, Missouri’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of
Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Cape Girardean, Missouri is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Cape
Girardeau, Missouri's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis.

QOur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, Members of
the City Council, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

BEUSSINK, HEY, ROE & STRODER, L.L.C.

Beiscomh, Koy, fose ¥ SOocls, LL.C,

Cape Girardeau, Missouri
December 23, 2011

12]




BEUSSINK, HEY, ROE & STRODER, L.L.C.

Certified Public Accountants
16 South Silver Springs Road

1018 Sycamore . 105 South Hope
“airo, Tilinois 62914 Cape Girardeau, Missouri 63703 Jackson, Missouri 63755
Telephone(618) 734-3300 Telephone (573) 334-7971 Telephone(573) 243-3991
Facsimile (618) 734-3303 Facsimile (573) 334-8875 Facsimile (573) 243-3186

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Cape
Girardeau, Missouri as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise City
of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated December 23, 2011, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s internal control over financial reporting,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, Members of
the City Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties,

BEUSSINK, HEY, ROE & STRODER, L.L.C.

Auconts, #g, A ¥ bty ¢

Cape Girardeau, Missouri
December 23, 2011
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federsl
CFDhA Progeam
Federsl Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor Program Title Number Number Disbursements
1.8, DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE:
Loan of HOD Property (non-cash) 12. N/A b 109,000
U8 DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Pessed Through Missourd Department of
Economic Develapment -
Community Development Bicek Grants/
Siste's Program and Non-Entitlement 14.228 2004-ND-08 3 173,164
Grants in Hawail 2006-PF-38 400,000
2008-DN-301 311,368
2010-D7T-01 B, 790
ZO08-DN-02 122,167 & 1015429
Passed Through Misseuri Department of
Socisl Services -
Emerpency Sheltsr Grants Program 14.231 ERO164090% 29,380
Pasged Through Missouri Housing Davelopment
Commission -
Home Investment Parmerships Program 14235 M-09-80G-2%.0100 B 7LE6T
TOTAL LS. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT § 1116658
1.8 DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR:
Passed Through Missour] Department of Nahiral
Resources -
Historie Praservation Fund Grants - In Aid 15,904 25.09.21831-004 3 8,000
Save America's Treasurers 15929 MNA 36,173
TOTAL US. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 5 52171

The Accompanying Notes to Schedufe of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Are an Intepral Part of This Report.
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City of Cape Tirardeau, Missour?
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 3011

Federad
CFDA
cantor/Pass-Thioush Grantor P ’ Number

LLS. DEPARTMENT OF RISTICE,
Passed Through Missourt Department of
Public Safery -

Violence Against Women Formuta Grand i6. 588

ARPA-Violence Against Women Formulat CGrant

Hyligiproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607

Prssedd Through the City of Poplar Bluft, Missouri -

Passed fraoagh the Southeast Missouri Drug
“Fask Foree ~
Pubiie Safety Partnership and Commuonity
Pohioing Grants 1&3210

140G Program Chuster;
Edward Byrae Memorial Justice Assistance Grardt 16,738

ARRA - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice

Asgistance Grand Program/Grants o Units of
Loeat Governmenis 16,804

TOTAL U8 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

U.8. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Pagsed Through Missouri Department of
Transportation -
ARRA - Airport Improvement Program 20,106

Highwzy Plasting and Construction 20.20%

Highway Safety Cluster:
State and Community Highway Safety 0800

Alcobot Intpatred Diiving Countermeasures
Incentive Grants i 268 60

TCTAL US, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Program
Number Disbursements
2010-VAWAG011.08 3 14,347
2009V AW AGGG2 18,193
R0 -YAWA-GI-08 4436 % 896
N/A 5,519
NiA 6,149
2010-D5BX-0557 37,356
2004-5R-Be-2220 27513
5113213
GB077A-] H 8,834
DP- | 503¢002} 5 494138
STP-1500(014) i73,B05
JR1Q767A DP-1503(003) 60,374
SRTS-NI-H300(502) 2,552
SRTSINF-M110{002) 4848 8 75678
IE-SAES-Z 3 38,730
§1-0P-09-1 £5.600
§ i-PT02.85 2282
{0-SADG-1 327635
15-8A05-03 26,734
18-154-AL- 111 54 503
10.PT2.112 5714 & 213017
L 4. Fex i b3 7,964
HD-KR.05.86 1,844
PE-KB-03-T7 587
K 8-03-57 361
LKKO?3 1,130
LEK 08 742
SAF006 997
SAF007 i3s % £3.750
§ 1064185

The Accompanying Natos 1o Schedule of Expendineres of Federal Awards
Are an Intogral Part of This Report
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ity of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal
CFDRA Program
Eed £ ~Through Program Title Number Number Lrisbursements
ENVIBONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
Passed Through Missouri Department of Natural
Resourees -
ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Drinking
Water State Revolving Funds {1) £56.468 Dw243010-03G $ 999,562
ERI0-ARRA-MG4010135 108405 % 1,107,967
ARRA - Brownficlds Assessment and
Cleamip Cooperative Agreement &6 818 NA 25,950
TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTEON AGENCY 5 1,133,957
ARRA - Encrgy Efficiency and Conservation
Block Grant Program (EECBG) (1) 81.128 N/A $ 187,219
LS. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVECES.
Pagsed Through the Community Caring Counsel -
Substance Abuge and Mental Health Services-
Projents of Regionaf and Mational Significance 93.243 SDA42070104 $ 1612
SECURITY:
Passed Fhrough Missouri Stale Emergency
Management Agerey -
Dhigaster Grants - Public Assistancs {Presidentially
Declared Disasters) 97,038 RFEMA-1980-DR-MO $ 12,658
Law Enforcement Officer Redimbursement Program 97090 HSTSO208HSLROSG 35,538
Assistance o Firefighters Grant 97 044 EMW-2007-FF-00176 b 39 848
EMW-2008-FO-09141 75,451
EMW.005-FO-09319 o 19,264 154,563
Passed Through Missour: State Emergency
Managemen: Agency -
Citizen Coms 97053 2008-85-T9.0062 3 19,366
2510-88-TO-0G39 2519 21876
TOTAL U8 DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND
SECURITY 32635
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS §  aspossn

(1) Tdentified mator program.

The Accompeanying Notes to Scheduls of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Are an Imegraf Paet of This Report.
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1.

City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Purnose of Schedule and Reporting Entity;

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared to
comply with OMB Circular A-133. This circular requires a Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards showing total expenditures for each federal financial assistance program
as identified in the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance {CFDA) and identification of
programs that have not been assigned a CFDA number as “Other Federal Assistance”.

The schedule includes all expenditures of federal awards administered by the City,

. Basis of Presentation:

The Schedule is presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, which defines
federal financial assistance “...assistance that non-federal entities receive or administer in
the form of grants, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated surplus property),
cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct
appropriations, and other assistance, but does not include amounts received as
reimbursement for services rendered to individuals.”

. Basis of Accounting:

The Schedule is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting, which recognizes
expenditures when liabilities for goods and services are incurred, This is the same basis
of accounting presented in the financial statements.
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1.

City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS:

Financial Statements

Type of Auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

» Material weaknesses identified?

e Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programis:
s Material weaknesses identified?

s Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

yes

yes

S L

yes

yes

Type of Auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 510(a} of Circular

X none reported

X no

X _ none reported

: Unqualified

A-1337 yes X . no
Identification of major programs.
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program
66.468 Capitalization Grants for Drinking
Water State Revelving Funds
81.128 Energy Efficiency and Conservation
Block Grant Program (EECBG)
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Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee: X_ vyes

2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS:

No findings or questioned costs were noted that are required to be reported,

3. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS:

No findings or questioned costs were noted that are required to be reported.
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City of Cape Girardeau, Missouri
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

09-1 Noncompliance with Section 67.080. RSMo, no expenditure of public monies
should be made unless it is authorized in the budget.

Status: Implemented.
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